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To the Sharcholders of

Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A.
22/24 boulevard Royal

L-2449 Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D’ENTREPRISES AGREE

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Espirito Santo
Financial Group S.A., which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2013 and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Board of Director 's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as the Board of
Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or error.

Responsibility of the Réviseur d’Entreprises agréé

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as
adopted for Luxembourg by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
judgement of the Réviseur d’Entreprises agréé, including the assessment of the risks of material

ENT.001

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, wiietlier due to frand or error. In making
those risk assessments, the Réviseur d’Entreprises agréé considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A. as of December 31, 2013,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consclidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion included in the previous paragraph, we draw attention to Note
41 and Note 47 of the annual accounts, which describe the euro 700 million provision in relation
with the subscription by ESFG customers of debt instruments issued by Espirito Santo
International S.A. (‘ESI’). The Board of Directors of ESFG believes that the reimbursement of
the debt instruments issued by ESI will be possible through implementation of the deleverage
program, the support of ESI shareholders, its capacity to obtain or renew credit lines in the
financial markets and, additionaily, through the support from ESFG.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The consolidated management report, which is the responsibility of the Board of Directors, is
consistent with the consolidated financial statements. The accompanying Corporate Governance
Statement on pages 30 to 40 which is the responsibility of the Board of Directors, is consistent
with the consolidated financial statements and includes the information required by the law.

Luxembourg, Aprit 28, 2014 KPMG Luxembourg S.ar.l.
Cabinet de révision agréé

<. Rouault
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP SA

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DRCEMBER 2013 AND 2012

Noles 31,12.2013 31.12.2012
(In thousands of euro)
Tnterest and simiar income 3 3629256 4097 681
Inlerest expense and similar charges 5 25361761 2832 460
Net Interest income 14092 495 12585221
Dividend income 583%4 73 167
Fee and commission ncome 3 926 760 1035146
Fee and commision expenses G ( 203 628) { 185 532)
Vel {losses) from fmancal assets and fmancil Babiliies at fair value through peofit or loss 7 (294 970} {54 762)
Nel gains from available-for-sak fmancial assets 8 431 649 605 568
Net (Josses) from foreign exchange differences g (2638) ( 18 369)
Net {{osses) from the sale of olher assels 10 (67 063) (42 513)
Inswance eamed premiums net of reinsurance 11 694 668 407 632
Other operating ncome 12 74 843 438 937
Operaling income 2730 460 3544435
StafT costs 13 602734 777707
Genreral and adminbirative expenses 15 518075 500760
Claims incurred net of remsurance 16 483 218 631 943
Change in technical reserves net of reinsurance 17 153331 (336 660)
Insurance commissipns 18 {152256) 39256
Depreciation and amortisation 3¢ and 32 119458 145 7719
Provisions ned of reversals 41 695 651 57251
Loans imparment net of reversak and recoveres 26 1005293 794 291
Tmpainnent on other fnancial assets net of reversak 24,25and 27 103978 106 117
Tmpairment on other assets net of reversals 29,30,32 and 35 323377 223070
Other operaling expenses 12 157 %69 276 990
Operaling expenses 4107 329 3219124
Gains on disposal of mvestments m subsidiaris and assocales 1 and 55 3 T4 050
Gans arsing on busmess combinations achieved i siages 1and 55 - 87273
Share of prof# of associates 33 83823 4756
(Loss) f profit before Inconie tax (1 368 043) 491 390
Intome lax
Current tax 42 157 432 152159
Daferred tax 42 (321 625} (41157)
{164 193) 111 002

{Loss)/ profit from conllnuing operations (1 203 850) 380 388
Dis¢onlinued operations 29 (30796) {8684)
(T.oss) / profit for the year (1 234 646) 371 704
Aliribuiable to equily holders ofthe Company (864031) 313 633
Allributable to non-controlling interest 46 (370 615) 58 071

(1 234 646) 371 704
Eamings per share of profit attrixnable to the equity holders of the Compary:
Basic (in Euro) 19 {4.23) 1.86
Dikuted (in Eurc) 19 (4.23) ).86
Barnings per share of profit from contimdng operalons attribufable to the equity holders of he Company:
Basic (i Buro) 19 (3.19} 1.9}
Dihyted (in Euro) 19 4.19) 1.91

The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP SA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012

(Loss) / profif [or the year
Altributable to equity Troldors of the company
Alfributable fo non-conirolling interesk

Other comprehensive income, net ofincome tax

Items that will net be reclassificd to the income stafement
Acluarial gains and (Josses) from defined benefit obligation (Note 14)
Income taxes on aciuarial gains and losses from defined benefit obligation

Total items that will not be reclassificd to the income statement

items that may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

Income taxes on exchange differences on translating foreign operations
Other comprehensive income from associates

Fair value reserve {avatable-for-sake financial assels):
Net change in fair value
Net amount fransferred to the income statement
Deferred taxes on gains / losses of availlable-for-sale financial assets

Total items that may be reclassilied subsequently to the income statement

Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive {loss) / income [or the year

Atiributable to equity holders of the Company
Aftributable to non-contvolling interest

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in fhousands of euro)

(864 031) 313 633
(370 615) 58071
(1 234 646) 371 74
{ 107 130) (189479)
1380 18 597

(105 750) (176 352)
(80274 (58 581)
(6663) 3247
1975 ( 10009)

( 84 962) (65 34%)
175317 1274 898
(341219) { 506 250)
42699 ( 129070)

{ 123 203) 639 578
(208 165) 574 235
(313 915) 403 353
(1 548 561) 775 057
(945 085) 445 317
(603 476) 329 740
(1 548 561) 775 057

The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP SA

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012

Noles 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of enro)

Assels
Cash and deposits at ceatral banks 20 1828 674 1444831
Deposits with banks 21 1148 934 1126 853
Financial assels held for trading 22 2488 465 3 981 845
Oriher Enancizl assefs at Tair vale through profit of oss 23 3564 118 2603 463
Available-for-sale financial assets 24 8929 778 11 041 235
Loans and advances to barnks 25 4827 7%0 4548 247
Loans and advances to customers 26 49270 667 50 692 878
Held-to-maturity investments 27 t 672 053 1119 047
Derivatives for risk managemenl purposes 28 363 391 516 520
Won-current assets held for sale 9 33567011 3280 185
Property and equipment 30 974329 982 617
Investment properties 3 719 422 797323
Intangible assets 32 603 269 703 210
Inwvestmients in associales 33 606 473 640 614
Technical reserves of reinsurance ceded 34 76 859 70773
Current income tax assels 40 957 28 8il
Delerred meome tax assets 42 1064 833 760 953
Other assels 35 3097613 32344655
Total assets 84 849 651 87 574 060
Liabilities
Deposits from central banks 36 77224 10 941 325
Financial liabilities held for trading 22 1336 768 2124225
Deposits from banks 37 5033 494 5065 980
De to customers 38 38 093 807 3562547
Debt securities issued 19 12 615 208 15552 870
Derivatives for risk management purposes 28 130710 125 199
Investment contracts 40 4473 921 3844020
Non-current abdliies held for sale 29 153 580 175 945
Provisions 4l 917020 255 601
Technical reserves of divect insurance 4 2 643 156 2 488 328
Current income [ax batrlities 122313 253 406
Deferred income tax Eabilties 42 96972 154 736
Subordmated debt 43 1403 138 1176432
Other Eabilities 4] 1345 833 1268 442
Total liabilltles 78 138 214 79 452 033
Equity
Share capital 45 207 075 207 0715
Treasury shares 45 (3459) (35 965)
Share premimm 15 284 456 884 456
Preference shares 43 51167 55978
Other equity componeals 45 26 418 58 100
Capital reserve not available for distribution 45 700 970 104970
Fair value reserve 45 {3208) 251
Other reserves and retained earnings 45 284 543 (10282}
(Loss) / profit for the year attributable to equity helders of the Company (864 031) 313 633
Total equity atfributabte to equify holders of the Company 1284136 2199 736
Non-controlling interest 48 5427301 5922291
Tofal equity 6711 437 8122027
Total equity and labilities 84 849 651 87 574 060

The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP SA

CONSOLIDATED CASII FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECENMBER 2013 AND 2012

Neles 31,12,2013 31,12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Cash flows from operating activitles
Tnlerest and simiar income received 3410463 4117 3I8
Interesl expense and similar charges paid (2298 056) {2 859407)
Fees and commission received Y28 450 1040320
Fees and cammission pax {60519) {232 625)
Trsurance premmims 603 064 455 608
Claims paid (501 148) {629 661)
Medical services income recetved 13816 338201
Medical services expenses paid {(2572) { 196 622)
Recoveries on loans previously writien ofT 21 061 21900
Conlribartions to pension fund ( 103 806) {86 410)
Cash payments lo employees and supphiers (1 127 514) {1230679)
Net eash from operating profits before changes in operaling assels and liabilifies 973 261 738 453
Deposils with central banks (1 821 520) (2836014)
Financial assels at fair vahe through profit and loss {593 867) 13362341
Loans ard advances to banks 234 532 746 249
Drepesits from banks {231670) {1247 339)
Loans and advances lo customers {250761) { 526 961)
Due to cuslomers 2445 089 658 356
Drerivatives for risk management purposes 63 281 226 558
Olher operafional assels and Rabifites (23286) (482 065)
Net cash [rom operaling aclivities before income iax 1058 109 {1 386 422)
Income laxes paid {290 237) (51 189)
Nel ¢ash from operating aclivities 767 872 {1 437 611)
Cash flows front investing ociivities
Purchase of subsidianes and associales (44982) (367 428)
Sale of subsidiaries and associates 30079 202 762
Dividends received 64 647 M7
Purchase of [nancial assels avatabk: for sale (55 955 501) (70323 809)
Sake of [mancial assels available for sale 58 759 065 73T 3572
Held to maturity invesiments (541 690) 681033
ssued insurance investment conlracls 424305 482 M2
Purchase of tangible and intangble assels and investment properties (183 108) { 344 634)
Sale of tangitde and inlangibk assels and invesimenl properiies 26422 14068
Neleash {used in) / [rem invesling activilies 2629237 4013273
Cash flows from financing activities
Capital Derease . 493 584
Repurchase of preference shares (217 {17627}
Debi securities issued &615714 14 112 540
Debl securities paid (9842 434) {17 659 609)
Subordinated debt issued 750 400 -
Subordirated debi paxd {510515) (234 386)
Treasury stock 38639 (15222)
Non-conlrolling inferest on capilal increase of subsidiaries - 785 511
Interest on other equity instruments (2191) {18564
Dividend paid on ordinary shares (1673 {5329}
Dividend paid on preferred shares {10217 {15213}
Net cash from financing activities {2 965 034) (2598 615)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (74 554) (27291)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 357524 (50 244)
Cash and cash equivalenls at beginning of ihe year 2 133 505 T 950 928
Cash and cash equtivalenis at end ofthe year 2481026 2 F23 505
Cash acquired on change In scape of consolidation 182 821

357 521 {50 244)
Cash and cash equivalent includes:
Cash 20 289349 It 409
Deposns with Central Banks 20 1519325 1140422
Mandalory deposits with Central Banks 20 (496 582) {48 179)
Deposits with banks 21 1143934 1126 853
Total 2 481 026 2 123 508

The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statcments.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.,
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012
(Amounis expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

NOTE 1 - ACTIVITY AND GROUP STRUCTURE

Espirito Santo Financial Group S.A. (ESFG or the Group) is a limited liability company headquartered in Luxembourg,
incorporated under Luxembourg law on 28 November 1984, and is the holding company of the banking and financial
activities of the Espirito Sante Group (GES) located in Luxembourg, Portugal and around the world. Most of the non
financial activities of the Espirito Santo Group, including real estate, tourism and other activities are managed by Rio Forte
Investments S.A., a limited liability company headquartered in Luxembourg and a fully owned subsidiary of E.S.
International S.A. (ESI), a company headquartered in Luxembourg,

In December 2013, Espirito Santo Irmdos S.A., a fully-owned subsidiary (direct and indirect) of Ric Forte Investments
5.A., acquired from ESI its participation in ESFG. Consequently, Rio Forte Investments S.A., became the indirect holder
of the interest of the Espirito Santo Group in ESFG. The terms and canditions of the agreement established between ES
Irmdos and ESI were met only during the month of Janvary 2014, therefore control over ESFG was obtained by Rioforte
only in 2014, As a result, from 1 Jannary 2014, ESFG will be fully consolidated by Rio Forte.

The uitimate parent company of ESFG remains Espirito Santo Control S.A. (ESC), a company headquartered in
Luxembourg, direct parent company of ESI,

Consolidated financial statements of ESFG are available at the Company’s registered office at 22-24 Boulsvard Royal in
Luxembourg. There are no audited consolidated financial statements at the level of ESI or ESC,

Through its subsidiaries, the Group (ESFG and its subsidiaries) engages in a broad range of financial activities primarily
through Banco Espirifo Santo 8.A. and its insurance companies: Companhia de Seguros Tranquilidade S.A., BES Vida,
§8.A. and T-Vida, Companhia de Seguros S.A.. Its operations abroad complement its Portuguese activities.

ESFG is listed on the Luxembourg, London and Lisbon Steck Exchanges.




ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A,
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
{Amounis expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

The following table describes the main activity of each of the Group’s subsidiaries and associates as at 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2012:

Sobsidiaries
31122013 31122012
Voting Ecencmle Voilag Econvmic
Activity Lotation Inferesd inferest inferest [nrereat

Advencecare - Oestlo de Senvigos de Satde, S.A Managed care Portuge] b1 K % 1ot 1164
AmanBenk for Commerce 2nd Investment Stock Company {2) Coamercial banking lmya 40.0% 11.0% 40.0%% 10.9%%
AOC Patimoine Asgels managerent Frarce L00.0%% 5454 100.0% 364
Arribiéa - Fundo Especial de Investimente Imobiisris Frchads RealEstate Fund Portugal L0004 25 - -
Adzntic Ventures Corporation Heldins company UsA 100075 13.1% 100.0% 21%
Attante Ventures [ Corperation Holdmng eompany UsA - - 100.096 208%
Asdater, SGPS, 5.4 Helding company Portugel 100.0% 27.4% 100.0% 2744
Baryea Esplito Santo Asigola, SARL Conmercial banlsng Angola ppNLEY 1534 3195 142%
Banco Espidta S2nto de Invastimento, S A Investmen backing Poitugal 100.0% % 100.09% 274%
Banco Fspirilo Santo do Orienle, S A Commercial banking Macao 081 i 905N 21.3%
Basco Espirito Samto dos Agores, S.A. Conmercial banking Portugal 51318 154% bISLIY 137%
Banco Esplrto S2nto Nonth Amedca Capita] Limited Lizbifty Co. Financing vehicle usa 10.0% 1% 100.0% 214%
Hanco Espirilo Szato, 5.A () Commercial banking Poatugel 367% P2t 3639 274%
Banco Espirito Sants Cabo Verde Commercial banking Cape Green 103.0%% 2L4% 100.09% 274%
Bank Eaplrito Santo [ntemational 1td. Commercial banking CaymanIslends 1000% 4% 100.02% 214%
Banque Esphito Santo et de 1a Vinétie, S5 Commercial banking France 81.5% 35510 873%% 3659
Barvque Privie Espirite Sento, 5.4 Assctoanagemend Switredend 100.0%% 100.0%% Led.o9% L0096
BES Activer Financeros, Ltda Asset management Bram 100.0% 2334 10004 2%
BES Africe, 5675, SA Holdng company Postugal 109.09% 174 100.0%% 274%
HES Betetigungs, GmbH Heldng coapany Germany 100.0% 1A% 160.0%% 214%
BES Finance, Lid. Fmancing vebriele Caymen Talands 190.0%: 214% 100034 2174%
BES Investimento do Brasd, $.4 Investment banking Bram 0% 219% o 2055
HES Vida, Coripantza de Segures, 8.4 Tnsurance Portugel 100075 4% 1004% 214%
RImvestLlida Services prayider Bradl - - 100,024 218%
R Consult Participagdes Lida Senvices provider Braa - - 100.5% A%
BESA Valorirag2o - Fundo de Lwestinenio [mebaidre Fechade Assel nanagement - Real Extate fundx Angola 100.0% 153% - -
BES Securifies do Brasil S.A Brokerage houte Bran 100076 215% 100.0%4 9%
BESAACTIF - Sociedzde Geslora de Fundos de Investmenlo 5.A Axset management - Mutual frds Angela 91.6% FEALIY 9% 174%
BESAACTIF Pensces - Sociedade Oestora de fundes de Pensdes, S.A Assel mznagement - Pensions funds Angola 276%% 15.1% 9T5% 174%
BESPAR, 5GPS, S.A. Helding compeny Poctugel 138%% Ti%% Taa 5%
BEST -Banco Electrénico de Senvigo Tokal, §.A4 Intemel banking Pocugat FRLGH] 27.1% TieH 2T1%
BIC Infermationa Bank Etd Commercial banking CaymanTslands 100.04% 214% 10004 214%
Cepilal Maix - Assessoria Fmanceira, 5.4 Advizery senices Portugal 100045 24.7% 100.0% 214.4%
Caravela Balanced Fund Investment Fund Luneinbeueg HH: 15.1% 53.08% 1363
Caravela Defensive Fund Investment Fund Luxembourg 9.71% 214% 92% 271%
Clear Capital Group Limited Holding company Uniled Kingdom - - 100035 18 7%
ClearInfo-Anakytics Private Ltd Provides analyties support o UK tesearch India 10004 214% 10004 181
COMDEST - Sociedade de Gralio & Investimento Imobiliirio 5.4 Realectate Portugal loo0%s ik £3.03% 134%
Espirito Szndo Investment Senices provider Poland 100.0%% 214% 100093 274%
ES - ARRENDAMENTO Investment Fund Postugal 100082 A 100036 274%
ES Bankers (Dubai} Lerited Commercial banking Dubai .0 91.9% 23.0% 93.0%%
ES Fmnencal Services, Inc. Brokemge houte UsaA 10003 214% 100035 274%%
ESRecuperagdo de Cefdito, ACE Debl ¢olltetion Portugal 100.0%% 2% 100.0% 211%
Expirito Sznto Seqxities India Private Limiled Brokerzge Fonse India 75.0% 048% 7502 W0.3%%
ES Tech Venbures, SOPS, A Holding company Portugal 10303 214%% 100035 214%
ES Venhrres- Secizdade de Capital de Risco, 8.4 Venhae ¢apital Porfugal 100.0% 144 100.0%% 214%
ESAF . Espinifo Santo Activos Financefros, 5.0PS, 5.4 Holding company Porhugel 20.0% 247% 90.0% 24.6%
ESAF - Espirmio Santo Participagdes Intermacionss SGPS, S.A Holdng company Portugel 1000% M 100.0% 26%
ESAF-© ional Dt A s, Lid. Diskritration company British Virgin Tslands 10003 24 M5 100.0%% 246%
ESFO Imternational 114 Fmancing vehicle Cayman Islands 91.02% 21.0% 100.0% 1005
ESGEST - Exp. Santo Gestio InatalagFes, Apeov. & Com, 5.1 Shared strvices Porfugal 100.0% 271% 100.0% 21t
Eagirilo Sanlo Activos Financieros, S.A4 Axxe} management Spam 100.0%% 251% 100.0%% 0%
ES Investmerd Advisers, Ine. Consultancy LSA 100.0%% 274% 1000%% A%
Esptifo Santo Bank (Panama), SA. Commercial banking Prnama 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100,04
Eapirilo Santa Bank, [nc. Commercial banking USA 10005 274% 10006 A%
Esprrilo Samto Capital - Sociedade de Capital de Risco, 5.4 Venture capilal Portugel 100.0%5 212484 100.04% Hil
Esphito Santo Concessdes, SOPS, 5.4 Helding company Poriugel T4 19.7% s 19.6%
Escencessions Spain Holding BV Holding company HoTland L0.0%% 19.7%% - -
ESC fons In( ionei Holding, BY ——————————————Holding company —Heland 100.0% 1974 100034 10644
ES Concessions Latam Holding BY Holdng ecmpany Holland - - 10004 19.6%
ES Consuftancy (Singapore} [1d Consuttancy Singapore - - 10007 100.0%
Eaphito Sando Contact Center, Gestio de Call Centers, S Call cenler xemvicen Portugsl 100.0% 67.3% 100.0%% 6114
Espaifo Sarde ¢ Comercial de Lisboa Ine, Represenlation office LsA - - 100.0%% 214%
Espiito Sarlo Financial (Portugal), SO7S, 5.4 Holdmg company Portugal 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Espisito Sardo Tmancidre, 5.4 Hoelding company Lxembomg 102.0%5 100.0%5 [00.0%% 0003
Espitife Santo Funde de Pens3es, 5 A Assel managemenl - Pensions fimds Portugal 100 095 HM [00.0%% 246%
Espirito Sanio Fundos de Tnvestimentos Imebiliiios, S.A- Assel management-Real Estate funds Postugal 109.0% 247% [00.0%% 6%
Espisite Sante Fundos de [nvestimentos MobiBidos, .4 Asget rienagement - Mutual funds Portugel 100.095 U 100.0% %
Espifilo Samo Gestdo de Petrendrios, 3.A. Astet nanagement Portugal 100.0%% UM 100.0%% 248%
ES Ewwobond Investment Fund Luxembourg - - 528% A%
Eapirito Sante Gestisn S.A 5G11C. Assetmanagement Spam 100 9% 28 1% 100 09 280
Espirits Santo Infernatica, ACE Shared services Portugal 100.0% 3884 1000% 338%
Espirito Santo Intemational Mznagement, S.A_ Asset ranagement . Mutuat funds Lunembourg $25% 248% 908% U6t
Espuilo Sante Investmeat Holdng Lemtad Holdng compeny United Kingdom 10046 274% 684% 18.7%
Espirito Santo Investimentos, SA. Holding company Brarl 100635 2344 100.5%% 2T4%
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP §.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)

(Amonnts expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicaled)

Sobsidiaries

31122013 al.122012
Yailng Econamle Yaotlng Economle
Astivity Lotitica [nterest inierest [mterest Incerear
Espirilo Sanfo [nvestments FLC Brokerage house Irefand 1000% 274% 100035 2T4%
Eapirito Sanlo Pensiones, 5.GFP, 5A Assels manapement - Pansions fands Spam 100,00 251% 100035 26:0%%
ES Flans Dindimico Inve stment Fund Portugal 978% 168% Lo e 268%
ES Rendimento Dinirrco Investmend Fund Porfugel - - $35% 155%
Expirita Santo Precingio de Servigos, ACE2 Shared services Pertagal 9904 Hak Lodcts Mi%
Espirito Sarto Representagdes, Lida Repres entation office Braz] 100.61% 274% 10004 214%%
Espinto Sanlo Servicies, S.A Insurance Spain 13).0% 274% 1000 273%
Espifita Sanko Servigos Financezos Dislibugio de Tiufos e VM, SA Brokerage honse Bradl 100095 215% X L%
Espirita Santo, FLC Nevebank fnance company Ireland 100.0% 274% 00 0% 113%
Esptite Sants Vanguarda, Sb Services provider Spem 1600% 4% 10004 213%
Espinto Sanlo Wealth Exrope 5.4 Assetmanapement Tuxembourg 190010 100.0% 1009% [00.0%
ESS] Comumicagdes, SIS, 8.3 Holding company Portuget - - 100.0% 240
ESSI lnvestmentes, SGP5, S A Reldng company Portugal 10003 274% 100.04% 2743
ESS1, 5QPS, 5.A. Holdng cempany Portugal heali 2144% 100.0% 274%
Esumidica - Prestagds de Cridados MéEdicos, $A. Hezith care Portagat [000% 100.0%% 100.0% [00.0%
Execution Holding Limiled Holding cempany UndedKingdom - - 100 0% 1819%
Execution Noble & Company Limited Advisory enmvestaenls Uni{ed Kingdom 18054 prRL ] o004 137194
Execution Noble (Hong Kongz) Limited Broker Dealer China o0.0% A% 109.0%% 121
Execution Neble Holdings LEC Heldng Company UsA - - 100.085 1515
Execution Nobie Limited Broker Dealer Urited Kingdem 1000% WA 100.0%% 157
Execution Woble Research 1 mied No activity Unitad Kingdom 0003 214% 100.0% 18.7%
FI Multimercado Tredsury Investment Fund Bras 10004 piL ) 100.0% 29%
Fundo BES Abaokute Retum Invesment Fund Branl 384 2. 49.8% 11.9%
Bes Fundo deInv Multimercado Modernd Ly estent Fund Brazt {ad piks ] £53% 153
Fenes Ocente Investmend Fund Po:tugal 100.0% 4% 100.076 274%
Fhtpteel VILS AL Ventures Turdam Development Porfugal 10.0% 2% - -
Funde de nvestments Imobihide Fachado Corpus Chask [nvestment Fund Portugal 100.0% 1000846 91.1% 9LI%
Fundo de Capilal de Risto - BES PME Capital Growth Venhure capilal fond Postuga? 100.0%% 2144 100095 274%
Fundo de Capital de Risco -ES Ventwres Il Venhye capital fond Fortugal ] 19.1% 658% ni%
Funda de Capital de Risco - ES Venfures Il Venture capilel fond Poutugal Lol 16.1% 6154 205%
Fundo FCRPME/BES Venture capital fimd Postugal 55.1% 151% bRt 131%
Fundo de Gestlo de Patrimonio Inobibine - FUNGEPL-BES RealEstaie Fund Porfugal £03% 16.5% §23% 25%
Furido de Qeside de Patrimenio Inobdidna - FUNGEPL -BES 1L PealEstele Fund Pertugal 053% %1% ELI% 222%
Furido de Grsids de Patrironis InobEdns ReslEstate Fund Portuzal 913% 6.1 973% 2656%
Qespac Participaces, Ltdz Helding company Bral 100.0% 218% 100085 2A9%
Imbassai Farticipzgdes, SA Holding company B:azl 100.0% 274% - -
1moageatio — Fundo de Ioveskmento Imebiitnio Fechado Tnvestment Frnd Portugal 100,094 214% - -
TVOINYESTDENTO - Fundo de Investimento Izobliiio Techado lnvestment Fund Porfupal 100.0%5 4% - -
IAIOPRIME -Fundo deInvestmento [moblifio Fechade Investment Fond Portuzel 761% Nie 4831 1354
Inversfunda VII—Fundo de Investimenta Imabiiisia Fecha do Investment Fond Portugal 0304 263 - -
KeySpace Funpary Két Realestele Hungary - - 3.0% Std%
Lirios Investimentos [mobikirios, Lida Real-ealale Brazl 100.0% 244 - -
Lusianda Capdtal SAPT de CV_SOFOMLENE Ho'éing Company Mexico 100.0% 214% - -
Muangnan Gestien S A Assetdznagement France 100.09% 3535% 100.0% 555%
Noble Advisory Fndia Prvate Lid Provides analytics suppert o Greup rescerch  [ndia 100.0%% 214% 9o 18795
Nable Financial Holdings Lmiled He'ding Company United Kingdom. - - 100.0% 18:3%
Noble Fumd Advisers Limited Fund management schivifies Enited Kingdom - - loo.ods 18.1%
Nebie Oroup Holdingy Lenited Holding Company Man [sland - . 100.0% 18.1%
Noble Grouyp Limited Hol&ng Cempeny United Kingdom - - 100.0%3 18.7%%
Noble Venture Finance Geceral Partner Licited Generel partner for fimd Tersey Tslands - - 100.0%% 187%%
QBLOO Consufting A Software devalopment Portugal 85.645 183% &65% 182%
Orey Reabiffagio Urbana Investmend Fund Pertugal 171% 202% % 2n1%
BESV Cowrlage S.A_ Tnvestmenl company France 100.0% 565% bl 36450
Paisurs - Sosiedade Levpesaaal, SGPS Holding company Portugal 100.0% 274% 100.0%% 274%
PARTRAN SGPS, $A Holding compeny Portuzal 100.0% 0.04% 1000%% 1000%
Praca doMamquis - Servigos Awdkares, S.A Realestate Portugal 100.0%% AR 10008 274%
Prucloc Capital - Fundo d¢ Investimento Ireblifro Fechado Investment Fund Portugal 100045 274% - -
Rightbour 5.4 Services provider Portugal 100.0% 224% - -
Quinla dos Cénegos- Seciedade Imobiiina, 5. A Real-entate Portugal 100.03% 412% 100045 2%
SEGUROSLOGO 5.4 Inyurznce Portugsl 100.0% 1000%6 1M 0s 100.0%
SESTheda, 3.4 Asset management Span 3 13.1% 3004 1373
SLMB - Sociét? Lyonnzise de Marchands de Biens Realestate France w95t Mty 1311 584%
Sarifte Crvle ImmobXire dudl Averue Georges Mandel Raal-zstate Franes 100.0% 50084 100.0% 1999
Tagide Properties, Inc. Real-gstate usa 100045 214% 100.0% 4%
TRANGUILIDADE - Gompanhia de Seguros Tranquilidade $.4_ Insurence Fortugal 1000% 00 100.0% 100,036
Tresquiidede CAS (Angola) Insurznce Angola 0.0% 3212% 19055 19.0%
Tranquilidede Megambique C. hia de Segures, 5.A Insurance Morambique 100.08% 100.0% 100.0%% 102,035
Tranquiideds Moganbique Compankia de Segures Vida, SA Insurance Morambigue 100.0% joo0ts 100% 100.0%%
TVIDA, C hia de Saguros, 5.4 L —— — Porugal 100.0%2 100.0% _ 100.0% 000%
UCH Investmentos Imobi¥irdos & Hoteleror, Ltda Real-estele Brasl 100.0% 2144 - -
UCS Participagdes e Invesbmenlos, Lida Real zstzts BrazAl 100,04 4% - -
URI Invesbmentes Inobkidor, 1tda Real estate Brasl 100.0% 274% - -
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounnis expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

Associales
31522013 31.12.2012
Yoting Leoavamic Voting Eeonomic
Attivity Location intereai interest fnterend inierest

Adepa Clobal Services Fimd admiistration Luxembourg 10.0%% L0005 40.01% 0095
Advance Ciclone Syatans, 54 Treatment, ekmination of mert residuss Porfugal 100% 67% 0% 6%
Ascend Deisa - Estradas do Doure Inlesior, S.A Molorway coneession Porfugal - - s 1%
Apele Eilms, SL. Entertament Spemn - - 251% 0%
Ascendi Gronp, $.0P5, 3.A Molorway concession Porugal 10.0% 185 % 18%
Ascendi Pirthal Interier - Extradas do Binhal Inlecior S.A- Molorway concession Portugal 200% 5% 000 3N
Consecicnaria Aulopista Perole-Kalepa, 8 ACY Motorway contession AMesieo - - 200% 8%
Aldoviade los Viiedox S.A Motoraay eoncession Spen HuAs 0814 H¥s DR
Banco Dela Tre Venerie, Spa Commercial banking, Tialy 218% 934 23.3% 93
HES, Companhia de Seguros, S.A Tnsurznce Portugal 0 L 50.0% 5%
BIO-GENESIS Heoldmg compmy Brazl 9% S Pl 665
BRA Intermacional $.A Eatedemmment Spam - - 25044 65%
Coporgest, 5.4 Heldng company Partugal 250% 59% 25.0% 65%
Coreworks-Proj Circuito Sist Elect, 5.4 TT Services Portugel 3r4: 3.0% 4% M
Dassa Imvestments S.A. Holding company Luxermbourg - - 4894 430%
Dontiticz - Heclrbnicz e Informitica, 5.4 T Services Portugat 204% 1925 23146 15%%
2BCapital 8.4 Venture capilal Branl 3me 123% 5003 123%
‘2HCapital Iuxembnreg SCA SICAR Venture capitel Luembourg AT2% 1674 {124 166%
2BCapital Luxembusg Generel Partners Sed () Fund management activiies Luzembourg 100045 3% 10004 125%
Edenred Portuzal, 54 Senices provider Portutal 500% f11% - -
Empark - Aparcardentos y Servicios, 5.4- Management of parting slola Spen 2 4% 44%
ENKROTTSA Water menagement and treatment Portugal Eal0 15% 45%
ESEGUR - Empraak de Seguranca, S.A Secusity Portugdl £.0% 12.1% 1204
Espinita Santo Indemabionsl Asset Management Ltd Holding company Baifish Virgin Tslands 40034 12.1% L 2%
Espuite Saala Safide 5GPS, S A Holdng compeny Paortugal 2% 20% 4250 N0
Europ Anistance - Comp. Portug Segurox Axciclineia, 8.4 Insurance Fortupal 4204 70% 470% 41.0%
SCA Mandel Partnen Project finenee Frence 19.0% 212% 40015 212%
Eapito Sanfo Venhures [novagdo ¢ Inlemacionakragio Venture capital fund Porfuzal H00% 13.7% S00% 131
Fundo Bem Comum - Fundo 2 Capital 42 Risco Venture capitel fimd Partugd 200 335% 200% 53%
Fundo Espicito Santo [BERIA T Yenture capital iind Portugal 1455 126% kLl L0.6%%
Global Active - Gestio Part. Soc, SOP3, 5.4 Holdng company Portugal Hie LA} Hik 993
Goupe CFCA SAS Holding company France P 125 168% 5% 165%
HLC - Centrmts de Cogerasdo, 5.A Services provider Pectugel 3% 6.7% 3% &M%
EarLeasing Algerie SPA Leasing Algera A5.0% 9.6% 350%% L2201
DMOCRESCENTE - Fundo de Invashmento Tmetiiddo Fechado (8) Investment Fund Portugal 13.0% 48094 188% 4564
LOCARENT - Companhia Porbugaesa de Afuguer de Vaaturas, S A Renling Portugal 500% 1335 0.0 1.1
MCO2- Socizdade Gestora de Fimdos des Investimento MobiBido SA Tnvestment Fund Paortugel 2500 129 25.0% 3313
NDCE - MultiméFa, SA Holdmg company Portugal 4908 T14% H0% 4%
Mobile Wodd - ComumdcagBes, 5.4 Telecomenmication Portagel 490% T4% ok 4%
MomaBanco 5.4 Commercial banking Morambique 4008 Ni% 25.1% 5%
Multipesson] Recursos Humanes - S0PS, S Helding comparmy Portugal 2 5% &% 15t 62%
Multhwave Photorscs, SaAL IT Senvices Portugal 2084 38 3% 484
Nanfum SA Production of Semiconductors Paorfugal 4L1% 113% 410% 2%
Nutrigreen, S.A Services provider Portugal 2004 kRl 20.0% 42%
Criayslems, S A IT Servicex Fortugal 283% 53% 293% 3%
Palexpo - bnagem Empresarial, A (formerly Corfinovzdas) Fumtiture marnfacture Porfugal 195% 7.5% 193% 15%
PoSish Hote] Carita] 5P Services provider Poland . - 10% 209
Frosport - Com Desportivas, 5.4 Specting geods n&ng Spain - - 250% £5%%
RODISINKS & [DEAS, SA Metat ldustey Pettugal 354% 6584 334t 8%
Salzarinvestments 81 Services provider Spam 304% 125% 4L7% 1L4%
Sousacemp, SGPS, 5A Holding compeny Portugal Wik 1% B 86%
Synergy indurtry and tecknology 5.4 Holdmg compary Spen 2005 FAL 25006 T1%
TLCT2 - Sohygdes Intagrades de Telecommicagdes, 5.A. Telecommmscation Portuge] 19.0%% 14 100% %
UNICRE - Inslituigdo Financeire de Crédito, §.4_ (b) Finencial eradit ins ftution Poctugal 175% £5% 125% ABY%
Watson Brown HSM Lansted Mechanochesmistry company United Kingdem 350% 0% 3593 15%
WindpartLda Holding company Pertugal 200% 558 - -
Ydeeams - Informatica, S A TT Senvices Portugal 43.0% 8745 f80% 108%
Yueit Servias, S.A_(form ¢ly PT Prime Tradecom) Afanagement of inlemel portals Portaget 133% 2% B 915

(2) Ahhoughthe Gtoup’s voting peresl is lesx than 50%4, thexe companies are fially zonsokd.a.lai.u the Group controls Pfs achvities.
(&) Although Lhe Group's voting infersstis less than 2094, the Group execcises a signffican over th
(c) Althoughthe Group™s voting Etereatis mere than 034, these compardes mml:onﬂnl:dbyﬂu Group, bud the Group exercises a aignificant influeniee over them
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 - (Continued)
(Amounis expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

Applying SIC 12 as described in Note 2.2, the Group consclidation scope includes, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the

following special purposes entities:

31.12.2013
% economie Consuolidation
Esiablished Headquartered Activily intcrest meihod
Lusitano SME No.1 ple ¢ 2006 Treland Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consalidation
Lusitano Mortgages No.6 plc *” 2007 Ireland Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidalion
Lusitana Project Finance No.1 FTC ' 2007 Partugal Special Purpose Enlity 100% Full consalidation
Lusitano Mortgages No.7 ple 7 2008 Ireland Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
Fundes 2008 Porugal Special Purpose Entity 99.30% Fult consolidation
Lusilano Leverage Finance No. § By'! 2010 Netherand Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
Lusilano Finance No.3'" 2011 Poriugal Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
M DES Empresas 1 2011 Spain Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
CLN Magnalia Finance 2038 2008 Treland Special Purpose Entity 10024 Full consolidation
JE12.2012
% economle Consclidation
Established Headquartered Aclivily Interest me thod

Lusitana SMENo.| ple ¢ 2006 Ireland Special Purpose Entily 100% Full consalidalion
Lusitano Mortgages No.6 ple 2007 Ireland Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidalion
Lusitano Project Finance No.1 FTC'? 2007 Portugal Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
Lusilano Monigages No.7 ple ™ 2008 Ireland Special Purpose Entily 100% Full consolidation
Fundes 2008 Penlugal Specizl Purpose Enlity 99.10% Full consolidation
Lusitano Leverage Finance No. 1 Bv'" 2010 Netherdand Special Purpose Entity 100% Full consolidation
Lusitano Finance No 1" 2011 Portugal Special Purpose Enlity 100% Full consolidation
IM BES Fmpresas 1%/ 2011 Spain Special Purpose Enlity 100% Full consolidation
CLN Magnolia Finance 2038 2008 Treland Special Purpose Enlity 100% Fult conselidation

(*} Entilies set-up in the scope of securitisation transactions {Sec Note 50,

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the consolidation of these entities had the following main impacts on the consolidated
balance sheet:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of cure)

Deposits with banks 173 426 195 586
Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 11204 71651
Loans and advances o customers (net of iimpairment) 3253477 3 803 343
Debt securities issued 615201 703 797
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE, CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 ~ (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

The main changes in the Group structure that occurred during 2013 are highlighted as follows:
— Subsidiaries

* In March 2013 was set-up the company Righthour, entirely held by BES PME Capital Growth fund and in April
2013 this company acquired 100% of the share capital of Imbassai ParticipacBes, S.A., which from this date was
included in the consolidation perimeter;

+ In April 2013, ESSI SGPS, S.A. acquired 31.6% of Espirito Santo Investment Holding Limited for an amount of
17 125 thousand pounds, holding since this date 100% of the company’s share capital;

* In May 2013, ESSI SGPS, S.A. subscribed integrally the capital increase of Espirito Santo Investment Holding
Limited in the amount of 10 000 thousand pounds;

* InJuly 2013, took place the merger of R Invest Ltda and R Consult Participagtes Ltda into Espirito Santo Servigos
Financeiros DTVM;

* In August 2013, took place the merger of ESSI ComunicagBes, S.A. into Banco Espitito Santo de Investimento,
S.A.

—— Associates (see Note 33)

* In June 2013, following the sale of the business associated with BES A La Card meal banking card, the Group
acquired a 50% interest in Edenred Portugal, S.A., this company being currently included in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method. The acquisition cost, amounting to euro 928 thousand, was
determined based on the fair value of the business transferred net of the elimination of the unrealised profit in the
extend of BES interest in Edenred;

* As at 30 June 2013, BES Africa acquired 23.9% of Moza Banco share capital by an amount of euro 24 856
thousand, becoming to hold 49% of this associate. The acquisition generated an additional goodwill of euro 16 872
thousand. Following this transaction total goodwill amounts to euro 21 065 thousand and is accounted under
associales;

¢ In June 2013, ES Concessdes sold to Ascendi Group the participation it held in Concessionaria Autopista Perote-
Kalapa;

*+ In December 2013, Banco Espirito Santo and Espirito Santo Capital, Sociedade de Capital de Risco sold its
shareholdings in Apolo Films, S.L., BRB International and Prosport — Comercializaciones Desportivas, S.A..

The main changes in the Group structure that occurred during 2012 are highlighted as follows:

— Subsidiaries

*In April 2012, ESFG exchanged 2.2% of its direct holding in BES against 6.2% of BESPAR. This operationhadno— |
effect on ESFG econornic interest in BES (see Note 55);

+ InMay 2012, BES acquired an additional 50% of the capital of BES Vida by an amount of euro 225 000 thousand,
becoming to hold the total share capital of the company and started fo consolidate this entity under the full
consolidation method (see Note 55);

* Following the acquisition of control of BES Vida in May 2012, the Group acquired an additional interest of 5% in
ES Salide SA;

* In the second semester of 2012, Tranquilidade sold the participation it held in Pastor Vida generating a gain in the
amount of euro 11 206 thousand (see Note 55);
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amonnts expressed in thousands of ewre, except when indicated)

In November 2012, BES acquired participation units in the real estate funds, Fungepi, Fungere and
Imoinvestimento, and started to consolidate those entities under the full consolidation method;

During 2012, the Group acquired an additional interest of ¢.86% of the share capital of BES through the acquisition
in the market of 29 510 581shares (see Note 55);

In November 2012, following (i} the acquisition by Rio Forte Investments, S.A. of an additional 19.5% stake in ES
Sande; (ii) the shareholders’ agreement established between Rio Forte and ESFG; and (iii) the sale by ESFG to Rio
Forte of a call option over 5.5% of ES Satde share capital plus 1 share, currently exercisable; ESFG has lost control
over ES Saide. Consequenily, this entity is no longer fully consolidated by ESFG, being classified as an associate
(see Note 33 and Note 55).

— Associates (see Note 33)

In April 2012, ES Capital acquired 42.99% of 2BCapital Luxembourg S.C.A SICAR for the amount of euro 854
thousand. In May 2012, following the capital increase of the company, ES Capital invested an additional euro
15 619 thousand;

In June 2012, ES Concessdes transferred its shareholding in SCUTVIAS — Autoestradas da Beira Interior, SA and
Portvias — Portagem de Vias, SA to Ascendi Group, SGPS, SA, this operation generated a loss in the amount of
euro 2 170 thousand;

In Deceinber 2012, BESI sold the participation it held in Polish Hote! Company, Sp, generaling a gain in the
amount of euro 2 509 thousand;

Following the loss of control over ES Safde in November 2012, this entity has been reclassified as an associate (see
Mote 33 and Note 55).




ESPIiRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

During the years 2013 and 2012, the movements on acquisitions, disposals and other investments in subsidiaries and
associated companies are as follows:

31.12.2013
Acqulsitions Disposals f [}quidafioas / Basiness combination
Gainfloss) on
- Otber . Sale wi Omer ots s posal/ Nelnl;]l-nl
Acpelililon price imestrmeats & Tom e reimbursemeats o "::ﬁ:l::] ml:llr:n:g
comi natow
(1o thowsands of cern)
Sabnldaries

DES shares 36 260 - 36260 (31 263y - (3328 . -
BES Africa - 35000 35000 - - -

BES Agoren - 65 &3 - - -
ES Tech Ventures - 6300 6500 - . - -
Riglhour 50 - 50 - - - - -
Furido DES Absokate Retun - - . - €] €] - -
Fundo FIM DES Moderedo - - - - (2 2n . .
Fspirito Sento Searies Inda - 1131 1733 - - - - -
Espirito Santo nvesimenl HoMing, Limied 20281 11714 31955 - - - - .
Lusitania Cepital, SA P1 A2 C.Y, SOFOM,ENR - 39 59 - - - - -
Esplrito Sanlo Servigos Einanceiros INTYM, SA 207 1842 2049 - - - - -
BES Adlivos Financeiros, Lida - 614 614 - - - - -

R Consull Parlicipagdes, Lida - - - - { 13 (L] -

R Imesl, Lida - - - {23} (2 -
ESSI Comumicacdes SGPS, SA - - - - { 50} (50 - -
F1Mulbereado Treasury 58 - 58 - - - - -
35835 58136 114 %52 (33280) { 218) (33519 - -

Assoclates

Moza Danca - U6 24916 - - - - -
DASSA - - - (5 026) - (5028 3 i
Adepa Glote] Services 250 - 250 - - - - -
Banea defle Tre Yenezie - 650 690 - - ' - -

Aulopista Perote Nalapa - - - (8020 - (62200} -

Dorritica - 350 EEH - - . -
BRD ntcruacional - - - (10639} - (10539 - -
Apolo Films - - . &) - ¢ 91 - -
Prosport - - - ( 274y - (279} . -
Esphito Sento Tberia 1 958 - 938 - (M (™ . -

Edenred g111 . &113 (31 - (3129 -
Ascensi Dowro Inierzor - - - - (10 {10 - -
Muhipessod - 100 100 - - - - -
9321 26056 35317 (80 08D} {8 (80 163) 3 3
66177 ETRUY] 150369 (113343 { 319 (113897 3 3

(a) Capial ncreases and loans (o companicy
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31.12.2012
Acguldons Dlspoasls f Lgutations } Boslucss combl patlon
GainAlows) on
diyposals Netofnon
Acqulsition price Otber © Tanal Sale price Otber Tanat lquldation? conlrotllng
Imvestmeals relnaturseorals baslaets Intereit
cwomblanilon
{tu ibonsands of caro)
Sulsidiaries
BES Vda(%) 225000 - 25000 - - . 87273 206607
ES Saude - - - - . 60332 45007
BES shares 71666 - 75666 {102 809) - {102 809 . -
BESPAR shargs 38300 - 18300 - - - -
Pasior-Yda - - - {40072 - (4007 11206 11206
ADC H - H - - . -
3354010 - 335010 {1421 881) - (2831 158811 262810
Assoclaled eompanles

Moz Banco - 2991 1531 - - - - -

Erpark - - . (2230 {2580) -
Poilvas . - - {1067 . {1067} 913 150
Scatys - - - (59783) - ($9783) 308y ¢ 843)
Ascendi Group 48 11462 - - . -
Cornuds - - . - { 26y { 786} - -
Sousacamp - - - - {3700) {3 0) - -
Fin Sohla . - - (1219) - {1219 [£5)] (2
2B Capitsl Laembourg 84 15619 1647 . - - - .
Nova Figlox - - - {1 (U9 - -
Sopratutio Cafés - . - {1334y - {133 0 4
Ydrans . a0 il - {7 £ - -
MCOo2 m 1175 1288 - - - - -
MRN -Manolencso de Rodovias Nacionaks, SA. - - - . (m {1 - .
PoEsh Hotel Company - - - (2509 - {2 200) 2500 23
SAGEFI - - {3150) - (3250) 1119 1200
o657 31450 32418 (59881) (7292) (67 113) 51 1308
335977 1451 I5T 428 {202 762) (1192) (210 054) 161323 164 128
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

2.1. Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

Tn accordance with Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of 19 July 2002 from the European Council and Parliament, Espirito
Santo Financial Group S.A. (“ESFG” or “the Company™) is required to prepare its consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union (“EU”).

IFRS comnprise accounting standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™) and its predecessor
body as well as interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC™) and its
predecessor body.

These consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2013 were prepared in accordance with
the IFRS effective and adopted by the EU until 31 December 2013. The accounting policies applied by the Group in the
preparation of its consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2013 are consistent with the ones used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2012, except as referred to
in Note 56, which describes the impact in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December
2013, of the adoption by the Group of the accounting standards issued by IASB and IFRIC interpretations, effective since
1 January 2013, The accounting policies used by the Group in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements,
described in this Note, were modified accordingly. The adoption of these new standards and interpretations had no material
effect in the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

The accounting standards and interpretations recently issued but not yet effective and that the Group has not yet adopted in
the preparation of its financial statements can also be analysed in Note 56.

Moreover and as referred to in Nete 1, the Group acquired, in May 2012, an additional 50% interest in BES Vida and the
control over its activities. Therefore, from that date, BES Vida, which previously qualified as an associate and was
included in the consolidated financial statements up to 2011 under the equity method, is being fully consolidated by the
Group. Further details are provided in Note 55,

These consolidated financial statements are expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated, and have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for the assets and liabilities accounted at fair value, namely, derivative
contracts, financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets,
investment properties and recognised assets and liabilities that are hedged, in a fair value hedge, in respect of the risk that
is being hedged.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the application of judgment and the use of
estimates and assumptions by management that affects the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of income, expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual results in the future may differ from those reported.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assnmptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

These consolidated financial statements were approved in the Board of Directors meeting held on 25 April 2014. These
financial statements are subject to the shareholders approval on the General Assembly, to be held on 30 May 2014,

2.2. Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the assets, liabilities, gains and losses of Espirito Santo Financial Group
S.A. and its subsidiaries (“the Group™), and the results attributable to the Group from its associates.
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These accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group companies, during all the periods covered by the
consolidated financial statements,

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group exercises control. Control is presumed to exist when the Group owns more
than one half of the voting rights. Additionally, control also exists when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to
govern the financial and operating policies of the entity, so as to obtain benefits from its activities, even if its shareholding
is equal or less than 50%. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group
until the date that control ceases.

Accumulated losses of a subsidiary are attributed proportionally to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interest even if this results in non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

In a business combination achieved in stages (step acquisition) where control is obtained, the Group remeasures its
previously held non-controlling interest in the acquiree at its acquisition date fair value and recognises the resulting gain or
loss in the income statement when determining the respective goodwill. At the (ime of a partial sale, from which arises a
loss of control of a subsidiary, any remaining non-controlling interest retained is remeasured to fair value at the date the
control is lost and the resulting gain or loss is recognised against the income statement.

Associaies

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence over the company’s {inancial and operating policies
but not its control. Generally when the Group owns more than 20% of the voting rights it is presumed that it has significant
influence. However, even if the Group owns less than 20% of the voting rights, it can have significant influence through
the participation in the policy-making processes of the associated entity or the representation in its executive board of
directors.

Investiments in associafes are accounted for by the equity method of accounting from the date on which significant
influence is transferred to the Group until the date that significant influence ceases. The book value of the investinents in
associates includes the value of the respective goodwill determined on acquisition and is presented net of impairment
losses.

In a step acquisition that results in the Group obtaining significant influence over an entity, any previously held stake in
that entity is remeasured to fair value through the income statement when the equity method is first applied.

If the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any medium and
long-term interest, the Group discontinues the application of the equity method, except when it has a legal or constructive
obligation of covering those losses or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

Gains or losses on sales of shares in associate companies are recognised in the income statement even if that sale does not
result in the loss of significant influence,

Special purpose entifies (“SPE™)

The Group consolidates certain special purpose entities (“SPE”), specifically created to accomplish a narrow and well
defined objective, when the substance of the relationship with those entities indicates that they are controlled by the Group,
independently of the percentage of the equity held.
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The evaluation of the existence of control is made based on the criteria established by SIC 12 — Consolidation — Special
Purpose Eatities, which can be summarised as follows:

¢ In substance, the activitics of the SPE are being conducted in accordance with the specific needs of the Group's
business, so that the Group obtains the benefits from these activities;

e In substance the Group has the decision-making powers to obtain the majority of the benefits from the activities of the
SPE;

e In substance, the Group has rights to obtain the majority of the benefits of the SPE, and therefore may be exposed to
the inherent risks of its activities;

e In substance, the Group retains the majority of residual or ownership risks related to the SPE so as to obtain the
benefits from its activities.

Invesimeni funds managed by the Group

As part of the asset management activity, the Group manages investment funds on behalf of the holders of the participation
units. The financial statements of these funds are not consolidated by the Group except in the cases where control is
exercised over its activity based on the criteria established by SIC — 12. It is assumed that there is control when the Group
owns more than 50% of the participation units.

Goodwill

Goodwill resulting from business combinations that occurred until | January 2004 was offset against reserves, according to
the option granted by IFRS 1, adopted by the Group on the date of transition to the IFRS.

Goodwill resulting from business combinations that occurred from 1 January 2004 until 31 December 2009 was accounted
under the purchase method. The cost of acquisition was measured as the fair value, determined at the acquisition date, of
the assets and equity instruments given and liabilities incurred or assumed plus any costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of acquisition and the fair value of the Group’s share of
identifiable net assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

For acquisitions on or after 1 January 2010, in accordance with TFRS 3 — Business Combinations, the Group measures
goodwill as the fair value of the consideration transferred including the fair value of any previously held non-controlling
interests in the acquire, less the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, all measured as of the acquisition date. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the non-controlling interest is measured at their proportionate interest in the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired and of the liabilities assumed, without the respective portion of goodwill. As a result, the
goadwill recognised in these consolidated financial statements corresponds only to the portion attributable to the equity
holders of the Company.

In accordance with TFRS 3 — Business Combinations, goodwill is recognised as an asset at its cost and is not amortised.
Goodwill relating to the acquisition of associates is included in the book value of the investment in those associates
determined using the equity method. Negative goodwill is recognised directly in the income statement in the period the
business combination occurs,

The recoverable amount of the goodwill recognised as an asset is reviewed annually, regardless of whether there is any
indication of impairment. Impairment losses are recognised directly in the income statement.

The recoverable amount corresponds to the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the respective value in use. In
determining value in use, estimated futures cash flows are discounted using a rate that reflects market conditions, time
value of money and business risks.
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Transactions with non-controlling inferest

Acquisitions of non-controlling interest, that did not result in a change in control, are accounted for as transactions with
equity holders in their capacity as equity holders and therefore no goodwill is recognised as a result of such a transaction.
Any difference between the consideration paid and the amount of non-controlling interest acquired is accounted for as a
movemnent in equily.

Stmilarly, sales of non-controlling interest and dilutions from which does not result a loss of control, are accounted for as
transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders and therefore no gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement. Any difference befween the sale proceeds and the recognised amount of non-controlling interest in the
consolidated financial statements is accounted for as a movement in equity.,

Gains or losses on a dilution or on a sale of a portion of an inferest in a subsidiary, from which results a loss of control, are
accounted for by the Group in the income statement.

Foreign currency franslation

The financial statements of each of the Group entities are prepared using their functional currency which is defined as the
currency of the primary economic environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial stalements are
prepared in euro, which is ESFG’s functional and presentation currency.

The financial statements of each of the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the euro are translated
into euro as follows:

*  Assets and liabilities are franslated into the funciicnal currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet
date;

¢ TIncome and expenses are translated inte the funclional currency at rates approximating the rates ruling at the dates of
the fransactions;

¢ The exchange differences resulting from the translation of the equity at the beginning of the year using the exchange
rates at the beginning of the year and at the balance sheet date are accounted for against reserves net of deferred taxes.
Similarly, regarding the subsidiaries and associates results, the exchange differences arising from the translation of
income and expenses at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions and at the balance sheet date are accounted for
against reserves. When the entity is sold such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as a part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Balances and transactions eliminated in consolidation
Inter-company balances and transactions, including any unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group
companies, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements, unfess unrealised losses provide evidence of

an impairment loss that should be recognised in the consolidated financial staternents.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated io the extent of the Group®s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment loss.

2.3. Foreign carrency fransactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional cuirency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions, Monetary assefs and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are translated to euro af the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the
income stafement,

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are ineasured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate atf the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated to euro at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
The resulting exchange differences are accounted for in the income statement, except if related to equity instruments
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classified as available-for-sale, which are accounted for in equity, within the fair value reserve.
2.4. Derivative financial instruments and hedge acconnting
Classification

Derivatives for risk management purposes include (i) hedging derivatives and (i) derivatives used to manage the risk of
certain financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss that were not classified as
being hedging derivatives.

All other derivatives are classified as trading derivatives,

Derivatives traded in organized markets, namely futures and some oplions, are recognised as trading derivatives, being
marked fo market on a daily basis and the resulting gains or losses recognised directly in the income statement. Once the
fair value changes on these derivatives are settled daily through the margin accounts held by the Group, these derivatives
do not present any fair value on the balance sheet. The margin accounts are included under the caption Other assets and
comprise the minimum collateral mandatory for the open positions.

Recognition and measurement

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into (trade date).
Subsequent o initial recognition, the fair value of derivative financial instruments is re-measured on a regular basis and the
resulting gains or losses on re-measurement are recognised directly in the income statement, except for derivatives
designated as hedging instruments. The recognition of the resulting gains or losses of the derivatives designated as hedging
instruments depends on the nature of the risk being hedged and of the hedge model used.

Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, in active markets, if available or are determined using valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate.

Hedge accounting
e Classification criferia

Hedge accounting is used for derivative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments, provided the following
criteria are met:

(i) At the inception of the hedge, the hedge relationship is identified and documented, including the identification of
the hedged item and of the hedging instrument and the evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedge;

(i) The hedge is expected to be highly effective, both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis;

(iii) The effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured, both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing
basis;

(iv) For cash flows hedges, the cash flows are highly probable of occurring.

o Fairvalue hedge

In 2 fair value hedge, the book value of the hedged asset or liability, determined in accordance with the respective
accounting policy, is adjusted to reflect the changes in its fair value that are attributable to the risks being hedged. Changes
in the fair value of the derivatives that are designated as hedging instrunents are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attribuiable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the derivative financial instrument is transferred to the
trading portfolio and the hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. The cumulative adjustment to the carrying
amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest rate method is nsed is amortised to the income statement over the
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period to maturity.

o Cash flow hedge

When a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in highly probable future cash flows, the
effective portion of changes in the fair value of the hedging derivatives is recognised in equity. Amounts accumulated in
equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect the income statement. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement,

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity at that time is recognised in the income statement when the hedged transaction
also affects the income statement. When a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
reported in equity is recognised immediately in the income statement and the hedging instrument is reclassified for the
trading portfolio.

During the periods covered by these financial statements, the Group did not have any transactions classified as cash flow
hedge.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives that are embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
income statemnent.

2.5, Loans and advances to cusiomers

Loans and advances to customers include loans and advances originated by the Group, which are not intended to be sold in
the short term. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers.

Loans and advances to customers are derecognised from the balance sheet when (i) the contractual rights to receive their
cash flows have expired, (if) the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ewnership or (iii) aithough
retaining some but not substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership, the Group has transferred the control over
the assets.

Loans and advances to customers are initially recorded at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses.

In accordance with the documented strategy for risk management, the Group contracts derivative financial instruments to
manage certain risks of a portion of the loan portfolio, without applying, however, the provisions of hedge accounting as
mentioned in Note 2.4. These loans are measured at fair value through profit or loss, in order to eliminate a measurement
inconsistency resulting from measuring loans and derivatives for risk management purposes on different basis (accounting
inismatch). This procedure is in accordance with the accounting policy for classification, recognition and measurement of
financial assets at fair value through profit or toss, as described in Note 2.6.

Impairment

The Group assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether there is objective evidence of impairment within its loan portfolio.
Inpaitment losses identified are recognised in the income statement and are subsequently reversed through the income
statement if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment losses decreases.

A loan or a loan portfolio, defined as a group of loans with similar credit risk characteristics, is impaired when:
(i) there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after ifs initial recognition and
(ii) that event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the loan or of the loan portfolio, that can be
reliably estimated.
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The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for each loan. In this assessment the
Group uses the information that feeds the credit risk models implemented and takes into consideration the following
factors:

the aggregate exposure to the customer and the existence of non-performing loans;

the viability of the customer’s business model and its capability to trade successfully and to generate sufficient cash
flow to service their debt obligations;

¢ the extent of other creditors’ commitments ranking ahead of the Group;
® the existence, nature and estimated realisable value of collaterals;

¢ the exposure of the customer within the financial sector;

» the amount and timing of expected recoveries.

When loans have been individually assessed and no evidence of loss has been identified, these loans are grouped together
on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics for the purpose of evaluating the impairment on a porifolic basis
(collective assessment). Loans that are assessed individually and found to be impaired are not included in a collective
assessment for impairment.

If an impairment loss is identified on an individual basis, the amount of the impairment loss to be recognised is calculated
as the difference between the book value of the loan and the present value of the expected future cash flows (considering
the recovery period), discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of impaired loans is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring the
impairment Joss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract rules.

The changes in the recognised impairment losses attributable to the unwinding of discount are recognised as interest and
similar income.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised loan reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, loans are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics, taking in consideration the Group’s credit risk management process. Future cash flows in a group of loans
that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the loans in the
Group and historical loss experience. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by the Group with the purpose of reducing any differences between loss estimates and actual [oss
experience.

When a loan is considered by the Group as uncollectible and an impaitment loss of 100% was recognised, it is written off
against the related allowance for loan impairment. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the loan impairment loss recognised in the income statement.

2.6. Other financial assefs

Classification I

The Group classifies its other financial assets at initial recognition in the following calegories:

s Financial assets af fair valne through profit or loss .

This category includes: (i) financial assets held for trading, which are those acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term or that are owned as part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking and (ii) financial assets that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

F-22




ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A,
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Contimed)
(Amonnts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

The Group classifies, at inception, certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss when:
s  Such financial assets are managed, measured and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis;
¢ Such financial assets are being hedged (on an economical basis), in order to eliminate an accounting mismatch; or
&  Such financial assets contain an embedded derivative.

The structured products acquired by the Group corresponding to financial instruments containing one or more embedded
derivatives meet the above mentioned conditions, and, in accordance, are classified under the fair value through profit or
loss category.

o Held-to-maturily investinents

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold until its maturity and that are not classified, at
inception, as at fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale.

o Available-for-sale financial asseis

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets (i) intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time, (i) designated as available-for-sale at initial recognition or (iii) that are not classified in the other categories referred
1o above,

Initial recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Purchases and sales of: (i) financial assets af fair value through profit or loss, (ii) held-to-maturity investments and (iii)
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised on trade date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or selt
the asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, in which case these transaction costs are directly recognised in the income statement.

The best evidence of the fair value of the instrument at inception is deemed to be the transaction price. However, in
particular circumstances, the fair value of a financial instrument at inception, defermined based on a valuation technique,
may differ from the transaction price, namely due to the existence of a built-in fee, originating a day one profit,

The Group recognises in the income statement the gains arising from the buili-in fee (day one profit), generated, namely,
on the trading of derivative and foreign exchange financial products, considering that the fair value of these instruments at
inception and on subsequent measurements is determined only based on observable market data and reflects the Group
access to the wholesale market.

Financial assets are derecognised when (i) the contractual rights to receive their cash flows have expired, (ii} the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership or (iii) although retaining some but not substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership, the Group has transferred the control over the assets.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value and gains and losses arising from__

changes in their fair value are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Available-for-sale financial assets are also subsequently carried at fair value. However, gains and losses arising from
changes in their fair value are recognised directly in equity, until the financial assets are derecognised or impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement. Foreign
exchange differences arising from equity investinents classified as available-for-sale are also recognised in equity, while
foreign exchange differences arising from debt investments are recognised in the income statement. Interest, calculated
using the effective interest rate method and dividends are recognised in the income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, net of any impairment
losses recognised.
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The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. For unlisted securities the Group
establishes fair value by using (i) valuation techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models and (ii) valuation assunptions based on market information.

Reclassifications between categories

The Group only reclassifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities, from
the available-for-sale financial assets category to the held-to-matwrity investments category, if it has the intention and
ability to hold those financial assets until maturity.

Reclassifications between these categories are made at the fair value of the assets reclassified on the date of the
reclassification. The difference between this fair value and the respective nominal value is recognised in the income
statement until maturity, based on the effective interest rate method. The fair value reserve at the date of the
reclassification is also recognised in the income statement, based on the effective interest rate method.

Impairment

The Group assesses periodically whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or ore events that occurred after their initial recognition, such as: (i) for equity securities, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost, and (ii) for debt securities, when that event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

For held-to-maturity investments, the amount of the impairinent loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (considering the recovery period) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate and are recognised in the income statement. The carrying amount of the
impaired assets is reduced through the use of an allowance account. If a held-to-maturity invesiment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract, For held-to-maturity investments if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through the income statement,

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets has been incurred, the
cumulative loss recognised in equity — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income statement — is taken to the income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the iinpairment loss decreases, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through the income statement up to the acquisition cost if the increase is objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, except in relation to equity instruments, in which case the reversal is
recognised in equity.

2.7. Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements {‘repos’) at a fixed price or at the sales price plus a lender’s return are not

~derecognised.” The™ comresponding liability is-included “in amounts due to banks or to customers, as appropriate. The

difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest rate method.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (‘reverse repos®) at a fixed price or at the purchase price plus a lender’s
return are not recognised, being the purchase price paid recorded as loans and advances to banks or customers, as
appropriate. The difference between purchase and resale price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of (he
agreements using the effective interest rate method.
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Securities lent under lending agreements are not derecognised being classified and measured in accordance with the
accounting policy described in Note 2.6. Securities borrowed under borrowing agreements are not recognised in the
balance sheet.

2.8.  Financial liabilities

An instrument is classified as a financial liability when it contains a contractual obligation to fransfer cash or another
financial asset, independently from its legal form.

Non-derivatives financial liabilities include deposits from banks and due to custotners, toans, debt securities, subordinated
debt and short sales. Preference shares issued are considered to be financial liabilities when the Group assumes the
obligation of reimbursement and/or to pay dividends.

The financial liabilities are recognised (i) initially at fair value less transaction costs and (ii) subsequently at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method, except for short sales and financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

The Group designates, at inception, certain financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss when:
® Such financial liabilities are being hedged (on an economical basis), in order to eliminate an accounting
mismatch; or
¢ Such financial liabilities contain embedded derivatives.

The structured products issued by the Group meet the above mentioned conditions and, in accordance, are classified under
the fair value through profit or loss category.

The fair value of quoted financial liabilities is based on the corrent price. In the absence of a quoted price, the Group
establishes the fair value by using valvation techniques based on market information, including the own credit risk of the
issuer,

If the Group repurchases debt issued, it is derecognised from the balance sheet and the difference between the carrying
amount of the liability and its acquisition cost is recognised in the income statement.

2.9, Financiaf gnarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails te make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a deht
instrument, namely the payinent of principal and/or interests.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee is issued.
Subsequently financial guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the fair value recognised on initial recognition or (ii)
any financial obligation arising as a result of the guarantees at the balance sheet date. Any increase in the liability relating
to guarantees is taken to the income statement.

The financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group normally have a stated maturity date and a periodic fee, usually paid

in advance on a quarterly basis. This fec varies depending on the counterparty risk, the amount and the time period of the

contract. Therefore, the fair value of the financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group, at the inception date, equal the
initial fee received, which is recognised in the income statement over the period to which it relates. The subsequent
periodic fees are recognised in the income statement in period to which they relate.
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2.10.  Equity instruments

An instrument is classified as an equity instrument when it does not contain a contractual obligation to deliver cash or
another financial asset, independently from its [egal form, being a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are recognised under equity as a deduction froin
the proceeds. Amounts paid or received related to acquisitions or sales of equity instruments are recognised in equity, net
of transaction costs.

Distributions to holders of an equity instrument are debited directly to equity as dividends, when declared.

Preference shares issued are considered as equity instruments if the Group has no contractual obligation to redeem and if
dividends, non cumulative, are paid only if and when declared by the Group.

2.11. Compound financial instrinments

Non-derivative financial instruments that contain both a liability and an equity component (e.g. convertible bonds and
bonds issued with warrants) are classified as compound financial instruments. For these instruments to be considered as
compound financial instruments, the number of shares to be issued upon conversion is determined at the date of issue and
does not vary with changes in their fair value. The liability component corresponds to the present value of the future
interest and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of interest applicable to similar liabilities that do not have a
conversion option. The equity component correspoends to the difference between the proceeds of the issue and the amount
atiributed to the liability. The interest expense recognised in the income statement is caleulated using the effective interest
method.

2.12.  Offsetting financial instriments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and
settle the liability simuitancously.

2,13. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups (groups of assets to be disposed of together and related liabilities that include at least
a non-current asset) are classified as held for sale when their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale
(including those acquired exclusively with a view to its subsequent disposal), the assets or disposal groups are available for
immediate sale and is highly probable,

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the non-current assets or all assets and liabilities in a
disposal group, is brought up to date in accordance with the applicable IFRS. Subsequently, these assets or disposal group
are measured af the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, determined annually in accordance with
the applicable IFRS.

In the scope of its activity, the Group incurs in the risk from failure of the borrower to repay all the amounts due. In case of
loans and advances with morigage collateral, the Group acquires the asset held as collateral in exchange for loans. In
accordance with the requirements of Regime Geral das Instituicdes de Crédito e Sociedades Financeiras (RGICSF),
Portuguese banks are prevented, unless authorised by the Bank of Portugal, from acquiring property that is not essential to
their daily operations (no. 1 of article 112 of RGICSF) being able to acquire, however, property in exchange for loans
granted by the Group. This property must be sold within 2 years, period that may be extended by written authorization
from the Bank of Poriugal and in conditions to be determined by this authority (no, 114 of art of RGICSF),

F-26



ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP $.A,
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of enro, excepi! when indicated)

Tt is Group’s objective to immediately dispose all property acquired in exchange for loans. This property is classified as
non-current assets held-for-sale and is initially recognised at the lower of its fair value less costs to sell and the carrying
amount of the loans. Subsequently, this property is measured at the lower of its carrying amount and the corresponding fair
value less costs to sell and is not depreciated. Any subsequent write-down of the acquired property to fair value is recorded
in the income statement.

Property valuations are performed in accordance with one of the following methodologies, which are applied in
accordance with the specific situation of the asset:
a) Market Method
The Market Comparison Crileria takes as reference transaction values of similar and comparable property to the
property under valuation, obtained through market searching carried out in the zone.
b) Income Method
Under this method, the property is valued based on the capitalization of ifs net income, discounted for the
present moment, through the discounted cash-flows method.
¢) Cost Method
This method separates the value of property on its basic components: Urbane Ground Value and Urbanity
Value; Construction value; and Indirect Costs Value.

The valuations are performed by independent specialized entities. The valuation reports are analysed internally with the
gauging of processes adequacy, by experts.

2.14.  Properly and equipment

Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. At the transition date to
TFRS, 1 January 2004, the Group elected to consider as deemed cost, the revalued amount of property and equipment as
determined in accordance with previous accounting policies of the Group, which was broadly similar to depreciated cost
measured under TFRS, adjusted to reflect changes in a specific price index. The value includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. In relation to the insurance activity, the Group decided to consider as deemed
cost of its buildings for own use the fair value at transition date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s catrying amount or ate recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the year in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets is calculated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Number of years

Buildings 35t 50

Improvements in leasehold property 10

Computer equipment 4105

Furniture 4to 10

e e o -BiRbure s - S = B i 12 B RS - - - -

Security equipment 4to 10

Office equipment 410 10

Motor vehicles 4

Other equipment 5

When there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, IAS 36 requires that its recoverable amount is estimated and an
impairment loss recognised when the net book value of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the income statement.
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The recoverable amount is determined as the greater of its net selling price and value in use which is based on the net
present value of future cash flows arising from the continuing use and ultimate disposal of the asset.

2,15, Imvestinent properties

The Group classifies as investment property the property held (o earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment
property is recognised initially at cost, including transaction costs that are directly attributable expenditures, and
subsequently at their fair value. Changes in the fair value determined at each balance sheet date are recognised in the
income statement, Investment property is not amortised.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that it will give rise to future economic benefits in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of the asset.

2.16, Imtangible gssefs

The costs incurred with the acquisition, production and development of software are capitalised, as well as the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised on the basis of their expected useful
lives, which is usuatly between three to six years.

Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable specific software applications, and that will probably
generate economic benefits beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets, These costs include employee costs from
the Group companies specialised in IT directly associated with the development of the referred software.

All remaining costs associated with IT services are recognised as an expense as incurred,
2.17. Leases

The Group classifies its lease agreements as finance leases or operating leases taking into consideration the substance of
the transaction rather than its legal form, in accordance with IAS 17 — Leases. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement in the period to which they relate.

Finance leases

e Aslessee

Finance lease contracts are recorded at inception date, both under assets and liabilities, at the cost of the asset leased,
which is equal to the present value of ontstanding [ease instalments. Instalments comprise (i} an interest charge, which is
recognised in the income statemnent and (ii) the repayment of principal, which is deducted from liabilities. Financial
charges are rccognised as costs over the lease period, in order to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of liability for each period.

e Aslessor

Assels [eased out are recorded in the balance sheet as loans granted, for the amount equal to the net investinent made in the
leased assets. Interest included in instalments charged to customers is recorded as interest income, while repayments of
prineipal, also included in the instaliments, is deducted from the amount of the loans granted. The recognition of the interest
reflects a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net outstanding investment,
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2.18. Employee benefils
Pensions

To cover the liabilities assumed by the Group within the framework stipulated by the ACT “Acorda Colectivo de
Trabalho® and subsequent amendments resulting from the 3 tripartite agreements as described in Note 14 for the banking
sector in Portugal and by the CCT “Contrato Colectivo de Trabalho” for the insurance sector in Portugal, pension funds
were sct up to cover retirement benefits, including widows and orphans benefits and disability for the entire work force and
also health-care benefits for employees.

The pension liabilities and health care benefits are covered by funds that are managed by ESAF — Espirito Santo Fundos de
PensBes, S.A., a Group’s subsidiary.

The pension plans of the Group ate classified as defined benefit plans, since the criteria to detennine the pension benefit to
be received by employees on retirement are predefined and usually depend on factors such as age, years of service and
level of salary.

The pension liability is calculated semi-annually by the Group, as at 31 December and 30 June for each plan individually,
using the projected unit credit method, and reviewed annually by qualified independent actuaries. The discount rate used in
this calculation was determined with reference to market rates associated with high-quality corporate bonds issues,
denominated in the currency in which benefits will be paid and with a maturity similar to the expiry date of the plan
obligations. .

The Group determines the net interest expense (income) for the period on the net defined benefit liability (asset) by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net
defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the annual period, taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Consequently, the net interest
expense (income) includes interest cost on the defined benefit obligation net of a theoretical return on the plan assets, both
calculated using the discount rate applied in the determination of the defined benefit obligation.

Remeasurements determined semi-annually and resulting from (i) actuarial gains and losses arising from the differences
between actuarial assumptions used and real values obtained (experience adjustments) and from changes in the actuarial
assumptions and (i) gains and losses arising from the difference between theoretical return on plan assets and actual
investment returns, are recognised in Other comprehensive income.

At each period, the Group recognises as a cost in the income statement an amount that comprises (i) the service cost, (if)
net interest expense (income), (iii) past service costs and (iv) the effect of settlement or curtailment occurred during the
period.

ESFG and its subsidiaries make payments to the fund in order to maintain its solvency and to comply with the following
minimum levels: (i) the liability with pensioners shall be totally funded at the end of each year, and (ii) the liability related
to past services cost with employees in service shall be funded at a minimum level of 95%.

The Group assesses at each reporting date and for each plan separately, the recoverability of any recognised asset in

T relﬁtiﬁt@ftlié"déﬁned’beneﬁt'pension'plans;based'on'the'expectation*ot‘reductions—in'ﬁJture'contributionsto—the—funds.rr S

Healih care benefils

The Group provides to its banking employees health care benefits through a specific Social-Medical Assistance Service.
This Social-Medical Assistance Service (SAMS) is an autonomous entity which is managed by the respective Union.

SAMS provides to its beneficiaries services and/or contributions on medical assistance expenses, diagnostics, medicines,
hospital confinement and surgical operations, in accordance with its financing availability and internal regulations.
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The annual contribution of the Group fo SAMS amounts to 6.5% of the total annual remuneration of employees, including,
among others, the holiday and Christmas subsidy.

The measurement and recognition of the Group’s liability with post-retirement healthcare benefits is simifar to the
measurement and recognition of the pension liability described above.

These benefits are covered by the Pension Fund which at present covers all responsibilities with pensions and health care
benefits.

Long term service benefits

In accordance with the ACT "Acordo Colectivo de Trabalho" for the banking sector, BES Group has assumed the
commitment to pay to current employees that achieve 15, 25 and 30 years of service within the Group, long-term service
premiums corresponding, respectively, to 1, 2 and 3 months of their effective monthly remuneration earned at the date the
premiums are paid.

At the date of early retirement or disability, employees have the right to a premium proportional to what they would earn if
they remained in service until the next payment date.

These long term service benefits are accounted for by the Group in accordance with IAS 19 as other long-term employee
benefits.

The liability with long term service benefits is calculated semi-annually, at the balance sheet date, by the Group using the
projected unit credit method. The actuarial assumptions used are based on the expectations about future salary increases
and mortality tables. The discount rate used in this calculation is determined based on the same methodology described
above for pensions.

In each period, the increase in the liability for long term service premiums, including actuarial gains and losses and past
service costs is charged to the income statement.

Share hased paymenis — Stock option plan

In 2008, ESFG set-up a stock option plan that allows certain employees to acquire ESFG shares, or alternatively to require
a cash payment equivalent o the appreciation of ESFG share market price above the sirike price.

The options granted to employees may be exercised after their first anniversary and during a ten year period,

This share based payment plan is within the scope of IFRS 2 — Share based payments and corresponds to a cash settlement
share based payment.

The fair value of this benefit plan at inception, determined at its grant date, was taken to the income statement as staft costs
over a period of one year. The recognised liability under the plan is re-measured at each balance sheet date, being the fair
value changes recognised in the income statement under the caption staff costs.

Following the tecommendations of the Supervising and Regulatory authorities, on the BES sharcholder’s General Meeting,
held in 6 April 2010 it was approved a new remuneration policy for BES Executive Committee members. This new
remuneration policy is described in Note 14,

The component of the variable remuneration paid in cash is accounted for following IAS 19 — Employee benefits, in the
period to which it relates.

The component of the variable remuneration paid with equity instruments is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2—
Share based payments. The fair value of this benefit plan at inception, determined at its grant date, is taken to the income
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staternent as staff costs over the vesting period. The recognised liability under the plan is re-measured at each balance sheet
date, being the fair value changes recognised in the income statement.

Bonus fo employee

In accordance with TAS 19 — Employee benefits, the bonus payment to employees are recognised in the income statement
in the year to which they relate.

2.19. Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. Income tax
recognised directly in equity relating to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale financial assets and cash flow
hedges is subsequently recognised in the income statement when gains or losses giving rise to the income tax are also
recognised in the income statement,

Current tax is the tax expected to be paid on the taxable profit for the year, calculated using tax rates enacied or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date at each jurisdiction,

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financia! reporting purposes and their respective tax basis, and is calculated using the
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in any jurisdiction and that are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except for goodwill, not deductible for tax
purposes, differences arising on initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that probably they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be deducted.

The Group offsets deferred taxes assets and liabilities for each subsidiary, whenever (i) the subsidiary has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and (ii) they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority. This offset is therefore performed at each subsidiary level, being the deferred tax asset presented
in the consolidated balance sheet the sum of the subsidiaries’ amounts which present deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liability presented in the consolidated balance sheet the sum of the subsidiaries® amounts which present deferred tax
ligbilities.

2.20. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: (i) the Group has present legal or constructive obligation, (i) it is probable that settlement
will be required in the future and (jii) a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

When the effect of the passage of time (discount) is material, the provision corresponds to the net present value of the
expected future payments, discounted at an appropriate rate considering the risk associated to the obligation.

Restructuring provisions are recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan and such
restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publicly.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are
lower than the unavoidable costs of mesting its obligation under the confract. The provision is measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net costs of continuing with the
contract.

2.21. Inferest income and expense
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Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement under interest and similar income and interest expense
and similar charges for all non-derivative financial instruments measured at amortised cost and for the available-for-sale
financial assets, using the effective interest rate method. Interest income arising from non-derivative financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is also included under interest and similar income or interest expense and
similar charges, respectively.

The efTective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. The effective interest rate is calculated at inception and it is not subsequently revised, except in what
concems financial assets and liabilities with a variable interest rate, Tn this case the effective interest rate is periodically
revised, having in consideration the impact of the change in the reference interest rate in the estitnated future cash-flows.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
ail fees and commissions paid or received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums or discounts,

In the case of financial assets or groups of similar financial assets for which an impairment loss was recognised, interest
income is calculated using the interest rate used to measure the impairment loss.

For derivative financial instruments, except for derivatives for risk management purposes (see Note 2.4), the interest
component of the changes in their fair value is not separated out and is classified under net gains/(losses) from financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The interest component of the changes in the fair value of
derivatives for risk inanagement purposes is recognised under interest and similar income or interest expense and similar
charges.

2.22. Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are recognised as follows:

* Fees and commissions that are earned on the exccution of a significant act, as loan syndication fees, are
recognised as income when the significant act has been completed;

® Fees and commissions earned over the period in which the services are provided are recognised as income in the
period the services are provided;

® Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of a financial instrument are
recognised as income using the effective interest rate method.

2.23. Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established,
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2.24.  Fiducinry activities

Assets held in the scope of the fiduciary activity are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Fee and commissions arising from this activity are recognised in the income statement in the period to which they relate.

2.25. Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that contain insurance risk, financial risk or a combination of both insurance and financial risk.
A contract, under which the Group accepts significant insurance risk from another party, by agreeing to compensate that
party on the occurrence of a specified uncertain future event, is classified as an insurance contract.

A contract issued by the Group without significant insurance risk, but on which financial risk is transferred with
discretionary participating features is classified as investment contract recognised and measured in accordance with the
accounting policies applicable to insurance contracts. A contract issued by the Group that transfers only financial risk,
without discretionary participating features, is classified as an investment contract and accounted for as a financial
instrument.

The financial assets held by the Group to cover the liabilities arising under insurance and investment contracts are
classified and accounted for in the same way as other Group financial assets.

Tnsurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participating features are recognised and measured as
follows:

Premiums

Gross written premiums are recognised for as income in the period to which they respect, in accordance with the accrual
accounting principle.

Reinsurance premiums ceded are accounted for as expense in the period to which they respect in the same way as gross
written premiums. .

Unearned premium reserve

The reserve for uncamed gross written premiums and reinsurance ceded premiums reflects the part of the written
premiums before the end of the period for which the risk period continues after the end of the period. This reserve is
calculated using the pro-rata temporis method applied to each contract in force.

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs that are directly or indirectly related to the selling of insurance and investment contracts with
discretionary participating features are capitalized and deferred through the life of the contracts. Deferred acquisition costs
are subject to recoverability testing at the time of the insurance policy or investment contract is issued and subject o
impairment test (liability adequacy test} at each reporting date.

-GS 1eSerVes — — — ol
Claims outstanding reflects the estimated total outstanding liability for reported claims and for incurred but not reported
claims (IBNR). Reserves for both reported and not reported claims are estimated by management based on experience and
available data using statistical methods. Additionally, claims reserve also includes an estimation related with future costs

with claims settlement (“expense reserve™).

The mathematical reserves relating to obligations to pay life pensions resulting from workmen’s compensation claims is
caleulated by using actuarial assumptions, with reference to recognised actuarial methods and current labour legislation.

Claims reserves are not discounted, except life pensions arising from workmen’s compensation claims.
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Unexpired risk reserve

The reserve for unexpired risks represents the amount by which expected claims and administrative expenses likely to arise
after the end of the period, from contracts concluded before that date, exceeds the unearned premiums reserve, any
expected future premiums expected to be written under those contracts and from premiums renewed on January next year.

Life assurance reserve

The life assurance reserve reflects the present value of the Group's future obligations arising from life policies (insurance
contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participating features) written and is calculated in accordance with
recognised actuarial methods within the scope of applicable legislation.

Reserve for bonus and rebates

The reserve for bonus and rebates corresponds to the amounts attributed to policyholders or beneficiaries of insurance or
investment contracts, in the form of profit participation, which have not yet been specifically atlocated and included in the
life assurance reserve.

Liability adequacy test

At each reporiing date, the Group performs a liability adequacy test to the insurance and investment contracts with
discretionary participating features liabilities, The assessment of the liabilities is performed using the best estimate of
future cash flows under each contract. The liability adequacy test is performed product by product or aggregate basis when
contracts are subject to broadly similar risks and managed as a single portfolio. Any deficiency determined, if exists, is
recognised directly through income.

Shadow accounting

Tn accordance with IFRS 4, the unrealised gains and losses on the assets covering liabilities arising out from insurance and
investment contracts with discretionary participating features are attributable to policyholders, to the extent that it is
expected that policyholders will participate on those unrealised gains and [osses when they became realised in accordance
with the terms of the contracts and applicable legislation, by recording those amounts under [iabilities.

2.26. Seginent reporting

The Group adopts IFRS 8 — Segmental reporting, for the disclosure of the financial information by operating segments (see
Note 4).

An operating segment is a component of an entity (i} that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity);
(i) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and (jii) for which discrete financial information is
available.

The results of the operating segments are periodically reviewed by the Management for decisions taking purposes. The
~— -~ —--Group prepares-on a-regular- basis,-financial information-regarding- the- operating-segments;- which is-reported-to the- -
Management.

A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are
subject to risks and return that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.
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" “one or more events have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of tliese assets.
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2.27. Earniugs per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income available to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, excluding the average number of ordinary shares purchased by
the Group and held as treasury stock.

For the diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding is adjusted to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, such as convertible debt and share options granted to employees.
Potential or contingent share issuances are treated as dilutive when their conversion to shares would decrease net earnings
per share.

2.28. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’
maturity from the inception date, including cash and deposits with banks.

Cash and cash equivalents exclude restricted balances with central banks,

NOTE 3 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

IFRS set forth a range of accounting treatments and require management to apply judginent and make estimates in
deciding which treatment is most appropriate. The most significant of these accounting policies are discussed in this
section in order to improve understanding of how their application affects the Group’s reported results and related
disclosure. A broader description of the accounting policies applied by the Group is shown in Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Because in many cases there are other alternatives to the accounting treatment chosen by management, the Group’s
reported results would differ if a different treatment were chosen. Management believes that the choices made by it are
appropriate and that the consolidated financial statements present the Group’s consolidated financial position and results
fairly in all material respects.

3.1, Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group determines that available-for-sale financial assets are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost or when it has identified an event with impact on the estiinated future cash flows of
the assets. This determination requires judgenient, based on all available relevant information, including the normal
volatility of the financial instruments prices.

Therefore, for equity securities, considering the high volatility of the markets, a decline (i) over 30% in market value in
relation to the acquisition cost generally is regarded by the Group as significant and (ii) that persists for more than 12
maonths is generally regarded as prolonged. Debt securities are considered to be impaired if there is objectlve ewdence that

In addition, valuations are generally obtained through market quotation or valuation models that may require assumpttons
or judgment in making eslimates of fair value.

Alternative methodologies and the use of different assumptions and estimates could result in a higher level of impairment
losses recognised with a consequent impact in the income statement of the Group.
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3.2, Fairvalue of derivatives and other asseis and liabilities af fair value

Fair values are based on listed market prices if available; otherwise fair value is determined either by dealer price
quotations (both for that transaction or for similar instruments traded) or by pricing models, based on net present value of
estimated future cash flows which take into account market conditions for the underlying instruments, time value, yield
curve and volatility factors. These pricing models may require assumptions or judgments in estimating fair values.

Consequently, the use of a different model] or of different assumptions or judgments in applying a particular inodel may
have produced different financial results from the ones reported.

3.3, Impairment losses on loans and advances
The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment on a regular basis, as described in Note 2.5.

The evaluation process in determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement is subject fo
numercus estimates and judgments. The frequency of default, risk ratings, loss recovery rates and the estimation of both
the amount and timing of future cash flows, among other factors, arc considered in making this evaluation.

Alternative methodologies and the use of different assumptions and estimates could result in a different level of
impairment losses with a consequent impact in the consolidated income statement of the Group.

3.4.  Goodwill impairment

Goodwill recoverable amount recognised as an asset of the Group is revised annually regardless the existence of
impairment losses.

For this purpose, the carrying amount of the business units of the Group for which goodwill has been recognised is
compared with the respective recoverable amount. A goodwill impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of
the business unit exceeds the respective recoverable amount.

In the absence of an available market value, the recoverable amount is determined using cash flows/ dividends predictions,
applying a discount rate that includes a risk premium appropriated to the business unit being tested. The determination of
future cash flows to discount and the discount rate involves judgement,

Changes in the expected cash flows and in the discount rate may lead (o different conclusions from those that led to the
preparation of these financial statements.

3.5, Securitisations and special purpose entities (SPE)

The Group sponsors the formation of special purpose entities (SPEs) primarily for asset securitisation transactions and for
liquidity purposes.

The Group does not consolidate SPEs that it does not control. As it can sometimes be difficult to deterinine whether the
Group does control an SPE, it makes judgements about its exposure to the risks and rewards, as well as about its ability to
- make operational decisions-for-the SPE in question (see Note 2.2). - - —— — - - - oo

The determination of the SPEs that needs to be consolidated by the Group requires the use of estimates and assumptions in
determining the respective expected residual gains and losses and which party retains the majority of such residual gains
and losses. Different estimates and assumptions could lead the Group to a different scope of consolidation with a direct
impact in net income.

3.6. Held-fo-maturity investinents

‘The Group follows the guidance of IAS 39 on classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant judgement.
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In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group
fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for the specific circmnstances -- for example, selling an insignificant
amount close to maturity — it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale. The investments would
therefore be measured at fair value instead of amortised cost.

Held-to-maturity investmenis are subject to impairment tests made by the Group. The use of different assumptions and
estimates could have an impact on the income statement of the Group.

3.7. Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant interpretations and estimates are required in
determining the worldwide amount for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax deternination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.

Different interpretations and estimates would result in a different level of income taxes, current and deferred, recognised in
the period.

The Tax Authorities are entitled to review the Portuguese Group entities® determination of annual taxable earnings, for a
period of four years or six years in case there are tax losses brought forward. The determination of annual tax eamings by
other Group entities (located outside Portugal) can also be subject to similar reviews by their respective tax authorities.
Hence, it is possible that some additional taxes may be assessed, mainly as a result of differences in interpretation of the
tax law. However, the Board of Directors of the Company and those of its subsidiaries, are confident that there will be no
material differences arising from fax assessments within the context of the financial statements.

The Company itself is subject fo the peneral tax regulations applicable to Luxembourg commercial companies. The
applicable tax rate is 29.22% (31 December 2012: 29.22%).

3.8.  Pension and other employces’ benefits

Determining pension liabilities requires the use of assumptions and estimates, including the use of actvarial projections,
estimated returns on investiment, and other factors that could impact the cost and liability of the pension plan.

Changes in these assumptions could materially affect these values.
3.9, Insurance and inveshinent contracts labilities

Insurance and investment contracts liabilities represent liabilities for future insurance policy benefits. Insurance reserves
for traditional life insurance, annuities, and workinen’s compensation policies have been calculated based upon mortality,
morbidity, persistency and interest rate assumptions applicable to those coverage. The assumnptions used reflect the
Groups® and market experience and may be revised if it is determined that future experience will differ substantially from
that previously assumed. Insurance and investinent contracts liabilities include: (i) unearned premiums reserve, (if) life
mathematical reserve, (iii} reserve for bonus and rebates, (iv} unexpired risk reserve, (v) liability adequacy test and (vi)
claims reserves. Claims reserves include estimated provisions for both reported and unreported claims incurred and related

expenses.————— — - — = — — . B — e

When claims are made by or against policyholders, any amounts that the Group pays or expects to pay are recorded as
losses. The Group establishes reserves for payment of losses for claims that arise from its insurance and investment
contracts.

In determining their insurance reserves and investment contracts liabilities, the Group's insurance companies perform a
p

continuing review of their overall positions, their reserving techniques and their reinsurance coverage, The reserves are
also reviewed periodicatly by qualified actuaries.
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The Group maintains property and casualty loss reserves to cover the estimated ultimate unpaid liability for losses with
respect to both reported and not reported claims incurred as of the end of each accounting year.

Claims reserves do not represent an exact calculation of liability, but instead represent estimates, generally using actuarial
valuations/techniques. These reserve estimates are expectations of what the ultimate settlement of claims is likely to cost
based on an assessment of facts and circuinstances then known, a review of historical settlement patterns, estimates of
trends in ¢laims severity, frequency, legal theories of liability and other factors. Variables in the reserve estimation process
can be affected by both internal and external events, such as changes in claims handling procedures, economic inflation,
legal trends and legislative changes. Many of these items are not directly quantifiable, particularly on a prospective basis.
Additionally, there may be significant reporting lags between the occurrence of the insured event and the time it is actually
reported to the insurer. Reserve estimates are continually reviewed in a regular ongoing process as historical loss
experience develops and additional claims are reported and settled.

NOTE 4 - SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Group activities are focused primarily on the banking and insurance sectors and are directed to companies, institutional and
private customers. The Group’s principal operating subsidiaries are located in Portugal, which makes it its privileged
market. The historical link with Brazil and Aftica, the globalization of the Portuguese companies and the Portuguese
emigration to several countries, led to an intemationalisation of the Group, which already has an international structure
contributing significantly to the Group’s activities and results. The Group is also active in Portugai in the health-care
management business.

The Group’s products and services include deposits, loans to retail and corporate customers, fund management, broker and
custodian services, investment banking services, as well as the issuance and commercialisation of life and non-life
insurance products. Additionally, the Group makes short, medium and long term investments in the financial and currency
exchange markets with the objective of taking advantages from the prices changes or to have a return from its available
resources.

The Group has BES as its inain banking operating unit - with 636 branches in Portugal and with branches in London, New
York, Spain (25 branches), Nassau, Cayman Islands, Cape Verde, Venezuela, Luxembourg and Madeira Free Zone and 15
representation offices - with BES Investmento (investment banking), BES Angola (41 branches), BES Agores (18
branches), Banco BEST (11 branches), Espirito Santo Bank, BES Oriente, Aman Bank, BES Cape Verde, BES Véndtie,
Espirito Santo Activos Financeiros (ESAF), ES Bank Panama, ES Bank Dubai and Banque Privée Espitito Santo.
Tranquilidade, Logo and BES Seguros are the Group’s non-life operating unit while T-Vida and BES-Vida are active in
life-insurance.

When evaluating the performance by business area, the Group considers the following Operating Segments: (1) Domestic
Commercial Banking, including Retail, Corporate, Institutional and Private Banking; (2) Asset Management;
(3) International Commercial Banking including Private banking; (4) Investnent Banking; (5) Capital Markets and
Strategic Investments; (G) Non-Life Insurance; (7)Life Insurance; (8) Health-care management and (9) Corporative
Centre. Each segment includes the Group structures that directly or indirectly relate to it, and also the other units of the
Group whose activities are most related to one of these segments. The performance of each operating unit of the Group
(considered as an investment centre) is evaluated individually.

" Complementary, the Group, uses a segmentation of its activities and results according o geographic crileria, segregating

the activity and the results generated from the units located in Portugal (domestic activities) from the units located abroad
{international activities).
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4.1.  Operating Segnents Description
Each of the operating segments includes the following activities, products, customers and Group structures:
Domestic Commercial Banking

This operating segment includes all the banking activity with corporate and institutional customers developed in Portugal,
based in the branch offices network, corporate centres and other channels and includes the following:

a) Retail: corresponds to all activity developed by BES in Portugal with private customers and small business,
fundamentally originated by the branches network, agent network and electronic channels. The financial information of the
segment relates to, among other products and services, mortgage loans, consumer credit, financing the clients’ activity,
deposits repayable on demand and term deposits, retirement plans and other insurance products to private customers,
commissions over account management and electronic payments, the investment funds cross-selling and brokerage and
custodian setvices.

b) Corporate and Institutional: includes BES activities in Portugal with small, medium and large companies, through its
commercial structure dedicated to this segment, which includes 24 corporate centres. Also includes activities with
institutional and municipal customers. The main products considered on this segment are: discounted bills, leasing,
factoring and short and long term loans; includes deposits and guarantees, custodian services, letters of credit, electronic
payments management and other services.

¢) Private Banking: includes private banking activity in Portugal, all profit, loss and assets and liabilities associated to
customers classified as private by the Group in Portugal. The main products considered on this segment are: deposits;
discretionary management, selling of investment funds, custodian services, brokerage services and insurance products.

Asset Management

This segment includes the asset management activities developed by ESAF in Portugal and abroad (Spain, Brazil, Angola,
Luxembourg and United Kingdom). ESAF’s products include all types of funds - investment funds, real estate funds and
pension funds, and also includes discretionary management services and porifolio management.

Internalional Commercial Banking

This operating segment includes the units located abroad, which banking activities are focused on corporate, retail
customers and private banking, excluding investment banking and asset management, which are integrated in the
corresponding segments.

Among the units comprising this segment are BES Angola and Spain, London and New York Branches of BES, ES
Bankers Dubai, ES Bank Panama and Banque Privée. The main products included in this segment are deposits, credit,
asset Inanagement fees, leveraged finance, structured trade finance and project finance operations.

Investment Banking

This segment includes assets, liabilities, profits and losses of the operating units that consolidate in BES Investimento,
“which comprises all the investment banking activitics of the Group originated in Portugal and abroad. In addition to the

lending activity, deposits and other forms of funding, it includes advisory services, mergers and acquisitions, restructuring

and debt consolidation, initial public offerings (shares and bonds), brokerage and other investment banking services.
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Capital Markels and Strategic Invesiments

This segment includes the financial managenent of the Group, namely the investments in capital inarkets instruments
(equity and debt), whether they are integrated in irading, fair value, available for sale or held to maturity financial assets
portfolios. Also included in this segment is the Group’s investment in non-controlling strategic positions, as well as all the
activity inherent to interest rate and exchange rate risk management, long and short positions on financial instruments
management, which allow the Group o take advantage of the price changes in those markets where these instruments are
exchanged.

Non-Life Insurance

This segment includes the activities of Tranquilidade and Logo in the non-life insurance sector as well as the Group’s
participation in the activities of its associated companies, BES-Seguros and Europ-Assistance.

Life nsurance
This segment includes the activities of T-Vida and BES Vida in the life insurance sector.
Health-care management

This segment includes the Group’s activities in the management of hospitals, outpatient clinics, residential hospitals and
senior citizen residences through ES Safide. Considering the loss of control over ES Satide occurred in 2012 (see Note 55)
this segment was discontinued on ESFG perspective.

Corporative Cenire

This area does not correspond fo an operating segment. It refers to an aggregation of corporative structures acting
throughout the entire Group, such as Representative Office in London, areas related to the Board of Directors, Compliance,
Financial and Accounting, Risk management, Investor Relations, Internal Audit, Organization and Quality, among others.
It also includes the corporate borrowings of the Group.

4.2, Allocation criteria of the activity and resulls fo the operaling segments

The financial information presented for each segment was prepared in accordance with the criteria followed for the
preparation of internal information analysed by the decision makers of the Group, as required by IFRS.

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial information related with the operating segments are
consistent with the ones used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, which are described in Note 2,
having been adopted the following principles.

Measurement of profit or loss from operating segments

The Group uses net income before taxes as the measure of profit or loss for evaluating the performance of each operating

Autonomous Operating Segmenls
As mentioned above, each operating unit (subsidiaries and associated entities) is evaluated separately, as these units are

considered investment centres. Additionally, considering the characteristics of the business developed by these units, they
are fully included in one of the operating segments, assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses.
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ESFG structures dedicated to segments

The activity of BES, ESFG’s main subsidiary, comprises most of its operating segments and therefore its activity is
disaggregated.

For the purpose of allocating the financial information, the following principles are used: (i) the origin of the operation,
(ii) the type of product or service rendered; (iif) the segment to which the commercial and central structures are dedicated
to; (iv) the Cost Based Approach {CBA) model and other specific drivers in the allocation of indirect cost {central support
and 1T services); (vi) the impairment model in the allocation of credit risk; (vii) total equity is allocated to the capital
markets and strategic investments segment.

The transactions between the independent and autonomnous units of the Group are made at market prices; the price of the
services befween the structures of each unit, namely the price established for funding between units, is determined by a
margin process (which vary in accordance with the strategic relevance of the product and the balance between funding and
lending); the remaining internal transactions are allocated to the segments in accordance with CBA without any margin
from the supplier.

The interest rate risk, exchange risk, liquidity risk and others, except for credit risk, are included in the Financial
Department, whose mission is to make the Group’s financial management. The related activity and results are included in
Capital Markets and Strategic Investments segment,

Interest and similar incomelexpense

Since the Group’s activities are mainly related to the financial sector and the majority of the segments revenues are from
interest, the Group relies primarily on net interest revenue to assess the performance of the segment and to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment. As such and as permitted by IFRS 8 paragraph 23, the Group reports
segments interest revenue net of its interest expense.

Consolidated Invesiments under the Equity Method

Investments in associated companies consolidated under the equity method are included in the operating segment they
relate to. Associates not ditectly related to a specific operating segment are included in the Capital Markets and Strategic
Investments seginent.

Non current assels

Non current assets, according to IFRS 8, include Other Tangible Assets and Intangible Assets. BES includes these assets
on the Capital Markets and Strategic Investments segment; the non current assets held by the subsidiaries are allocated to
the segment in which these subsidiaries develop their business.

Income taxes

Income tax is a part of the Group net income but does not affect the evaluation of most of the Operating Segments.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are included in the Capital Markets and Strategic Investments segment.

Post Employment Benefits

Assets under post employment benefits are managed in a similar way to deferred income taxes assets, and are included in
the Capital Markets and Strategic Tnvestments segment. The factors that influence the amount of responsibilities and the
amount of the funds’ assets cotrespond, mainly, to external elements; it is Group’s policy not to include these factors on
the performance evaluation of the operating segments, which activities relate to customers.
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Domestic and International Aveas

In the disclosure of financial information by geographical areas, the operating units that comprise the International Area
are: BES Angola and its branches, BES Oriente, Espirito Santo Bank, ES Bankers Dubai, ES Bank Panama, Banque Privée
Espirito Santo, Espirito Santo Vénétie, Banco Delle Tre Venezie, ESFIL, London, Spain, New York and Cape Verde,
Venezuela and Luxembourg branches of BES, and the operating units located abroad from BES Investimento and ESAF.

The financial elements related to the International Area are presented in the financial statements of those units with the
respective consolidation and elimination adjustments.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 - (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of eniro, except when indicated)

NOTE 5 - NET INTEREST INCOME

This balance is analysed as follows:

Interest and similar income

interest from loans and advances

Tnlerest [tom deposils with banks

Interesi from financial assels at fzir value through profit or loss
Tnterest from avaitable-for-sale [mancial assets

Interesl framheld to malungy

Interest framdenivalives forrisk management purposes

Orher inferest and similar ngoms

Interest expense and similar charges

Interest fiomdebt securilies

Interes! fromamounts due {0 customers

Interest fromdepasits from central banks and ¢lher banks
Interest [romsubordinated debt

Interest from derivalives fernsk management purposes
Olherinlerest expenses and similar charges

31122013 31122012
-As.s_efsl Assels / .As.!'e!sl Assels ]
Linkilities at o ratsis Liabilifies al opai
: Liabilities at - Liatilities at
amortised cost . amorfised cost .
" fair value Totat . (air value Tolal
and available- \hrough profil and available- throush profit
for-sale gl profl for-sale ougl proft
financhal assels orloss Ninanclal assels orioss
(in {bousamds of enra)
2431191 14 187 2445378 2675102 81367 2 683 469
47499 807 43306 27021 39 072
- 255526 253526 - 256 548 256 548
395917 - 395917 355253 - 555253
53305 . 53305 54813 . 51813
- 3954714 195474 - 456012 459012
35350 - 35350 57214 - 57814
2963 262 665 994 3629256 3370005 727 676 4097 681
(799351) {67 14} ( 866 485) {936 619) (37431 (924 130)
(971471) (49321) (1020792 (1006 421} (3159 (1039 585)
(330 756) (11 843) (342 599) {411 528) (11028) (422 556)
(97735) - {97735) {95 365) - {9536%)
- (195 462) (195 462) - (343 532) {343 532)
(13 688) - {13 688) (7292) - {7292)
@213 001) (323 760) {2536 761) {2407 255) {425 205) {2 832 460)
750 261 342234 1092 495 962 750 102471 12651221

Tnterest from loans and advances includes an amount of euro 103 082 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 78 290
thousand) related to the unwind of discount regarding the impairment losses of loans and advances to customers that

are overdue (see Note 26).

Interest from derivatives for risk management purposes includes, in accordance with the accounting policy described
in Notes 2.4 and 2.21, interest from hedging derivatives and from derivatives used to manage the risk of certain
financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with the
accounting policies described in Notes 2.5, 2.6 and 2.8.

NOTE 6 - NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amonnts expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

This balance is analysed as follows:

31.12,2013 31.12,2012

(in thensands of euro)

Fee and commission income

From banking services 489 804 604 676
From guarantees granted 258 469 233432
From transactions with securities 73 154 64 287
From commitments assumed to third parties 28 942 38774
Other fee and commission income 76391 93 977
926760 1 035 146
Fee and commission expenses

From banking services rendered by third parties (83 749) (79 555)
From transactions with securitics (21 43%) (26 571)
From guarantees received (70 054) {59 819)
Other fee and commission expensec (28 336) (19 587)
(203 628) (185 532)

723132 849614

Fee and commission expenses from guarantees received includes as at 31 December 2013, the amount of euro 60.6
million (31 December 2012: euro 58.5 million) related with the guarantees received from the Portuguese
government in relation with the debt issued by the Group.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROU?P S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued}
(Amounts expressed in thonsands of euro, except when indicated)

NOTE 7 -

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

This balance is analysed as follows:

Frading assels and liabilites
Securities
Bonds and other lbed income securities
Tssued by government and public entities
Issued by other entities

Shares

Oiher varable income securities

Derivalive financial instruments
Exchange rate contracls
Tnterest rate contracts
Equity/Index conlracis
Credit default contracts
Other

Financial asse(s and {lablllties al fair value
through profit or loss
Securilies
Bonds and other fixed income securities
Issued by govemment and public enlities
Issued by olher entities

Shares

Other variable income securities

Financial assets

Loans and advances to customers

Financial Yiabilities

Deposils from banks
Due to cusfomers
Debt sceurities issued
Invesiment coniracls
Subordinated debt

NET (LLOSSES) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Gains Losses Total Gains Lasses Total
(in thousands of eure)

90728 { 164 298) {73 570} 943283 {723 240) 220043
20787 (12 6049) 2183 13243 (26 149) (12 906)

43 638 (62 182) (18 544) 43 947 (47 763) (3816)
1167 {1552) { 385) 1185 (1149 36
156320 {240 636) {84 316) 1 001 658 {798 301) 203 357
2813 561 {2 815 009) {1448) 1 040 084 (1038 8356) 1228
5408 052 {5553 884} { 145 815) 4956 739 {4911219) 45 520
2152703 {2 167 803} {15 100) 1342619 (1325 590) 17029
506 019 {539 289) (33 270) 753 554 (783 848) (30299)
31183 {22 206) 8977 107 646 421859 150 505
10911535 (11098 {91} {186 6586) 8 200 642 (8 016 645) 183 997
11 067 855 (11338 827) (270972) 9202 300 (8 814 946) 387 354
63712 (37593) 26119 &1 358 (2654) 61 704
2049451 (2020370) 2908j 187 507 {111 519) 75988
270 543 (263 270) 1213 2025 (5812) (3787)
2472179 {2 420 908} 51271 120 699 (189 515) (68 816)

4 855 885 {4 742 141) 113 744 374 589 (309 500) 65089
36 605 {1577%) 20826 8768 (9 406) { 638)

36 605 (15779 20826 8768 (9 496) { 638)
17887 - 17887 1091 (25228) {24 137y
92014 ( 50 506) 41 508 57034 ( 168 007) {110973)

44 449 (94 505) {50 056} 173 {267 531) ( 196358)

63 857 {231 7648 { 167 907) 71859 (247914) { 176 055)

- - - 2715 {1759) 956

218207 (376 115) (158 568) 203 872 (710 439) (506 567)
5110697 (5 134 695) (23 998) 387229 (1029 345) {442 116}
~ 1s178552 (16473 522) (294 970) 7 9789 529 (9 844 291) {54 762)

0 jncludes the fair valee change of hedged assels and liabilities and of assels and fiabililies at fair valve {hrough profit or lass

As at 31 December 2013, this balance includes a negative effect of euro 73.3 million related to the change in fair
value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, attributable to the Group’s credit risk
component (31 December 2012: negative effect of euro 35.2 million).

In accordance with the accounting policies followed by the Group, financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value. The best evidence of the fair value of the instrument at inception is deemed to be the transaction price.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

However, in particular circumstances, the fair value of a financial instrument at inception, determined based on a
valuation techniques, may difTer from the transaction price, namely due to the existence of a built-in fee, originating
a day one profit,

The Group recognises in the income statement the gains arising from the built-in fee (day one profif), generated,
namely, on the trading of foreign exchange financial products, considering that the fair value of these instruments at
inception and on subsequent measurements is determined only based on observable market data and reflects the
Group access to the wholesale market,

In 2013, the gains recognised in the income statement arising from the built-in fee amounted to approximately euro
13 691 thousand (2012: euro 14 587 thousand) being substantially related to foreign exchange (ransactions.

NOTE 8 - NET GAINS FROM AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

This balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Gains Losses Total Gains Losses Total

(in thousands of euro)
Bonds and other fixed income secutilies

Issued by govemment and public entities 384 609 (21315) 362794 821775 (24 937) 796 838
Issued by ofher entities 21 865 (19618) 2247 81219 (661135) 15104
Shares 84 706 ( 17055) 61651 46 541 (250272) (203731
Olher variable income securilics 31657 (12 700) 18957 14282 [(16925) (2643)
522 837 (71 188) 451 649 963 817 (358249) 605 568

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group sold at market prices through the stock exchange, 77.4 miilion
ordinary shares of EDP, this transaction generated a realised net gain of euro 53.7 million (euro 14.7 million net of
non-controlling interest) {see Note 24).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group sold at market prices through the stock exchange, 96.4 million
ordinary shares of EDP and 260.7 million ordinary shares of Portugal Telecom. These transactions generated a
realised net Joss of euro 224.9 million (euro 61.5 million net of non-controliing interest) (see Note 24).

NOTE 9 - NET (LOSSES) FROM FOREIGN EXCHANGE DIFFERENCLS

This balance is analysed as follows:

Jdi2a2013 0 . B L 31.12.2012
Gains Losscs Total Gains Losses Total
(in thousamls of enre)
Foreign exchange Lranslation 943 107 (945 795) (2688) 1048 822 (1067 151) (18369)
543 107 (945 795) {1688) 1048822 (I 067 191) (18 369)

This balance includes the exchange differences arising on translating monetary assets and liabilities at the exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.3.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP $.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

NOTE 10-  NET (LOSSES) FROM THE SALE OF OTHER ASSETS

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Loans and advances to customers (20 738) {39507
Non-current assets lield for sale (52261) (6382)
Other 5936 3316

(67 063) (42 573)

As at 31 December 2013, Loans and advances to customers inchide a loss of euro 0.1 million related to the sale of
euro 63 million of credits realised within the deleverage program of the Group (31 December 2012: loss of euro 29.6
million related to the sale of euro 262 millions of credits).

NOTE 11- INSURANCE EARNED PREMIUMS, NET OF REINSURANCE

The insurance carned premiums, net of reinsurance, can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Gross premiums written 814 756 468 168
Reinsurance premiums ceded (122122} (63 990)
Net premiums written 692 634 404 178

Change in the provision for unearned premiums,
net of reinsurance 2034 3 454
694 668 407 632

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)

(Amounts expressed in thonsands of etiro, except when indicated)

The direct insurance written and earned premiums are analysed as follows:

Life
Non-life:
Direct Business
Accident and health
Fire and hazards
Motor
Maritime, airline and transportation
Third party liability
Credil and surety ship
Other

Tolal

Reinsurance accepted

The reinsurance ceded premiums are analysed as follows:

Life
Non-life:
Direct Business
Accident and Health
Fire and hazards
Motor
Maritime, airline and transportation
Third party liability
Credit and surety ship
Other

Total

Reinsurance accepted

31.12,2013 31.12,2012
Written Earned Written Earned
preminms preminms preiums premiums
(in thousands of enro)

469 18 468 292 114 730 114 079

101 563 100 067 100 660 101 281

64 205 64 754 64 100 63 563

144 410 148 904 1537713 156 705

77194 7621 6878 6672

11 499 11384 11080 11162

51 42 40 43

15715 16 049 16 086 16 039

814 355 817113 467 397 469 544

401 368 771 764

814 756 817 481 468 168 470 308
31.12,2013 31.12.2012

Written Earned Written Earned
premiuims premiums premiums premiunis
(in thousands of curo}

64 294 64293 8681 8118

4097 3744 3348 3420

29411 29900 28 744 28 180

1887 211 1972 1955

4384 4153 3757 3687

1430 1421 1401 1396

16 15 14 17

15229 16 066 15701 15594

120 748 121703 63618 62371

—1374- - —-1110 — - 372 - -—305--
122 122 122 813 63 920 62676
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Coutinued)
{Amonnts expressed in thonsands of euro, exceptf when indicated)

Gross written premiums from life insurance business are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Annuities 9 86l 5733
Risk contracts 77 124 71 290
Saving contracts with profit sharing 382 133 37757
469 118 114 780

In accordance with IFRS 4, the contracts issued by the Group for which there is only a transfer of financial risk, with

no discretionary participating features, are classified as investment contracts and accounted for as financial
liabilities.

The increase in gross written premiums in 2013 is essentially due the significant increase in the capitalization
products and retirement plans.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 —~ (Continued)
{(Amonnts expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

NOTE 12 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

These balances are analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Other operating income arising from:

Medical services business 13 944 262 514
Insurance business 6373 14 745
IT related business 1720 5689
Call center business 11 969 13 117
Fair value adjustment on investment propertics (see Note 31) §572 2900
Gains on repurchase of Group debt securities (see Notes 39 and 43) 14 118 113721
Non recurring gains on advisory services 3671 4299
Other 13976 41952

74 843 458 937

Other operating cxpenses arising from:

Direct and indirect taxes (22921) (22261)
Conlributions to the depositors guarantee fund (12 865) (10370)
Membership and donations {6930) {8 870)
Medical services business (2359 ( 135 685)
Insurance business {16 657) (24 760)
Fair value adjustment on investiment properties (see Notc 31) (2627) (18611)
Contribution to banking sector (27 289) (27910)
Contribution to funds ofresolution (11813) -
Losscs on repurchase of Group debt securities (see Notes 39 and 43) (7343) -
Other {47 165) { 8 583)

(157 969) (276 990)

(83 126) 181 947

The decrease in other operating income - Medical services business relates to the acquisition by Rio Forte
Investments, S.A. of an additional 19.5% stake in ES Saide. ESFG has lost control over ES Satde in 2012.
Consequently, this entity is no longer fully consolidated by ESFG, being classified as an associate.

As at 31 December 2012, Other operating income includes a gain of euro 21.8 million related with the negative past
service cost (gain) which arose from the change introduced by Decree Law 133/2012 to the calculation method for
the death allowance (see Note 14).

~ Also under Other operating income, as at 31 December 2012, is included the gain of euro 10.3 million arising from

the termination of the exclusive distribution agreement established between ESAF (through Gespater) and Banco
Pastor, following the change of control of Banco Pastor occutred in the first semester of 2012 as explained in Note
32.
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 - (Coutinued)
{(Amounts expressed in thousands of enro, excepf when indicated)

25.8 million and euro 38.4 million, respectively,

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the number of employees of the Group is analysed as follows:

J1.12.2013 31.12.2012

Banking sector employees 10 624 10 309
Health sector employees 358 366
Insurance sector employees 732 709

Employed by other companies essencially providing
services to customers outside the Group 568 652
12 282 12 036

By professional category, the number of employees of the Group is analysed as follows:
J31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Senior management 1292 1254
Management 1398 1 289
Specific functions 4767 4778
Administrative functions and others 4 825 4715

12282 12 036

NOTE 14- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension and health-care benefits

As described in Note 2,18, the Group’s companies operate defined pension and health-care plans for their employees
and their dependants under which the benefits vest on the earlier of retirement, death or incapacity.

However, it should be noted that in what concerns the banking subsidiaries, the employees hired after 31 March
2008 are covered by the Portuguese Social Security scheme.

Additionally, with the publication of Decree-Law n.1-A / 2011 of January 3, all banking sector employees
beneficiaries of “CAFEB — Caixa de Abone de Familia dos Empregados Bancérios” were integrated into the
General Social Security Scheme from 1 January 2011, which assumned the protection of banking sector employees in
the contingencies of maternity, paternity and adoption and even cld age, remaining under the responsibility of the
banks the protection in sickness, disability, survivor and death.

- Retirement pensions of banking employees integrated-into the General Social-Security Regime from 1 January 2011,-
continue to be calculated according to the provisions of ACT and other conventions. Banking employees, however,
are entitled to receive a pension under the general regime, which amount takes into account the number of years of
discounts for that scheme. Banks are responsible for the difference between the pension determined in accordance
with the provisions of ACT and that the one that the banking employees are entitled to receive from the General
Sacial Security Regime.

The contribution rate to the Social Security Regime is 26.6%, 23.6% paid by the employer and 3% paid by the
ploy

employees, instead of Caixa de Abono de Familia dos Empregados Bancéarios (CAFEB), abolished by the same law.
In consequence of this change, the pension rights of active employers is to be covered under the terins defined by the
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General Social Security Regime, taking into account the length of service from 1 January 2011 until retirement. The
differential required to support the guaranteed pension in terms of the ACT is paid by the Banks.

At the end of 2011 following the third tripartite agreement established between the Portuguese Government, the
Portuguese Banking Association and the banking sector employees unions, it was decided to transfer fo the Social
Security Regime the banks liabilities with pension in payment as at 31 December 2011.

The tripartite agreement established, provides for the transfer to the Social Security sphere of the liabilities with
pensions in payment as of 31 December 2011 at constant values (0% discount rate). The responsibilities relating to
updates of pensions value, other pension benefits in addition to those to be borne by the Social Security, health-care
benefits, death allowance and deferred survivor pensions, will remain in the sphere of responsibility of the banks
with the correspondent funding being provided through the respective pension funds.

The banks pension funds assets, specifically allocated to the cover of the transferred liabilities, were also be
transferred to the Social Security.

Being thus a definitive and irreversible transfer of the liabilities with pensions in payment (even if only on a portion
of the benefit), the conditions set out in IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits’ underlying the concept of settlement were met,
as the obligation with pension in payment as at 31 December 2011 extinguished at the date of iransfer.

The actuarial valuation of pension and health-care benefits for the Group companies is perforined every half-year,
with latest valuation performed as at 31 December 2013, On annual basis, the actuarial valuation is reviewed by an
independent actuary.,

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the main assumptions considered in the actuarial valuation, to determine the
defined benefit obligation of pension and heaith-care benefits for the Group employees are as follows:

Insurance seclor Banking sector
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
L1 ETS
31.12.2013 31.12.2012 1" through 4" andsubsequent 1" {hrough 5 and subsequent

3" year YeArs 4" yefr Years
Finangial assumplicns
Salaries increase rale 1% -2.5% (*) 0%-2.5% (*) 0.00% 0.75% 00074 0.75%
Pensions increase rate 0% -2.5% (*) 0% -2.5% (*) 1.00% 1.25% 1.00% L75%
Early refirements pensions increase rale 1% -2.5% (*) 1.00% - - - -
Expected relum of plan assels 1.75% 1.26% - 4.25% 400% 4,50%
Discount rate 3.75% 3.26% - 4.25% 4.00% 4.50%
Demographic assumptions
Morality 1able
Men GKF 95 TV 73/77 (adjusted)
Woamen GKF 95 TV 88790
Actuaral melhod Praject Unit Credit Method

{*) Pension fund of Board of Direclors

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.18, the discount rate used to calculate the actuarial
" present valie of the pensions and health care defined benefits, was determined at the balance sheet date considering’
(i) the evolution of the main indexes refated with high quality corporate bonds and (i} the duration of the liabilities.
The expected return on plan assets is based on the long term expected return for each asset class within the portfolio

of the pension funds and takes in consideration the investment strategy determined for the funds.

During 2013, the lepal retirement age in Portugal, for active employees under the Social Security Regime, went
from G5 years to 66 years of age. However, the Group plan remained unchanged with retirement age at 65 years old.
Therefore, the change in the legal retirement age has an impact in the amount of the Group defined benefit
obligation due to the reduction of the participation of the Social Security Regime.
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The contributions to SAMS as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 corresponded to 6.5% of total wages. The percentage
of contribution is established by SAMS, and no changes are expected for 2014.

The number of persons covered by the plan is as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Employees 5921 6337
Pensioners and widows 6013 5908
Total 11934 12 245

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet following the application of IAS 19 as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
are presented as follows:

31.12,2013 31.12.2012

(in (housands of cure)
Assets / (liabilitics) recognised in the balance shee(

Defined benefit obligation

Pensioners (487491) (448265)
Employees (838518) {792 037)
{1346 009) (I 240302)

Coverage
Fair value of plan assels 1346019 1259117
Net assels in balance sheet (see Note 35) 10 18815
Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income 1196 453 1089323

Additionally, for the insurance entities of the Group, Tranquilidade and Esumédica have transferred part of their
liabilities to BES Vida, through the acquisition of the life insurance policies. The number of pensioners covered by
these policies is 359 (31 December 2012: 388), and the total liability amounts to euro 11.2 million (31 December
2012: euro 11.8 million).

In accordance with accounting policy described in Note 2.18 and following the requirements of TAS 19—
Employees benefits, the Group assesses, when applicable, at each balance sheet date and for each plan separately,
the recoverability of the recognised assets in relation to the defined benefit pension plans based on the expectation of
reductions in future contributions to the funds.
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The changes in the defined benefit obligation can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31,12.2012

(in thousands of curo)

Defined henelit obligation as at 1 January 1240302 1117094
Service cost 13 659 14325
Interest cost 55775 58994
Plan participants' contribution 3260 3259
Remeasurements:

- changes in actuaria! assumptions 94 593 65 148

-experience adjustments (24 641) 42 066
Pensions paid by the fund (34 116) {31288)
Bencfits paid by the Group ( 104) { 118)
Settlement of the defined benefit obligation for insurance employces - {5044)
WNegative past service costs - (21813)
Exchange differences and other (2719 (2321
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 December ) 1 346 009 1240302

In accordance with the labour agreement for the insurance employees, in force since 1 January 2013, a curtailment
of the defined benefit plan has been determined and a defined contribution plan has been established. The related
defined benefit obligation recognised as at 31 December 2012 was settled by the fund’s through an initial
contribution to the defined contribution plan.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, following the amendment to Decree Law 133/2012 which determines the
calculation method for the death allowance, there was a reduction on the defined benefit obligation with this benefit,
in the amount of euro 21.8 million, which qualifies as a negative past cost {a gain). On this basis and in accordance
with the accounting policy described in Note 2.18, this gain should be recognized in the income statement during the
vesting period. Considering that this benefit is already vested (given that the employee or retiree is entitled to the
benefit in full without the need fo comply with any service condition), the Group recognized the gain in the income
statement.

Based on the position as at 31 December 2013, for certain changes in actuarial assumptions, the following impacts
would oceur:

+ An increase in the discount rate by 25 basis points would reduce the benefit obligation by approximately euro
51 million; a decrease of equal magnitude would increase the benefit obligation by approximately euro 58
million;

« An increase of 25 basis points in the growth of salaries and pensions would increase the benefit obligation by
approximately euro 62 million; a decrease of equal magnitude would reduce the benefit obligation by
approximately euro 51 million;

+ The use of wmortality tables with increase of another year would increase the benefit obligation by
approximately euro 44 million; with a reduction of one_year the benefit obligation would decrease by
approximately euro 37 miilion.
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The change in the fair value of the plan assets in 2013 and 2012 is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of eurc)

Fair value of plan assets as at 1 January 1259117 1226393
Actualretum on plan assets

Expected return on plan assets 54 146 64328

Actuarial gains/ (losses) (37250} (82 946)
Group contributions 103 806 86410
Plan participants' contributions 3260 3259
Pensions paid by the fund (34116) {31288)
Settiement of the defined benefit obligation for insurance employees - (5044)
Exchange differences and other (2944) (1995
Fair value of plan assefs as at 31 December 1346019 1259117

On the presumption that actuarial and financial assumptions used in 2013 for the calculation of the defined benefit
obligation are verified, the Group does not anticipate the need to make significant additional contributions for the

pension fund in 2014.

Pension fund assets are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Shares and other variable income securitics 22% 15%
Fixed income securitics 25% 27%
Realestate 32% 30%
Other 21% 28%
100% 100%

The real estate assets rented to the Group and securities issued by Group companies which are part of the pension

fund assets are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousatds of euro)
Shares and other variable income securities 2925 1200
Fixed income securities 1 839 6603
Real cstate 227 469 298 022
Total 232233 305 825
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fund helds participation units of ES Ventures IIf Fund, which is fully
consolidated in the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2012 the Group acquired 49 779 and 37 115 thousand units of Fungere Fund
and Fungepi Fund to the Group pensions funds, by an amount of euro 158.1 million and euro 87.2 million,
respectively (see Note 49).

The changes in the remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income in 2013 and 2012 are analysed as
follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Remeasurentents recognised in other comprehensive income as at 1 January 1089323 899 844

Remeasurements:

-changes in actuarial assumptions 94 593 65 148
- experience adjustments 12 609 125012
Other ( 72) ( 681}

Remeasurements recognisedin other comprehensive income as at 31
December 1196 453 1089 323

The net benefit cost can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Service cost 13659 14 325
Net interest expense / (income) 1629 (5334)
Other 1167 { 212)
Net henefit cost 16 455 8779

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.18, since 1 January 2013, due to the change in TAS 19—
Employee Benefits, the net interest expense/ income is recognised in the income statement under Interest and similar
income or Interest expense and similar charges, as applicable.
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The changes in the assets recognised in the balance sheet can be analysed as follows:

31.12,2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January 18 815 109 299

Net periodic benefit cost ( 16 455) (3719

Negative past service cost - 21813

Remeasurements recognised on other comprehensive income (107 130) { 189 479)

Contributions of the year and pensions paid by the Group 103910 86528

Other 870 ( 567)

Balance as at 31 December 10 18 815
Historical information regarding pension plan is as follows:

JL122013 3122012 3122011 31,12.2010 31.12.200% 31122008
{in ibonsands of eurc)

Defmed benefil obligation {1346 009) (1240308) (1117094 (2250 196) 2172 793) (2 110 400)
Fair value of plan asssets 1M6019 1259 117 1226393 2250218 2244926 2101305
{(UnYover funded lighilives 10 18815 109 299 22 7263} {9098)
(Gaing}losses from experiencs adjustments arsing on defined benef obligation (24641 42 006 13029 24639 51938 23855
{Gains)losses fomexpericnce adjustments arksing on phn assets 371250 82946 270 146 63387 {92351) 33639

Stock options plan

On 1 October 2008, the Company established a stock-option plan that entitles key management personnel to
purchase ESFG shares. Alternatively, the Company may settle these options in cash by an amount equivalent to the
appreciation of ESFG share market price above the exercise price. Under the program, the Company may grant
options to its employees up to 3 000 000 ordinary shares. The exercise price of each option equals the market price
ot ESFG share on the date of grant and an option’s maximum term is of 10 years. Options are granted at the
discretion of the Board of Directors and have a vesting period of 1 year.

As at 31 December 2013, all options under the plan have vested.

Considering the terms and conditions of the plan and ESFG’s informal practices of settling the options granted to
employees in cash, it is accounted for as cash-settled share-based payinent arrangement, in accordance with the

accounting policy described in Note 2.18.
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The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options excrcise price options
(in Euro) (in Euro)
Oulistanding as at 1 January 13.20 2650 000 13.20 2 650 000
Outstanding as at 31 December 13.20 2 650 000 13.20 2 650 000

Exercisable as at 31 December 13.20 2 650 000 13.20 2 650 000

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 have a remaining contractual life of approximately 5 years (31
December 2012: 6 years).

The plans’ initial fair value was calculated using an option valuation model with the following assumptions:

Initial reference date 01.10.2008
Final reference date 01.10.2018
Number of options 2940 000
Exercise price (in EUR) 13.20
Interest rate 427%
Initial spot price (in EUR) 10.33
Volatility 2647%
Initial fair value ofthe plan (in thousands) 4783

The assumptions used in the valuation of the outstanding options as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were the

following:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Initial reference date 01.10.2008 01.10.2008
Final reference date 01.10.2018 01.10.2018
Number of options 2650000 2 650 000
Excrcise price (in EUR) 13.20 13.20
Inferest rate 1.24% 0.94%
Spot price (in EUR) 4.86 5.26
Volatility 15.47% 24.34%

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.18, the initial fair value of the plan, amounting to euro
4 783 thousand, was recognised during the 12 month-period comprised between the grant date and its first
anniversary. In 2013 change in the plans’ fair value of the benefit granted to employees has been recognised in the
income statement, as a decrease in staff costs, for an amount of euro 183 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 97
thousand increase in staff costs).

The fair value of the liability recognised is remeasured at the balance sheet date, amounting as at 31 December 2013
to euro 2 thousand (2012: euro 185 thousand) (see Note 44).
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Variable remuneration payment plan on financial instruments (PRVIF)

Following the recommendations of the Supervising and Regulatory authorities, on the BES sharcholders General
Meeting, held in 6 April 2011 it was approved a new remuneration policy for the Executive Committee members.
This policy consists in giving fo the Executive Commiltee members a fixed remuneration, which should represent
approximately 45% of the total remuneration, and a variable component representing around 55% of the total
remuneration. The variable remuneration shall have two components: one associated with short-term performance
and another with medivm-term performance. Half of the short-term component must be paid in cash and the
remaining 50% should be paid over a three years period, with half of these payments to be made in cash and the
remaining through the attribution of shares. The medium-term component has associated a share options program
with the exercise of the options set at 3 years from the date of its attribution,

Regarding the first scheme, the attribution of PRVIF shares to the beneficiaries is performed on a deferred basis
over a period of three years (1st year: 33%; 2nd year: 33% and 3rd year: 34%) and is subject to the achievement of a
Return on Equity (ROE) greater than or equal to 5%.

Regarding the attribution of options to the beneficiaries is also performed by the Remuneration Committee, and the
exercise price is equal (o the single average of the closing prices of BES shares on NYSE Euronext Lishon during
the 20 days preceding the day of attribution of the options, plus 10%. The option can only be exercised at maturity
and the beneficiary may choose between the physical settlement or the financial settlement of the options.

The plans’ initial fair value was calculated using an option valuation model with the following assumptions:

1*" attribution 2™ attribution
Initial reference date 12.04.2011 12.10.2012
Final reference date 31.03.2014 15.01.2016
Rights granted to employees 2250000 6280 045
Reference price (in EUR) 347 0.67
Interest rate 2.31% 0.67%
Volatility 40.0% 65.0%
Initial fair value of the plan (in thousands of euro) 1130 1940

PRVIF is accounted for in accordance with the applicable IFRS rules (IFRS 2 and TAS 19}, During 2013, the Group
registered, against liabilities, a cost of euro 925 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 489 thousand) related to the
amortization of the initial options premium granted.
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Long ferm service benefits

As referred in Note 2.18, for employees that achieve certain years of service, the Group pays long term service
premiums, calculated based on the effective monthly remuneration eamed at the date the premiums are due. At the
date of early retirement or disability, employees have the right to a premium proportional to that they would earn if
they remained in service until the next payment date.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group’s liabilities regarding these benefits amount (o euro 30 376 thousand
and euro 28 691 thousand, respectively (see Note 44). The costs incurred in the year with long term service benefits
amounted to euro 4 560 thousand (31 Brecember 2012: euro 3 002 thousand) (see Note 13).

The actuarial assumptions used in the calculation of the liabilities are those presented for the calculation of pensions

(when applicable).

NOTE 15- GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

This balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Rental costs 85 261 80 304
Communication costs 47 966 30 190
Traveling and representation costs 38437 39752
Advertising costs 39436 42 848
Maintenance and related services 29353 27656
Insurance costs 10 276 8711

Specialised services
IT services 67329 70617
Professional services 21351 15928
Temporary work 5146 5550
Electronic payment system 10172 11711
Legal costs 23008 20910
Consultants and external auditors 33 844 32198
Other specialised services 3033 3756
Water, energy & fuel 14 044 13 491
Current consumption material 5376 5726
Transports 7538 7899
Othercosts 76 506 65013
518076 502 760

The balance “Other specialised services” includes, among others, costs with security, information services and
databases. The balance “Other costs” includes costs with training and external suppliers.
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The fees billed to the Company by KPMG Luxembourg 8.4 r.l. and other member firms of the KPMG network

{(“KPMG”) during the year are analysed as follows (excluding VAT):

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Audit fees 3708 3786
Audit related fees 1 871 1 508
5579 5294
Taxconsultancy services 644 773
Other services 688 504
6911 6571

The outstanding lease instalments related to the non-cancellable operational lease contracts are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013

31.12,2012

(in thousands of euro)

Up to 1 year 2303 8903
1 to 5years 11 263 10 451
14 066 19 354
NOTE 16 - CLAIMS INCURRED, NET OF REINSURANCE
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance are analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Claims incurred for the life business 301 490 434248
Claims incurred for the non-life business 181728 197 695
483218 631943
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Concerning the life business, the claims incurred, net of reinsurance are analysed as follows:

Claims paid
Gross amount
Reinsurance sharc

Change in claims outstanding reserve
Gross amount
Reinsurance share

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Conceming the non-life business, the claims incurred, net of reinsurance are analysed as follows:

Claims paid
Gross amount
Reinsurance share

Change in claims outstanding reserve
Gross amnount
Reinsurance share

F-66

304 724 439 430

(14 388) (3239)

290 336 436 241

12 938 (1532)
(1784) ( 461)
11154 (1993)

301 490 434 248

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

234 802 224 071
(22 957) (14 527)
211 845 200 544
(30 855) (6 851)
738 (4998)

(30 117) (11 849)
181 728 197 695
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The gross amount of claims paid and change in claims reserve for the non-life business are as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
. " Change in . . Change in
Claims paid claims reserve Total Claims paid claims reserve Total
(in thousands of cura)
Direct business
Accidenl and health 71335 13335 86 670 75 145 7108 82253
Fire and other hazards 44 134 {8149} 35985 28 957 12403 41 360
Motor 109 603 (35617) 73986 111 609 (28283) 83326
Marilime, airline and transportation 2562 134 2696 3124 ( 175) 2949
Third party liability 3437 (1897} 1540 4085 1966 6051
Credit and suretyship 3 { 38) (15) (13) 44 i1
Other 11361 1401 2762 1159 27 1136
Reinsurance accepled 347 ( 24} 323 5 59 64
Total 234 802 (30 855) 203 947 224 071 (6 851) 217220
NOTE 17- CHANGE IN THE TECHNICAL RESERVES, NET OF REINSURANCE
The change in the technical reserves, net of reinsurance is analysed as follows:
31,12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Life business 150757 (333 0638)
Non-life business 2574 (3022)
153 331 (336 660)
Concemning the life business, the changes in the technical reserves are analysed as follows:
31,12,2013 31.12,2012
(in thousands of euro)
Change in life assurance reserve
Gross amount 154 689 (332 486)
Reinsurance share (0 102
154 688 {332 084)
Reserve forbonus and rebates
Gross amount 3719 4623
Reinsurance share (8395 (3213)
{4 676) 1410
Change in other life insurance reserve
Gross amount 745 (2964)
745 (2964}
150 757 (333 638)
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Concerning the non-life business, the changes on the technical reserves are analysed as follows:

31,12,2013 31.12.2012

{in thousands of euro)

Change in non life insvrance reserve
Change in unexpired risk reserve 2574 (3022)

2574 (3 022)

NOTE 18- INSURANCE COMMISSIONS

The insurance commissions are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of curo)

Direct insurance commissions

Acquisition commissions and other costs 43739 451295
Change in deferred acquisition costs 733 567
Collection commissions 1912 [ 959
Reinsurance commissions {a} (198 640) (8 565)
(152 256) 39256

(a) Commissions and reinsurance profit sharing includes the net upfront fee, resulting from the signing of a
reinsurance treaty in which BES Vida reinsures the life insurance risk portfolio at 100%, including all
insurance policies in force as at 30 June 2013.

From this date, BES Vida will cede to the reinsurer all premiums and claims associated with the policies
included in this treaty. The Company will perform the servicing of these contracts, as well as the distribution of
the respective products.

Under this treaty, BES Vida received an upfront fee, having transferred all the risks and benefits associated
with these contracts. On that basis, the risk of (i) life, (ii) disability, and (iii) cancellation of contracts were
transferred. As such the upfront fee is recognized on the present date, net of the respective in force value of the
portfolio recognized as an asset, at the date of acquisition of BES Vida (see Notes 32 and 55).
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NOTE 19- EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share, is caloulated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

31.12,2013 31.,12.2012

(in thousands ¢f curo)

Consolidated result attributable (o equity holders of the Company (864 031) 313633
(=) Dividends on preference shares (5169) ( 5965)
(-) Renuneration of perpetual bonds { 600y ( 519)
(1) Realized gains and losses recognized in Reseives 3481 11524
Adjusted consolidated resuit attributable to equity holders of the Campany (866 319) 318673

Average nuniber of oustanding shares 207 075338 174 813 327
Average nuniber of treasury shares (2 179 856) (3 736 030)
Average number of shares in circulation 204 895 482 171077298
Basic earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company (in euro) (4.23) 1.86

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations attributable to the equity

4.19 191
holders of the Company (in euro) ( )

The weighted average number of shares outstanding was calculated taking in consideration the capital increase
occurred in the year as described in Note 45.

Diluted earnings per share

The diluted eamings per share is calculated considering the profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

The diluted earnings per share are not different from the basic eamings per share.
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NOTE 20- CASH AND DEPOSITS AT CENTRAL BANKS
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Cash 289349 304 410
Deposits at central banks

Bank of Portugal 32414 26 799

Other central banks 1506911 1113622

1539325 1140421

1828674 1444 831

The deposits at Central Banks include mandatory deposits intended to satisfy legal minimum cash requirements,
for an amount of euro 496 582 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 39 599 thousand). According fo the European
Central Bank Regulation no. 1348/2011, of 14 December 2011, minitnum cash requirements kept as deposits with
the Bank of Portugal earn interest and correspond to 1% of deposits and debt certificates maturing in less than 2
years, excluding deposits and debt certificates of institutions subject to the Furopean System of Central Banks’
minimum reserves requirements. During 2013, these deposits have earned interest at an average rate of 0.55%

{2012: 0.89%).

The fulfilment of the minimum cash requirements for a given period of observation is monitored taking into
account the value of bank deposits with the Bank of Portugal during the referred period. The balance of the bank
account with the Bank of Portugal as at 31 December 2013, was included in the observation period from 11
December 2013 to 14 January 2014, which corresponded [o an average minimum cash requirements of evro 265.1

million.
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NOTE21- DEFPOSITS WITH BANKS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of enro)

Deposits with banks in Portugal

Repayable on demand 214761 371 794
Uncollected cheques 85164 107354
Other 73552 57010
373 477 536 158
Deposits with banks abroad

Repayable on demand 740 603 547 823
Uncollected cheques 3564 8962
Other 3129 33910
775 457 590 695

1148934 1126 853

Uncollected cheques in Portugal and abroad were sent for collection doring the first working days following the
reference dates.

Other deposits with banks, in Portogal and abroad, mature within 3 months.
Deposits with banks include the amount of eurc 173 426 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 195 586 thousand)

related to deposits held by securitisation vehicles consolidated by the Group and that collateralise the debt issued in
the scope of the respective securitisation transactions (see Note 1).
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NOTE 22-  FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Financial assets held for trading

Securities
Bonds and other fixed income securities

Issued by government and public entities 955 951 1395583
Issued by other entities 105279 265 057
Shares 30963 52281
Other variable income securities 1701 2181
1093 894 1715102

Derivatives
Derivative financial instruments with positive fair value 1394 571 2266 743
2 488 465 3981 845

Financial liabilities held for trading

Derivatives
Derivative financial instruments with negative fair value 1322284 2123429
Short selling 14484 796
1336 768 2124225

During the year 2008, the Group has reclassified from financial assets held for trading an amount of euro 244 530
thousand to held-to-maturity investments (see Note 27), following an amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measvrement issued in October 2008 and adopted by the European Uniocn in that year.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amounts that would have been recognised in the year if the reclassifications
were not made are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of ¢curo)

Net gains / (losses) from financial assets and financial Habilities at fair value

through profit or loss (217 947
Taxeffect 147 (73
{70) 874
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the analysis of the sccurities held for trading by the period to maturity, is
presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31122012

(in thousands of euro)

Up to 3 months 42034 139 663
3 to 12 months 106 046 173705
1to 5ycars 611 659 765 803
More than 5 years 301 485 577774
Undetermined 32670 58 157

1093 894 1715102

in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.6, securities held for trading are those which are
bought to be traded in the short-term, regardless of their maturity.

The balance Financial assets held for trading includes securities pledged as colfateral by the Group as described in
Note 47. )

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the exposure to peripheral Euro zone couniries public debt is analysed in Note
53.

Regarding quoted and unquoted securities, the balance financial assets held for trading is as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoicd Unguoted Taolal

(in thousands ol curo)

Bonds and other fixed income securities

Issued by govemnent and public enlities 955 951 - 955951 1349 507 46 (076 1395 583
Issued by other enfilies 85283 19 996 105279 100 506 164 551 265057
Shares 30 894 69 30 963 40 505 11776 52 281
Other variable income securilies 1598 103 1701 2181 - 2181
1073726 20 168 1093 894 1492 699 222 403 1715102

Valuation techniques are described in Note 52.
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, derivative financial instruments can be analysed as follows:

31.12,2013 31,12.2012
Fair value Fair value

tonal .
Notfona Assels Llabilities Notional Asscls Liabilities

(in thousans of euro)

Exchange rate coniracis

Forward
- buy 2019187 1356 880
—sell | %63 106 25972 10 152 1 226 020 7638 12871
Cumency Swaps
= buy 1561513 3070 568
-sell 1638 391 1757 2198 3352944 1on 2019
Cumency Futures 2771 168 - - 278317 - -
Cumency Inierest Rale Swaps
= buy 61 108 118945
_sell 63040 14945 12839 115406 25690 18343
Currency Options 2813981 27316 25144 2414534 41 437 46 868
12791 494 69990 50333 11933 614 76 786 83101
Interest rate contracts
Forward Rale Agreemenis 310000 iy - 200 000 - 16
Interest Rate Swaps 24204 535 12921350 1070 130 31000 725 1954185 1814 293
Swaption - Interest Rate Options 2000 28 286 - 363 000 1556 15356
Interest Rate Caps & Floors 3378746 - 26 877 4 918 557 40 843 38 562
Interest Rate Futures 4436 679 - - 3784771 - -
Interest Rate Oplions 870283 330 328 1903 338 1341 134
33202 248 1231045 1097 335 42 170 441 1997925 [ 855768
Equityfindex contracts
Equity / Index Swaps 581 628 2327 42 538 664 516 86202 24 936
Equily / Index Options 1107223 35423 113 691 2715219 60917 131 146
Equily / IndexFulures 53113 - - 96 583 - -
Future Oplions 395420 - - 82234 - -
21371384 58696 156229 3558 552 147 119 156082
Credlit default contracis
Credil Default Swaps 1264 1% 34 840 18 387 27419 44913 31478
49395322 1394 571 13221284 60 437 386 2266743 2113 429

As at 31 December 2013 the fair value of derivative financial instruments included the amount of euro 4.2 mitlion
(asset) (31 December 2012: asset for an amount of euro 21.1 million) related to the positive fair value of the
embedded derivatives, as described in Note 2.4.
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of trading derivatives by the period to maturity is presented as
follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Notional Fair value Notional Fair value

(in thousands of curo)

Up to 3 months 9360 505 (25628) 13 785 652 71751
Fromn 3 to 12 months 7894 937 17 071 10 093 874 (46 802)
From 1 to 5 years 16739075 ( 15 908) 19 007 557 21 130
More than 5 years 15 400 805 96 752 17 550 303 97235

49395322 72 287 60 437 386 143 314

NOTE23- OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Bonds and other fixed income securities

Issued by government and public entities 1234 847 516859
Issued by other entities 1229 467 956370
Other variable income securities 1099 804 1130234
3564118 2603 463

In light of IAS 39 and in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.6, the Group designated these
financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss, in accordance with the documented risk inanagement and
investment strategy, considering that these financial assets (i) are managed and evaluated on a fair vatue basis and/or
{ii) have embedded derivatives.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss by the
period to maturity is presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of curo)

Up to 3 months 599 455 355219
3 to 12 months 1029134 203772
1to Syears 335141 226 286
More than 5 years 522334 738 358
Undetermined 1078054 1079 828

3564118 2603 463

Regarding quoted or unquoted securities, the balance financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, is presenied
as follows:
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31,12.2013 3i12.2012

Quoted Thnquoled Total Quofed TUnequoted Total

(in thousands of euro)

Bonds and other [beed income secunilics

Issued by govemment and public entities 1234 847 - 1234 847 516 859 - 516859
Issued by otherentitics 493999 735 468 1229467 240 984 715 386 956 370
Shares and other variable income secunilics 620293 479511 1099 804 566440 563794 113024
2349139 1214979 3564 118 1324283 1279130 2 603 463

NOTE 24 - AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is anatysed as follows:

Fair walue reserve
Book
Cost (1) Positive Negalive Impairment ook yalue
{in thousands of euro)
Bonds and other fixed income securities
Issue by govemment and public entilies 4008 171 26 568 (24 942) - 4099797
Issue by ofhers entitics 2255551 61 187 {44473 (33953) 2238712
Shares 1394322 83075 (834 184) (213 501) 1179712
Olher securities 1472944 18353 (9149 {70 591) 1411 557
Balance as at 31 Decemlber 2013 92212388 189 183 (162 748) (318 045) 8929778
Bonds and other fived income securities

Issue by govemment and public entities 4297 879 201 930 (1 801) (1 4497 997
Issue by others eniities 4 273021 62 357 (91219) { 18 208) 4225951
Shares 1357620 82412 (595719 (200299 1380 154
Olher securities 961 638 16 562 {5444) {35623) 937133
Balance as at 31 December 2012 11090 158 363 261 (158 043} {254 E41) 11041235

® A cquisition cost relating lo sharcs and other variable income securilies and amontised cost relating to debt secunties.
As at 31 December 2013, the exposure to debt of peripheral countries in the euro area is analysed in Note 53.

The balance Available-for-sale financial assets includes securities pledged as collateral by the Group as described
in Note 47.

During the year 2008, the Group has reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets an amount of euro 522 715

thousand to held-to-maturity investments (see Note 27), following an amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement issued in October 2008 and adopted by the European Union in that year.
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amounts that would have been recognised in the year if the reclassifications
were not made are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Net change in fair value reserve {1014 (37800
Taxeffect 204 1191
( 720) (2589)

During the second quarter of 2011, taking in consideration the new solvency rules applicable to the insurance
industry in Portugal, in-force from 1 January 2011, the insurance entities of the Group have reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets an amount of euro 150 253 thousand to held-to-maturity investments (see Nofe
27), in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amounts that would have been recognised in the year if the reclassifications
were not made are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of curo}
Net change in fair value reserve 22 090 18 901
Tax effect { 6406) (548D
15 684 13 420

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.6, the Group assesses periodically whether there is
objective evidence of impairment on the available-for-sale financial assets, following the judgment criteria’s
described in Note 3.1.

The changes occurred in impairment losses of available-for-sale financial assets are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Balance as at 1 January 254 141 192 073
Charge for the year 121 608 103 261
Charge off { 44 300) (36 163)
Write back for the year (11178) (3943)
Exchange differences and other {2226) ( 1087}
Balance as at 31 December 318 045 254 141
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of available-for-sale assets by the period to maturity is presented as

follows:

Up to 3 months
From 3 to 12 months
From 1 to 5 years
More than 5 years
Undetermined

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

1284 223 2841 838

729 897 1244222

1 681503 1475813

2 688229 3188324

2 545926 2291038

8929778 11041235

The main equity exposures that contribute to the fair value reserve, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, can be

analysed as follows:

31.12,2013
Amtortised Fair value reserve .
Impairment Market value
cost Positive Negative
{(in {thousands of curo)
Portugal Telecom 346 678 - (62407) (37) 284 234
EDP 20121 4999 - - 25120
Banque Marocaine du Commerce Extéricur §1 004 2424 - - 83 428
447 803 7423 (62 407) 37 392 782
31.12.2012
Amorlised Falr value rescrwe
Impairment Marketyalue
cost Positive Negative
(in thousands of curo)
Portugal Telecom 346 637 - (10757) 335880
EDP 173 826 24 447 - - 198 213
Bangque Marocaine du Commerce Extérieur 81 004 (15813) - 65191
601 467 24 447 {26 570) - 599 344

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group sold at market prices 77.4 million ordinary shares of EDP,
which generated a realised net gain of euro 53.7 million (euro 14.7 million net of non-controlling interest) (see Note

8).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group sold at market prices 96.4 million ordinary shares of EDP and
260.7 million ordinary shares of Portugal Telecom. These transactions generated a realised net loss of ewro 224.9
million {euro 61.5 million net of non-controlling interest) (see Nofe 8).

Following the market transactions with Portugal Telecom shares, the porifolio average price has reduced
significantly. The unrealised losses presented in the fair value reserve at year end, represent a recent decline in value
that occurred after the Group having recognised positive fair value reserves in the first and second quarter of 2013,
The unrealised losses recorded at year end represent 18% of the investment.
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The analysis of the available-for-sale financial assets by quoted and unquoted securities, is presented as follows:

J1.12.2043 31.12,2012
Quoted Unguoled Total Quoted Unquoted Talal
{in thousands of eura)
Securities
Bonds and other fned ncome securities
Issue by govemment and public entilies 2960 469 11393238 4099 7197 3204 546 1293 451 4 497997
Issue by oiher entilies 932 457 1306255 2238 M2 998 414 3227537 4225951
Shares 541 885 637821 1179712 788 266 591888 1380154
Other varighle income securiies 707943 703 614 1411557 376 659 560414 937133
5142 754 3737 024 B 929 778 5367 885 5673350 11041 235
Valuation techniques have been disclosed in Note 52.
NOTE 25 - LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 this balance is analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Loans and advances to banks in Portugal

Deposit to Bank of Poriugal 3 987 961 3350 000
Deposits 169 508 44 372
Loans 20037 127 581
Very short term deposits - 34 085
Other loans and advances [ 165 84 474
4178671 3640512

Loans and advances to banks abroad
Deposiis 101 421 271281
Loans 457978 533798
Very short term deposits 12976 32 696
Other loans and advances 77014 70324
649 389 908 095
Overdue loans and inferest 398 398
4 828 458 4 549 009
Impairment losses ( 668) ( 762)
4827790 4 548 247

The main loans and advances to banks in Portugal, as at 31 December 2013 bear interest at an average annual
interest rate of 1.46% (31 December 2012: 1.73%). Loans and advances (o banks abroad bear interest at an average
annual interest rate of 0.24% (31 December 2012: 0.88%).
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of loans and advances to banks by the period to maturity is
presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Up to 3 months 4 508 241 4178 481
3to 12 months 225381 96 657
1 to 5 years 27 569 79 623
More than 3 years 66 867 193 777
Undetermingd 400 471
4 828 458 4549 009

The changes occurred during the year in impairment losses of loans and advances to banks are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of curo)

Balance as at 1 January 762 617
Charge for the year 306 1 366
Write back for the year ( 386) {1207
Exchange differences and other ( 14) (14

Balance as at 31 December 668 762
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NOTE26- LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of enro)

Domestic loans

Corporate
Loans 12 946 588 12 675 007
Commercial lines of credits 4635722 5247361
Finance leases 2215135 2 560 541
Discounted bills 306776 454 624
Factoring 1 048 434 1412114
Overdralis 53618 78 057
Other loans 154 406 102 193
Retail
Monrtgage loans 9693399 10067 167
Consumer and other loans 1509 100 1750 980
32563178 34343 044
Foreign loans
Corporate
Loans 11 636269 11130 067
Comnercial lines of credits 2061420 2 181 087
Discounted bills 87107 145 877
Finance leases 62 424 69732
Overdrafis 910 599 679516
Other loans 457 106 795230
Retail
Mortgage loans 1012412 964 525
Consumer and other loans 825057 831483
17052394 16 797 517
Overdue loans and interest
Up to 3 months 254 551 293 307
From 3 months to 12 months 713612 G608 71
From I to 3 years 1357024 793 912
More than 3 years 775983 586 553
3101170 2281943
52716 742 53 427 504
Tmpairment losses (3446 075) (2734 620)
49270 667 50 692 878
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As at 31 December 2013, the balance loans and advances to customers (net of impairment) includes an amount of
euro 3 253.5 million (31 December 2012: euro 3 803.3 million) related to securitised loans following the
consolidation of the securitisation entities (see Note 50), according to the accounting policy described in Note 2.2.
The liabilities related to these securitisations are booked under Debt securities issued (see Notes 39 and 50).

As at 31 December 2013, loans and advances include euro § 552.6 million of mortgage loans that collateralise the
issue of covered bonds (31 December 2012: euro 5 605.1 million) (see Note 39).

The fair value of loans and advances to customers is presented in Note 52.

As at 31 December 2013, loans and advances include a portfolio of loans granted which are under a sovereign
guarantee, in the amount of euro 4 133 million.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of loans and advances to customers by the peried to maturity is
presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Up to 3 months 8 107 983 9234 034
3 to 12 months 6465614 6824 493
i to S years 10722354 10 602 697
More than 5 years 24 319 621 24 484 337
Undetermined 3101170 2281943
52716 742 53427 504

The changes occurred in impairment losses of loans and advances to customers are presented as follaws:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at I January 2734 626 2212144
Charge ofthe year 1462 574 1 021 570
Charge off (211 811) (212173)
Amounts recovered during the year previously charged-off 21063 21 500
Write back of the year (457 281) (227279)
Unwind of discount (103 082) (78 290)
Exchange differences and others (14 (3246)

Balance as at 31 December 3446075 2734 626

The unwind of discount represents the interest on overdue loans, recognised as interest and similar income, as
impairment losses are calculated using the discounted cash flows method.
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, loans and advances to customers and impairinent losses can be analysed as
follows:

31.12,2013
Loans with immirment losses Loans with impairnient losses Total
calculated on an individual nsis calenlated on a portolio basis
Gross Gross Gross
. P— . -
amount Tnipairment amount Eirment artount Tmpairnent Net amount
(in thousands of euro)

Corporate Joans 13 547 509 2869601 25 806 654 181 726 33354 163 3051327 36302836
Mortgage loans 234871 175325 1465 955 10538 10814 726 185 863 10628 863
Consumer and other loans 599765 199316 1948088 9569 2547853 208 885 2338968
Total 16 496 045 3244242 36220697 201 833 52716742 3446 075 4% 270 6567

31022002

Loans with implrment Tosses Loans wilh impnirment losses Total
calculated on an individual basis calculated o a porifolio nsis
Gross ; Gross . Gross .
amount Impmirment amount Tipaiement amount Impalrment Netamount
(in thonsands of euro)

Corporate loans 12617 103 2231936 26893334 150917 39515437 2382853 37132584
Mongage loans 2362525 160 135 8771297 G884 11133822 [67019 10966 303
Consuwmer and other loans 587892 172 563 2 190 353 12191 2778245 184 754 2593 491
Total 15 567 520 2 564634 37 859 984 169 992 53427 504 2734 626 50692578

The impairment calculated on an individual basis corresponds to the impairment related to loans with objective
evidence of impairment and to loans classified as “Higher Credit Risk". The objective evidence of impairment
oceui's when there is a default event, i.e., from the moment that a significant change occurs in the lender-borrower
relationship and the lender is subject to a loss. The "Higher Credit Risk" corresponds to loans without objective
evidence of impairment but that present higher risk signs (e.g. customers with overdue loans for more than 30 days
and less than 90 days; litigations; higher risk rating / scoring; allocated to the Companies Monitoring Deparfment;
and restructured loans due to financial difficulties of the borrower and which are not classified as default).

The interest recognised as interest and similar income during the year ended 31 December 2013 in relation to these
Joans amounted to euro 717.9 million (31 December 2012: euro 825.4 million), which includes the effect of the
unwind of discount in connection with overdue loans.

As at 31 December 2013, loans and advances, excluding overdue loans and interest, includes euro 282 696
thousand of rencgotiated loans (31 December 2012: euro 221 416 thousand). At the same date, the impairment
regarding these renegotiated loans amounted to euro 6 190 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 16 363 thousand).
The related interest recognized in the income statement amounted to euro 10 950 thousand (31 December 2012:
euro 9 940 thousand).

The Group requires that some credit operations be collateralised, in order to mitigate credit risk. The more common
types of collateral held are mortgages and securities. The fair value of these collaterals is determined at the date the
loan is advanced to customers, being periodically npdated when the credit is classified as having an impairment
trigger. The periodicity of the update considers the risk and size of each loan.
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The collateral received regarding credit operations can be analysed as follows;

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Loan Co'llateml Loan Cu.llatcml
fair value fair value

(in thonsands of curo)

Mortgage loans

Mortgages 10600 588 10 578 354 10951 831 10930 789
Pledges 3691 3512 4739 4570
Non-collateralized 210447 - 177 252 -

10 814 726 10 581 866 11133 822 10935 359

Retail loans

Morigages 305 840 287 164 310 561 291 897
Pledges 540 367 535 666 735255 549718
Non-collateralized 1705 129 - 1732429 -

2551336 822 830 2778245 841 615

Corporate [oans

Mortgages 9593 792 8553238 9812810 9122921
Pledges 7181725 5315025 9281917 G 104 860
Non-collateralized 22575163 - 20420710 -

39350 680 13 868 263 39515437 15227181

Loans and advances fo customers

Mortgages 20 500220 19 418756 21075202 20345 607
Pledges 7725783 5854203 10021 911 6659 148
Non-collateralized 24490 739 - 22330391 -

52716 742 25272 959 53 427 504 27004 755

Under the contracts relating to collateral held, the Group cannot sell the underlying assets until these are acquired in
exchange for loans. The terms and conditions of these contracts are in line with the market practice relating to credit
granting.
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The amounts relating to loans renegotiated due to financial difficulties of the borrower, are analysed as follows:

31,12,2013

(in thousands of euro)

Corporate 41139358
Mortgage loans 201541
Consumer and other loans 115 445
Non-residents 1415 421

5 846 365

The Group carries out a renegotiation of a loan in order to maximize its recovery. A loan is renegotiated in
accordance with selective criteria, based on the analysis of the overdue circumstances or when there is a high risk
that the loan will became overdue, and the client has made a reasonable effort to fulfil the contractual conditions
previously agreed and is expected to have the capacity to meet the new terms agreed. The renegetiation normally
includes the maturity extension, changes in the payment dates defined and / or amendment of the contracts’
covenants. Whenever possible, the renegotiation includes obtaining new collaterals. The renegotiated loans are still
subject to an impairment analysis resulting from the revaluation of the new expected cash flows, based in the new
confract terms, updated at the original effective interest rate and taking into account the new collaterals.

Loans and advances to customers by interest rate type are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of eure)

Variable interest rate 41 581 173 43 417 949
Fixed interest rate 11 135 569 10 009 555
52716142 53427504
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An analysis of finance leases by the period to maturity is presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Gross investment in finance leases, receivable

Up to 1 year 364 545 432202
From 1 to 5 years 1022 263 1130 447
More than 5 years 1 186 455 1373116
2573263 2935765
Unearned finance income on finance leases

Up to 1 year 61 705 68 859
From 1 to 5 years 136 182 157217
More than 5 years 97817 79 416
295 704 305 492

Present value of minimum lease payments, receivable
Up to 1 year 302 840 363 343
From 1to 5vyears 386 081 973 230
Moie than 5 years 1088 638 1293 700
2277559 2630273
Impairment (175 104) { 144 097)
2102 455 2486176

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 there are no finance leases which represent individually more than 5% of the
total minimwm lease payments. There are no finance leases with contingent rents.
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NOTE 27- HELD-TO-MATURITY INYESTMENTS

The held-to-maturity investments, can be analysed as follows:

31.12,2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of curo)
Bonds and other fixed income securities

Issued by governinent and public entities

437778 404 393

Issued by other entitics 1247 711 753765
1 685 489 1158 158

Impairment losses (13 421) (39111)
1672 068 1119047

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of held-to-maturity investments by the period to maturity is
presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Up to 3 months

596 845 20 561

3 to 12 months 66 715 198 989
1to 5 years 496 697 355029
More than 5 years 525232 583 579
1685489 1158158

The analysis of the held-to-maturity investments by quoted and unquoted securities is presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Quated Unquoted Total Quoted Unquofed Total
(in thousands of euro)
Bonds and other fixed income securities
Issued by government and public entilies 435277 2501 437778 401 800 2593 404 393
Issued by atherentiliss 208735 1 038 976 1 247711 233033 520732 753 765
644 012 I 041 477 1 685 489 634 833 523 325 1158 158
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The changes occurred in impairment losses of held to maturity investments are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
Balance as at I January 3o 11t 34278
Charge of the year - 7260
Charge off {25317} (2429
Write back for the year ( 372) -
Exchange differences and other (1 2
Balance as at 31 December 13 421 39111

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group has reclassified non-derivative financial assets fo the held-fo-
maturity investments category for an amount of euro 767.2 million, as follows:

Reclassification date Amontisation ef
Acquisition - Marke| value a3 Fair value

eost Fairvalue reserve Fulure Effective 4t 31 December m

s Bookvalwe @ inferest 2008 reserye unliil

Posifive Negative  csh-flows ) 3122013

{in (housands ol enra)
Available-for-sale financial assets 551897 522715 424 {29 607) 701070 575% 485 831 26774
Financial assels held-for-trading 243114 244 530 - - 408976 11,504 237295

Bonds and other fixedincome securilies 795011 767 245 424 {29 607) 1110 046 123 126 26774

) Undiscomntod capital and inlerest cash Mows; folure interest is calodaied based on Lhe forward inlerest rales at the date of reclasefication.

b) Elfective inleresl rale was calenlated based on the formard inleres! rates al Lhe dale of reclassification; 1he maturity considered was the minimem between the call dete, if applicable and (he matwrily
dale of the financial asset.

¢) Amorigalion in Lbe year ended 31 December 2013 emownt fo curo 817 thousand (31 Decermber 2012: ¢uro 862 thousand).

The reclassification of financial assets held-for-trading as held-to-maturity investinents was performed following the
amendment to IAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and measurement and IFRS 7 Financial instruments:
disclosures, adopted by the Regulation (EU) n® 1004/2008 issued in 15 Cctober 2008.

This reclassification was made due to the market conditions following the international financial crises that
characterised the year 2008, which was considered to be one of the rare circumstances justifying the application of
the amendment to IAS 39.

The effect in the 2013 financial statements that would have been recognised if the reclassifications were not made in
2008 is presented in Notes 22 and 24.

Following the publication by the Bank of Portugal, in May 2011 of Notice no. 3/2011, which has established new
minimum levels for the Core Tier 1 ratio (9% at 31 December 2011 and 10% in 31 December 2012) and bearing in
mind the need to achieve, from 2014 onwards, a stable funding ratio of 100%, according to the Memorandum of
Tconomic and Financial Policies established befween the Portuguese Government, the Evropean Commission (EC),
the European Central Bank (ECB) and the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the Group has decided during the
second half of 2011 to sell a significant portion of the held-to-maturity investments portfolio. Under this decision,
the securities to be sold were transferred to the available-for-sale financial assets portfolio and valued at market
value.
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Taking into account that the reclassification and subsequent sale of those securities is attributable to the significant
increase in the industry regulatory capital requirements, it qualifies as an exception to the fainting rules as
established under paragraph AG 22 of TAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'. On these basis
and once the Group has the intention and ability to hold the remaining securities until their maturity, they remained
classified on the held-to-maturity investments portfolio.

The effects of the securities reclassification in the Group consolidated financial statements, at the transfer date, can

be analysed as follows:

From held-to-maturity investments To available-for-sale financial assets
Acquisilion Eair value Tmpairment Balance Acquisition Fair value Tnpairment Balance
cost reserve (a) cost reserve
584 923 (6138) ( 50) 578 7135 584 923 (13 390) { 50} 571 283

(2) Remaining value of the fair value reserves at the transfer date for the held-fo-maturity investinents portfolio occurred with
reference 1o 1 June 2008.

During the second quarter of 2011, taking in consideration the new solvency rules applicable to the insurance
industry in Portugal, in-force from 1 January 2011, the insurance entities of the Group have reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets an amount of euro 150 253 thousand to held-to-maturity investments (see Note
24), in accordance with TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, as follows:

Reclassificalion dafe Amoriisafion of
PPN = = Markel vrlne as
Acqaisition Fair valne resene 7 Fifective Falr valme
—_—_— nlare atdl December .
cost Boak value . . - w feterest 2011 reserve walil
Posktive Negalive cash-lonry cate ® 31.12.2013
(in thousands of eura)
Available-fer-sale [Inancial assels 172337 150253 . (22083} 210961 9.09% 129724 k2707
Bonds and other fixed Income securities 172337 150 253 (22 083) 210964 129 724 12 707

2} Uadiscounled capita] end interest cash flows; fture Interesl is calenlsled based o the ferward interest rates sl the date of reclassificalion.
W) Eleclive interest rate was caleulaied based on 1he fornard interest rates at Lhe dale of reclassification; the malwily considered was Ibe minimuem belween the calk dute, if
applicatie andihe matmily date of the finaneial assel.

It should be noted that this reclassification was made exclusively taking in consideration the solvency rules
applicable to the insurance industry and has no impact in terms of ESFG regulatory capital. In accordance with the
Bank of Portugal rules, the investments held by ESFG in insurance subsidiaries, are measured for the purposes of
the regulatory capital, in accordance with the equity method and are deducted from consolidated own funds as

explained in Note 53.
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NOTE 28- DERIVATIVES FOR RISK MANAGEMENT PURPOSES

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fair value of the derivatives for risk management purposes can be analysed
as follows:

31.12.2013 31122012
Oither Qiher
derivatives for derivatives for
H Hedgi
e eldgllng risk Total e.dgl_ng risk Tetal
rivatives derivalives
management management
purposes RIrposes
(In thousauds of enro)
Derivalives for risk management purposes
Derivatives for risk managemen! purposes - assets 131641 23750 363391 153 897 362621 516 520
Derivalives for risk managemeni purposes - liahilities {68 305) {62405) {130710) (431 581) (31618} {125199)
63 336 169 345 132681 110316 281005 391321
Accumolated change in the fair value component of
assels and liakilities being hedged
Financial assels
Loans and advanges to cusiomers 43102 - 43102 22391 - 2239
43 102 - 43 102 22 M1 - 22391
Finarcial liabilities
Deposis {rem banks (50109) 1311 {48778) (67956) - (67 556)
Due lo cuslomers { 501) (48 110) (48611) { 787} (90 099) {90 386)
Debl securities issued (19636) (9711) {29347 (38472) 47 631 9159
(70 246) {56 490) (126 736) (107 255) (42 468) {149 723)
(27 144) (56 490) (83634) (84 864) (42 468} (127332)

As mentioned in the accounting policy described in Note 2.4, derivatives for risk management purposes includes
hedging derivatives and derivatives contracted to manage the risk of certain financial assets and financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss (and that were not classified as hedging derivatives).

Hedging derivatives

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fair value hedge relationships present the following features:

31,12.2013

Changesinibe  Accwmalaled
falrvalee of the  ¢hamges iufair  Chaageslathe fair
Falryalpe of derivathe 1o the valee of the value of 1he hedged
Derivative Iedzedltem Medgedrisk Notioaal derivaile @ year < Tedgeditem = llem la the year™

(n thoniands ofenta)

Interesl Rate Swapf Curency Loans and advanees (o customers Interest rate 03713 (1121) {21 366) §1102 20821
Interesi Rate Swap Deposits frombanks Inlerest rate 1000 LRk {19 161} {50109) 178381
Intewrst Rate Swap Due 1o cuslomers [nlerest rale 11317 2176 { 285) { 501) 285
Equity/Inlerest Rate Swap Pebi security tssaed Inlerest nale/Quotation 1824724 18236 (26 263} {19 636) H M3

2611879 61315 (67316} (27144 59345

DAt sbe o rhe hedzed risk
@ [acindcs scermedinlered
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31.11,2012

Chaogesimibe  Accnmulated
fairvalaeof the chaogeslafalr  Chasges lnthe fuir
Fairvalueof  derivafiveimthe  1aleeof 1he valee of the bedged
Derivative Hedgeditem Hedged risk Notional derivaiye @ year® kedgedifem ™ ligm im the year™

O (hansan ds of enro)

Interest Rale Swap! Cumency Loans and advances 1o cuslomers Inte st fale 529897 (233849} (179) 22391 { 638)
Interest Rate Swap Deposils frombanks Tnlerest nale 172000 64725 11719 (67 556) (174
Interest Rate Swap Due to customsrs Interest rate 1417 217 { 50y { 787} 3
Equily/Interest Rale Swap Debisecanly isued Tnterest rale/Quolation 1656777 673101 4919 (38472) (3685)

2365091 110316 18479 (84 861) (16016)

AIAlIrAbudabe 1o 1he hadgedrisk
) Toclwfes aceroed interest

Changes in the fair value of the hedged items mentioned above and of the respective hedging derivatives are
recognised in the income statement under net gains / {losses) from financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2013, the ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge operations amounted to a loss of euro 8.2
million (31 December 2012: euro 2.5 million gain) and was recognised in the income statement. ESFG Group
evaluates on an ongoing basis the effectiveness of the hedges.

Other derivatives for risk management purposes

Other derivatives for risk management purposes includes derivatives held to hedge financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss in accordance with the accounting policies described in Notes 2.5, 2.6
and 2.8 and that the Group did not classify as hedging derivatives.

The book value of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss can be analysed as
follows:

31122013
Derlvaiive Ausels J Llabilltles assoclated
Derlyati Floancla) asaets 7 1labiilties
erhatie ecomomleslly hedgod Changes [uibe Chamges Inths o o Redemption
Notlonsl Falr Yalne falr value Fair Valac falr value .mun lg amouniat
deelap the year durlng the year = matarity™
{ln thowsands of enro)
Assels
Credit Default Swop Loans 20d advances (o customers 268 000 8059 (43389) - - . 268 000
LiatilIries
Inrerest Rote Swap Due (o customers G080 00D 7152 (59591) (45 10) 41221 9346477 9293367
Inrerest Raie Swap/FX Forword Dbl securily issued P95 563 63273 {24278} 26276 (50102) 316026 386 407
Credit Default Swap Pebl securily issued 44121 12505 11547 {23472 (8169) 467 953 439005
Equity Swop Dbl secarily sued 431476 6263 1207 {7607y (13459) 353257 358 851
Equity Option Bebi securily issued 42010 175 681 (3487 {3765) 113719 13019
11368302 169345 (103 256) {56 420} {M2M) 13 655081 10 BRI 690

81 Corresponds 1o 1be minin i guarnsted umoml lo be reimbursed al matmrity
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1122002

Fiuanclal assels J1labilirics

Derharite

Asaets J L1ablIties assoclated

Derivative Changes in he Changes [n ike Redemption
onomically hedged &
* 7 kel Notioual Falr Valoc falr valme Talr Valae falr value Careying amonal af
amoani
darlug the year durlng the year ettty @
(I thomsands of euro)
Assels
Credir Defapll Swap Loans and advances to customens 84000 1376 {50072) &4 000
Liahilltes
Interest Rate Swap Due to cuslomers 7 540 000 179008 &7 206 {90059) (11103) RT3 778 8712699
Interest Rate Swap/FX Forward Debt security issued 485628 95716 8817 217 (5300 303 386 304
Credit Default Swap Debr accuriy ssued 346845 5810 T (22202) {53860) 376308 158723
Equity Swap Debt sccuriy Bsoed 405 155 (3662) 1581 2985 (24251 339252 3572237
Equity Option Del security Ssued 82525 21 B {2369) (5319) 125874 131 828
5944 153 1R1 005 156 551 (42 468) (247 509) 9936 598 10 GIS 206

OXCorresponds lo Lhe mirimem gwrealcd amami 1o be reimbarsed al matority

The credit default swaps associated to loans to customers are part of synthetic securitisation operations, as

mentioned in Note 50.

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, includes a
positive cumulative effect of euro 93.8 million (31 December 2012: positive cumulative effect of euro 167.1
million) attributable to the Group’s own credit risk. The change in fair value attributable to the Group’s own credit
risk resulted in the recognition, in 2013, of a loss amounting to euro 73.3 million (31 December 2012: loss of euro

35.2 million).

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of derivatives for risk managemeni purposes by the period to

maturity is as follows:

Up to 3 months

3 to 12 months
1to Syecars

More than 5 years

31.12.2013

31,12.2012

Netional

Fair value Notional

Fair value

(in thousands of euro}

1329792 17714 1674 024 13571
6725633 16 069 2361 702 25889
4516609 89 180 7205 288 205 686
I 408 147 109718 1068 230 146 175
13 980 181 232 681 12 309 244 391 321
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continue)
(Amounnts expressed in thonsands of enro, except when indicated)

NOTE 30- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 this balance is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euroc)
Property
Land and buildings 536 205 512493
Improvements in leasehold property 238999 228 930
Other 374 1139
775578 742 562
Equipment
Computer equipment 342 117 348 663
Furniture 143 876 139792
Fixtures 143 279 146 077
Security equipment 44 893 42 469
Office equipment 40 545 39917
Motor vehicles 17 400 14 693
Other 10 595 13 675
742 705 745 286
Other 6615 13 029
1524 898 1500877
Work in progress
Land and buildings 389342 401 044
Improvement in leasehold property 416 344
Equipment 2 823 2170
Other 67 56
392 648 403 614
Accumulated depreciation (942 928) {921 485)
Impairment losses ( 389) ( 389
(943 317) (921 874)
974 229 982 617

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2,14, the Group concluded that there was an indication
of impairment in relation to certain property and equipment. Therefore it has performed impairment tests for these
assets and has recognised an accumulated impairment loss of euro 389 thousand (31 December 2012: eurc 389
thousand).
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The movement in this balance was as follows:

Acqulsition costs
Balance as at 31 December 2011
Change in the scope of consolidation (b)
Acquisilions
Disposals
Transfers (a)
Exchange dilferences and olher (c)

Balancc as at 31 December 2012
Acquisitions
Disposals

Transfers (a)
Exchange differences and other

Balance a5 at 31 December 2013

Depreciation
Balance as af 31 December 2011
Change in the scope of consolidation (D)
Depreciation
Disposals
Transfers (a)
Exchange differences and other {c)

Balance as at 31 December 2012

Depreciation

Disposals

Transfers (a)

Exchange differences and other

Balance as at 31 Decernhber 2013
Tmpairnent

Balance as at 31 December 2011
Impaiment losses

Balance as at 31 December 2012

Balance as at 31 December 2013
Ncet balance as at 31 December 2013
Net balance as at 31 December 2012

Work in
Property Equipment Other progress Total
{in thousands of eure)

1007 089 847901 25262 333835 2214 087
{279 558) { 130 856) (12737) (3451) (426 602)
5615 30298 51t 116 764 153 188
(20 68E) (13 607) { 61) { 850) (35206)
22 859 5009 - {34 592) (6724)
7245 6 541 54 (3092) 5748
741 562 745 286 13 029 403 614 1904491
5108 20 404 433 86 427 121372
(6412) (27327) - (8N (33 820)
38123 1353 (6 665) (41 438) (B62T)
(3 803) (6011 ( 182) {55 8M) (65 870)
775 8§78 T42 705 L6615 392 648 1917 546
347 428 675793 14 014 - 1037235
(59 832) { 104 008) (1107s) - ( 175 005)
30749 54929 2864 - B8 542
(19087 (8781) { 45) - (27913)
{11y ( 413) - - {1523)

{ 321) 614 56 - 149
297 627 G618 044 5814 - 921 485
22 474 41463 878 - 64 815
{6396) (26 667) - - (33063)
4012 (1516) (4511 - (2015)
{N7n) {7238) { 139) - (8294)
316 500 624 086 2042 - 942 928
389 - 517 - 13406
. - (917} - {917}

389 - - - 349
389 - - - 389
458 389 118619 4 573 392 648 974 229
444 546 127 242 7215 403 614 982 617

(r) Relating to disconfinued branches, lransferred 10 fhe balance Non-cument assets held for sale
(b) Relating to the change in the consolidation method of ES Saude, lrom full consolidation Lo the equity method, as wellas the sale of Pastor

Vida and the acquisition of Tranquilidade Angola

(c)Relating to the acquisition o BES Vida
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The balance Equipment — Motor vehicles includes equipment acquired under finance lease agreements, whose
payment schedule is as follows:

31.12.2013  31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Gross investment in finance leases, payable

Up to 1 year 69 106
From 1 to 5years 73 138
142 244
Interest
Up to 1 year 4 10
From 1to 5 years 4 5
8 15
Prineipal
Upto Lyear 65 96
From 1 to 5 years 69 133
134 229
NOTE 31 - INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are analysed as follows:

31.12,2013 31122012

(int thousands of euro)

Insurance activity 621000 676 853
Real estate activity 98 422 120 470
719 422 797 323
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

The movemnent in investment properties for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 can be analysed as
follows:

Insurance Real estate
activity activity Total

(in thousands of euro)

Net balance as at 31 December 2011 315393 2 645 318 038
Change in the scope of consolidation (a) 391418 122 759 514 177
Acquisitions 62 2754 2816
Improvements 96 - 946
Disposals (12 503) - (12 503)
Other (2899 (4 896) (7795)
Unrecalised gains / (losses) { 15 564) ( 147 (15711)

Net balance as at 31 December 2012 676 853 120 470 797 323
Change in the scope of consolidation (b) - {21 574) (21574}
Acquisitions 350 628 978
Improvements 4932 - 4932
Disposals {21 646) - (21 646)
Other { 46 556) 20 ( 46 536)
Unrealised gains / (losses) 7067 (1122) 5945

Net balance as at 31 December 2013 621000 98 422 719 422

{(a) relating to the consolidation of BES Vida, Fungere, Fungepi, Fundo de Investimento Imobiliario Fechado
Corpus Christi, Imoerescente and Imoprime

(b) relating to the deconsolidation of Imocrescente

The carrying amount of investment property is the fair value of the property as determined by a registered
independent appraiser having an appropriate recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the
location and category of the property being valued. Fair values were determined having regard to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the same location as the Group’s investment property when available.

Investinent property includes a number of commercial properties that are leased to third parties. Most lease contracts
do not have a specified term being possible for the lessee to cancel at any time. However, for a small part of
commercial properties leased to third parties on average the leases contain an initial non-cancellable period of 10
years. Subsequent renewals are negotiated with the lessee.

The increase in fair value of investment property of euro 6.1 million (31 December 2012: decrease of ewro 15.7
million) is recognised in Other operating income and expenses. Rental income from investment property of euro
12,7 million (31 December 2012: euro 13.2 million} is recognised in Other operating income.

The direct operating expenses including repairs and maintenance arising from investment property that generated
rental income during the year reached 4.2 million euro (31 December 2012: euro 5.3 million). The direct operating
expenses including repairs and maintenance arising from investment property that did not generate rental income
during the year reached euro 0.2 million (31 December 2012: euro 0.7 million).
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NOTE 32 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 this balance is analysed as follows:
31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Goodwill 454 089 441 504
Value in foree - 107 768
Internally developed
Software 130691 107 437
Acquired from third parties
Software 712049 680 960
Other 5484 1870
717533 632 830
Work in progress 37835 40 028
1340 148 1379567
Accumulated amortisation {721 815) ( 666 578)
Impairment ( 10 064) (9779)
608 269 703 210
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Goodwill, recognised in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.2, is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)
BES Vida 234 574 234 574
PARTRAN 61123 61123
BES 58336 58336
BESPAR 5960 5960
MARIGNAN GESTION 3o13 3613
BEST 2 349 2349
CONCORDIA 1722 1756
ES Investment Holding (a) 47 540 48 567
ES Gestion 2459 2459
AMAN BANK 16 046 16 046
Imbassafi 13 526 -
Other 6 841 6721
454 089 441 504
Impairment ( 10 064) (9779
444 025 431725

(a) Holding company of Execution/Noble

In May 2012, BES acquired from Credit Agricole the remaining 50% of shate capital of BES Vida becoming to hold
the entire share capital and the management control over its activities. Goodwill and Value in Force of BES Vida, in
the amount of euro 234.6 million and euro 107.8 miltion, respectively, were calculated at the date of acquisition on a
provisional basis, in accordance with paragraph 45 of IFRS 3.

Considering the reinsurance contract signed during 2013 and described in Note 11, which reinsures 100% of the life
insurance portfolio, including all the policies in force in BES Vida as at 30 June 2013, transferring to the reinsurer
all risks and rewards associated to these contracts, the respective value in force in the amount of euro 137.5 was
derecognised. The value in force of the remaining contracts, in the net amount of euro 25.4 million at the date of the
reinsurance contract, have a liability nature and, as such, were accounted in Other liabilities. As at 31 December
2013 the amount was amortised in euro 3.5 million amounting as at date to evro 21.9 million (see Note 44).

BES Vida

The value of BES Vida was determined considering the Embedded Value and the Goodwill. The Embedded Value
consists in adding (i) the company’s equity {(adjusted of unrealised gains and losses, net of tax) and (i) and the
expected present value of flow of distributable future profits from the policies in force at valuation date (adjusted by
the cost of the solvency margin, the time value of options and guarantees and by the cost of residual risks that are
not coverable). Goodwill consists in the value of new business to be developed by the conpany in the future.

For valuation purposes, it was used the business projections for the next 30 years and was applied a discount rate of
9.5%, which included an appropriate risk premium for the estimated cash-flows. Based in these assumptions the
recoverable amount of the investment exceeds the book value, including Goodwill.
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The projections for a 20 year period are based in the long term nature of the insurance business, where either risk
and financial investment contracts have long term maturities.

Partran

Partran is the holding company for Tranquilidade Sub-Group. The recoverable amount of Partran was determined
based on (i) the value of Tranquilidade business stand-alone and (ii) the value of each of its subsidiaries.

The valuations performed used a Dividend Discounted Methodology and were back tested based on market
multiples considering a control premium,

Based on the above assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount including goodwill.

BES

The recoverable amount of BES was determined based on appropriate market multiples taking in consideration (i)
historical earnings estimates for the sector, discounted using an adeguate discount rate which includes a risk
preminm appropriated for the estimated future cash-flows and (ii) adequate control premiums.

Based on the above analysis, the recoverable amnount of the investment in BES exceeded the respective carrying
amount including goodwill.

ES Investment Holding Limited

The recoverable amount of ES Investment Holding Limited has been determined using cash flow/dividends
predictions based on (i) the financial budget approved by management covering a nine-year period, (ii} a terminal
growth rate of 3%, in line with the estimated nominal growth for the country where the company is located and (iii)
a discount rate of 9.0% including a risk premium appropriated to the estimated foture cash-flows.

The nine-year period for estimating the future cash-flows reflect the fact that the company was acquired in late 2010
and its business strategy is being redefined. It is expected that the company achieves a maturity stage only at the end

of that time period.

Based on the above assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount including goodwill,

Aman Bank

On 31 December 2011, the Group recognised an impairment of euro 8 023 thousand in goodwill related with the
acquisition of Aman Bank. The impairment reffects the changes of the estimated future cash flows expected by the
Group in this entity as a result of the political situation lived in Libya during 2011.

In 2012 and 2013, this entity showed a positive trend, thus there was no need to reinforce the impairment loss

recognised.

The balance of internally developed software includes the costs incurred by the Group in the development and
implementation of software applications that will gencrate economic benefits in the future (see Note 2.15).
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The movement in this balance was as follows:

Goodwill and

Value in Work in
Foree Software Other progress Total
(in thousands of curo)
Acquisition costs
Balance as at 31 December 2011 404 467 742370 1236 32798 1180471
Acquisilions:
Internally developed - n - 8257 8630
Acquired from third pariies (a) 346 696 12 959 q 30 326 390025
Disposals ( 182383) (2998) ( 81) ( 103) ( 185 565)
Transfers - 32 440 - (32454) (4
Exchange differences and other (b) (¢) (19 108) 9594 35 1204 (8275)
Balance as at 31 December 2012 542272 788 397 1870 40028 1379 567
Acquisilions:
Intematly developed - 252 - 9147 9399
Acquired from third parties 13 526 14393 3650 29 189 60 758
Disposals (d) { 137476) ( 460) (5) - (137 941)
Transfers (d) 21983 39141 - (39741) 21989
Exchange differences and other 6778 417 (3D ( 788) 6376
Balance as at 31 December 2013 454 089 842 740 5484 37835 1340148
Ameorlisation
Balance as at 31 December 2011 5756 614 777 1114 - 621 647
Change in the scope of consolidation - (6317 ( 10 098) - (16 410)
Amortisation 4322 52 616 259 - 57237
Disposals (10 078) (2875) ¢ 81) . (13034}
Exchange differences and other {(e) (2 169) 9180 49 - 7060
Balance as at 31 December 2012 {2 169) 667 3B6 (8717) - 656 500
Amortisalion - 54 317 326 - 54 643
Disposals - { 461} {35) - { 466)
Exchange differences and other 2169 {1042) 0011 - 11 138
Balance as at 31 December 2013 - 720 200 1615 - 721 815
Impairment
Balance as at 31 December 2011 9628 - - - 9628
Exchange differences and other 151 - - - 151
Balance as af 31 December 2012 9779 - - - 9779
Impairment losses 362 - - - 362
Exchange differences and other (77 - - - {77
Balance as at 31 Deeember 2013 10 064 - - - 10 064
Net balance as at 31 December 2013 444 025 122 540 3 869 37835 608 269
Net balance as at 31 December 2012 541 662 121 011 10 587 40028 713 288

() relating to the acquisition of BES Vida and Tranquilidade Angola

(b) includes euro 19 683 thousand relating to the de-recognilien of goedwill on Gespastor

(c) includes euro 8 917 thousand relating to the acquisiltion of BES Vida
(d) BES VIF - Other liabilities
{e) includes euro 8 791 thousand relaling to the acquisition ofBES Vida
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NOTE 33 - INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

The financial information concerning associates is presented in the following table:

Assels Liabillticy Equily Income ProflU(Loss) of the year
aLiz.2813 300.2901 iLn.zen JLiz.z802 IL11.281Y JL12.2812 ILIEI0D JLiz.zen 3LiTen IL122812
(in thonsands af¢nro)
BES SEGUROS 116 330 120243 84941 89 019 31389 31204 73935 66 537 7142 5971
EUROP ASISTANCE 49 186 50053 33862 15048 13323 15005 53439 55456 4040 2797
ESSAUDE 41717 492 447 334 538 364013 143212 128 432 374285 3H4sn 14023 { 2631)
LOCARENT 244 535 283 710 231 418 277404 13117 94336 B4 420 94213 2401 2395
ESECGUR 36 790 39121 24493 28 52& 12295 10 595 51252 30980 998 595
FUNDO ESIBERIA 15286 13 894 104 169 15182 13725 422 466 (13 ( 106y
DRB INTERNACIONAL - 12833 - 12 407 - 476 - 1213 - { 589
AUTOPISTA PEROTE-XALAPA - 650179 - 511167 - 129012 - - . { 6634)
ASCENDT GROUP 4314900 4056 000 3750 000 3636 000 564 000 400 ¢00 138 000 140 000 21 000 28 000
EMPARK 768 532 782872 G413 093 651 074 123 439 131 798 163 £33 166594 { 3 008) (7171
AUVISA - AUTOVIA DE LOS VINEDOS 203 484 216000 213 893 222000 €54910) { 6000) 1484 14 000 (2940) { 4000}
UNICRE 313 889 305 005 185 723 F72 941 130 166 125064 197139 231070 D745 1L 256
MOZA BANCO 36) 146 186 719 32739 154 633 33 750 32036 46091 21 76D 924 { 3189)
RODI SINKS & 1DEAS 43 034 43445 12138 20 337 23946 215308 17268 12528 1324 1609
Acquisition cost Vatlng interesi Book value Share of profil of associates
AL12.2010) JL12.2012 3172013 JLiz.2012 31.12.201 JLiz.zonR 31112013 JLE2.20R
{in thousands of euro)
DES SEGUROS 7501 7501 50.00% 50.00% 15 695 15 602 3571 3486
EURCP ASSISTANCE 2344 2344 47.00% 47.00% 5792 5642 1399 1314
ES SAUDE 143 747 143 747 42.839% 42.89% 120 580 114 252 6234 { 604)
LOCARENT 2967 2 967 50.00% 50.00% 6 869 4478 1201 1298
ESEGUR ¢ 634 9634 44.00% 44.00% 12 254 11 506 439 262
FUNDO ESIBERIA 8 081 7087 38.67% IR.67T% 7312 5649 658 261
BRD INTERNACIONAL - 10 659 - 25.00% - 119 101 ( 216)
AUTOPISTAPEROTE-XALAPA . 36678 - 20.00% . 30802 31647
ASCENDI GROUP 179 772 179 772 40.00% 40.00% 150 388 186 953 { 431) 6 566
EMPARK 52429 52429 22.20% 22.20% 47 331 50090 { 2014) ( 2193)
AUVISA - AUTOVIA DE LOS VINEDOS 4] 056 41 056 50.00% 50.00% 34 792 34792 - ({2330
UNICRE L1497 11 497 17.50% 12.50% 22779 2] 386 1712 1970
MOZA BANCO 37707 12 791 25.10% 25.10% 37603 12234 669 { 826)
RODI SINKS & IDEAS 1240 1240 24.81% 24.831% 81387 8129 257 194
Others 160 44 151 933 136 69! 138 478 {5473 { 10631)
658019 670 435 606 473 &40 614 8323 4 756
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The movement accurred in this balance is presented as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Change in the scope of consolidation
Disposals

Acquisitions and capital increases (See Notel)

Share of profit of associates

Fair value reserve frominvestments in associates

Dividends received
Exchange differences and other

Balance at the end of the year

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of enro)

640 614 578 327
10017 47 047
(79 839) (60 026)
35377 32966
8823 4756
979 44770
(6253) (3305)
(3245) (3921)
606 473 640 614

The changes in consolidation scope in 2013, arise from the full consolidation of the Fund Tinopriine,

The changes in consolidation scope in 2012, arise from (i) the full consolidation of BES Vida from 1 May 2012,
which in 2011 was included in ESFG consolidated financial statements following the equity method; and (ii) the loss
of control over ES Sailde in 2012, this entity being currently included in these consolidated financial statements

following the equity method.

NOTE 34- TECHNICAL RESERVES

The direct insurance and reinsurance ceded technical reserves are analysed as follows:

3122013 31.12.2012
Direct Reinsurance Direct Reiusurance
insurance ceded Total insurance ceded Tatal
(in thousands of curao)

Uneamed preniunis reserve 111940 (19739) 92201 114019 (19651) 94 368
Life mathemalical reserve 1959 962 (7510) 1992452 1831675 { 634) 1831041
Claims outslanding reserve 499490 (48738) 450752 317407 (47692) 469715
Unexpired risks reserve 22040 - 22040 19476 - 19476
Reserve for bonus and rebates 9724 { 912) 8812 5751 (2796) 2955
2643 156 (76 899) 2 566 257 2488328 (70 773) 2417555
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The life mathematical reserve is analysed as follows:

31,12,2013 3ta2.2012
Direct Reinsurance Direct Reinsurance
insurance ceded Toral insurance ceded Tofal

(in thonsands of curo}

Annuilies 113102 {7509 105 593 114 286 ( 634) 113652
Sayinpg Conlracts wilh Profit Sharing 1 886 860 (n 1886 859 1717389 - 1717 389
1999962 (7510) 1992 452 1831675 { 634) 1 831 041

In accordance with IFRS 4, the contracts issued by the Group for which there is only a transfer of financial risk, with
no discretionary profit sharing, are classified as investment contracts and accounted for as financial liabilities.

The claims outstanding reserve by line of business is analysed as follows:

31122013 31.12.2012
Direct Relnsnrance Direct Reinsurance
insurance ceded Total insurance ceded Total

(in thousands of curo)

iife 43 163 (3657 44 506 35225 (1813) 331352
Workers compensation (rathematical reserve) 13629 { 525) 135763 128630 (1002) 127628
Workers compensation (not related to life pensians) 65559 {3245) 62314 59740 (1379) 58366
Accidenis and health 10 126 { 183) 9938 10273 { 243) 10030
Fire and other hazards SR (162387 13835 43321 (18742) 245719
Muotor 174997 {16 [50) 158 847 210614 (14 206) 196 408
Mantime, arlne and Iransporiation 6737 {31e1) 3636 6601 (23815) 3788
Third parties liabilities 19408 (2945) 16463 21305 (6133) 15172
Credit and surelyship 42 (12) 30 ] { 40) 40
Other 2993 .{2628) 365 1616 {1261) 352

499 440 (48 738) 450 752 317407 {47 692} 469 715

The claims outstanding reserve represents unsettled claims occurred before the balance sheet date and includes an
estimated provision in the amount of euro 22 850 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 22 106 thousand), for claims
incurred before 31 December 2013, but not reported (TBNR).

Included in the amount of claims outstanding for workers’ compensation is euro 136 293 thousand (31 December
2012: euro 120 8835 thousand), relating to the mathematical reserve for workers’ compensation.

The mathematical reserve for workers’ compensation includes an amount of euro 0 (31 December 2012: euro 0
thousand) as a result of the liability adequacy test (see Note 53).

Additionally, mathematical reserve for workers® compensation also includes an accrual related to the present value
of the future contributions to Workers Compensation Fund {(FAT) for an amount of euro 8 832 thousand (31
December 2012: euro 7 668 thousand).

The claims outstanding reserve also includes an estimation of future costs related to the settlement of pending claims

(expense reserve), both-declared and non-declared, for an amount of euro 26 473 thousand (31 December 2012: euro
22 168 thowsand).
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The movements on the claims outstanding reserve of direct insurance business are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance at the beginning of the year 517 407 499 462
Change in the scope of consolidation - 26328
Plus incurred claims
Current period 569278 695 230
Prior periods (47 669) (40 062)
Less paid claims related to
Current period (422 706) (548 278)
Prior periods (116 820} (115273)
Balance at the end of the year 499 490 517407

The reserve for bonus and rebates corresponds fo the amounts attributed fo policyholders or beneficiaries of
insurance and investment contracts with profit sharing, in the form of profit participation, which have not yet been
specifically allocated and included in the life mathematical reserve.

The movement in the reserve for bonus and rebates for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as
follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thous ands of euro)

Balance at the beginning of the period 5751 5933
Change in the scope of consolidation - {1326)
Amounts paid (2 609) {2099
Estimated attributable amounts 6 582 3243

Balance at the end of the period 9724 5751

As at 31 December 2013, life mathematical reserve includes an amount of euro 0 (31 December 2012: euro 0
thousand) as a result of the liability adequacy test. This test was performed based on the best estimate assumptions
(see Note 533).
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NOTE35- OTHER ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balance other assets is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

Collateral deposits placed
Derivatives
Collateral CLEARNET, V(SA and EBA
Collateral rclated to Letters of Credit
Collateral Deposits for litigations
Collateral Desposits in relation with reinsurance opcrations
.Other
Recoverable government subsidies on mortgage loans
Public sector
Debtors from the banking business
Dcbtors from the insurance business
Debtors from medieal services business
Sundry debtors

{in thousands of euro)

Impairment losses on debtors

Debtors arising out of direct insurance opcrations
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operalions

Impairment losses on debtors arising out of direct
insurance and of reinsurance operations

Accrued income

Prepayments and deferred cosls

Gold, other precious metals, numismatics and other liquid assets
QOther assets

Peferred acquisition costs

Other sundry assels
Stock exchange transactions pending settlement
Other transactions peading settlement

Assets recognised on pensions (see Note 14)

1483337 1 664 467
927 066 1438955
30 701 33 597
44 797 26 694
54 956 53600
334 677 -
91 140 112221
30 426 38 658
191 978 152 428
680 299 631951
23 945 24 101
580 452
11488 21 155
2 422 053 2533212
{ 156 976) {236 196)
2265077 2297016
63 996 67 170
8 558 10 814
72 554 77 984
(7336) (7228)
65218 70 756
66 852 54 497
121 453 119 749
10 247 11127
233 448 264 282
243 605 275 409
21201 21 954
256 333 154 257
57774 222 202
314 107 376 459
10 18 815
3097613 3234 655
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The caption collateral deposits placed includes deposits made by the Group as collateral in order to be able to
perform certain derivative contracts in organized markets {margin accounts) and in over the counter markets (Credit
Support Annex — CSA). This caption also includes a collateral deposit made following the reinsurance agreement
between BES Vida and New Re, in favour of the reinsurer to profect the reinsurer against the credit risk of BES
Vida under the reinsurance agreement,

Loans to companies in which the Group has a non-controlling interest include:

— euro 100 million related with loans to Locarent — Companhia Portuguesa de Aluguer de Viaturas, S.A. (31
December 2012; euro 100 million);

— euro 78,7 million of loans to entities within the Group’s venture capital business, of which euro 49.5 million
are provided for (31 December 2012: euro 67.2 million, of which euro 30.7 million were provided for); and

—  87.2 million of loans and junior securities following the transfer of loans/assels {o companies and specialized
funds, of which euro 83.4 million are provided for (31 December 2012: euro 94.3 million, of which euro 87.7
million were provided for).

As at 31 December 2013, the balance prepayments and deferred costs includes the amount of curo 76 745 thousand
(31 December 2012: euro 64 901 thousand) related to the difference between the nominal amount of loans granted to
Group’s employees under the collective labour agreement for the banking sector (ACT) and their respective fair
value at grant date, calculated in accordance with TAS 39. This amount is charged to the income statement over the
lower period between the remaining maturity of the loan granted, and the estimated remaining service life of the
employee.

The stock exchange transactions pending settlement refer to transactions with securities on behalf of third parties,
recorded on trade date and pending settlement, in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.6.

Deferred acquisition costs relate to the insurance business and can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2¢13 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Non-life insurance business 21201 21954

21201 21954

The movements on the deferred acquisition costs for the non-life business are analysed as follows:

31.12,2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance at the beginning of the year 21 954 22 517
Acquisition costs ofihe year 21201 21954
Acquisition costs amortisation (21 946) (22517)
Others (8 -

Balance at the end of the year 21201 21 954

E-109



ESPiRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 - (Continued)
(Amounnts expressed in thousands of euro, excepf when indicated)

The balance of impairment losses is presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Debtors 156 976 236196
Debtors arising out of direct insurance and reinsurance operations 7336 7228
164 312 243 424

As at 31 December 2012, the impairment losses on debtors caption included also an amount of euro 86.6 million
related to the impairment of international assets in the carbon market.

The movements occurred in impairment losses are presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January 243 424 67597
Change in the scope of consolidation { 101) (12 726)
Charge of the year 32690 196 374
Write back of the year {3627) (13 482)
Charge off (95289 (1104)
Transfers 4335 -
Other (17 120} 6765

Balance as at 31 December 164 312 243424

NOTE36- DEPOSITS FROM CENTRAL BANKS

The balance deposits from central banks in analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

From the European System of Central Banks

Deposits 202 469 129 382
Other funds 9 150 000 10 150 000
9352 469 10279 382

From other Central Banks
Deposits 419775 661 943
419 775 661 943
9772244 10941 325
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, Other funds from the European System of Central Banks includes euro 9 157
million and euro 10 156 million, respectively, covered by securities pledged as collaterals in the amount of euro 18.8
billion and euro 19.6 billion, respectively (see Note 47).

As at 31 December 2013, the batance Deposits from other Central Banks — Deposits includes the amount of euro 3
million related to deposits with Angola Central Bank (31 December 2012: euro 431 million).

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of deposits from Central Banks by the period to maturity is

presented as follows:

Up to 3 months
1to 5 years

NOTE37- DEPOSITS FROM BANKS

The balance deposits from banks is analysed as follows:

Domestic
Loans
Deposits
Very short terms funds
Repurchase agreements
Other funds

International
Deposits
Loans
Very short terms funds
Repurchase agreements
Other funds

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of curo)

642 604 852 635
9129640 10 088 690
9772 244 10 941 325
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

1927 36

336 062 378 864
82111 40 172

- 66 579

2078 4 486
422178 490 137
716 344 378 345
2775812 2433 985
91 049 194 475
817 624 1311 087
210 487 257951
4611316 4575 843
5033 494 5065980

As at 31 December 2013, the balance deposits from banks includes the amount of euro 224 109 thousand (31
December 2012: 612 277 thousand) related to deposits recognised on the balance sheet at fair value through profit or

loss,
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the analysis of deposits from banks by the period te maturity is presented as

follows:

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Up to 3 months 2721882 2318791
3 to 12 months 886 607 1335967
| to 5 years 869 486 683 935
More than 5 years 555519 727 287
5033494 5065980
NOTE38- DUE TO CUSTOMERS
The balance due to customers is analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31122012

Repayable on demand

(in thousands of euro)

Demand deposits 11379 879 11 100 769
Time deposits
Time deposits 23 822 634 22213 567
Notice deposits 18 000 3144
Other 21175 77327
23 861 809 22294038
Savings accounts
Pensioners 295 146 28 022
Emigrants 18 041 3521
Other 2093 436 1645970
2406 623 1677513
Other funds
Repurchase agreement 275003 204 847
Other 170 493 348 307
445 496 553 154
38 093 807 350625474

This balance includes the amount of euro 9 446 million (31 December 2012: euro 8 797 million) of deposits
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss.
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The analysis of the amounts due to customers by the period to maturity is as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Repayable on demand 11379879 11 100769
With agreed maturity:
Up to 3 months 13 798 298 11 503 648
3 to 12 months 9351420 6 516 402
1 to 5years 3358727 6133519
More than 5 years 205 483 371 136

38 093 807 350625474

NOTE39- DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

The balance of debt securities issued is analysed as follows:
31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of curo)

Debt securitics

Buro Medium Term Notes 8745475 10 087 137
Certificates of deposit 342 539 620235
Covered bonds 901 122 864 100
Debt bonds issued 1356727 1409773
Other 1269 345 2971625

12615208 15952 870

As at 31 December 2013, the debt securities issued includes the amount of euro 4 750 million of debt securities
issued with a guarantee from the Portuguese Republic (31 December 2012: euro 4 750 million).

As at 31 December 2013, this balance includes euro 3 723 million (31 December 2012: euro 2 660 thousand) of debt
securities issued at fair value through profit or loss.

On 15 November 2005, ESFG issued the euroc 500 000 000 Fixed Rate Step-Up Notes due 2025 with 10 000
watrants. Each of these Notes bearded interest at the rate of 3.55% until 15 November 2011 and 5.05% from then
on. Each warrant entitles the holder to subscribe euro 50 000 to acquire fully paid up shares of ESFG at an initial
exercise price of euro 24.50 per share. This exercise price has been adjusted following the terms the contractual
conditions to euro 21,24 in 2012, The rights under the warrants are exercisable from and including 26 December
2005 up to the close of business on 8 November 2025.

In the light of TAS 32, the warrants issued correspond (o an equity instrument and therefore are recognised in equity
and the Notes correspond to a debt instrument and are recognised as a liability.

The value attributable to the warrants upon the initial recognition was calculated by deducting, at inception, the fair
value of the Netes from the par value of the instrument as a whole, the fair value attributable to the Notes being
calculated as the present value of the contractual future cash flows discounted at a rate of interest, determined at
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inception, based on comparable Notes providing substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms, but without
the detachable warrants. On this basis, the Group recognised in equity the amount of euro 118 570 thousand related
to the warrants and an amount of euro 381 430 thousand as a liability, cotresponding to the respective fair value at
the date of issue.

After its initial recognition, the liability accrues interest at an effective interest rate of 6.7%, which was the rate used
to fair value the liability at the inception.

During 2013, took place an exchange offer of euro 135.6 million of the Notes for euro 122.0 million bonds
exchangeable into ordinary shares of Banco Espirito Santo, S.A.. This exchange offer resulted in a decrease in other
equity instroments by the amount of euro 32.5 million and in a loss recognised in income statement of euro 7.3
million,

Unless previously redeemed, or repurchased and cancelled, the Notes will be redeemed at their principal amount on
15 November 2025. Following the cancellation of the Notes and Warrants exchanged by ESFG pursuant to the
exchange offer (i) the principal amount outstanding is euro 45.8 million in terins of nominal value and eurc 38.7
million in terms of book value as at 31 December 2013, and (ii) the number of Warrants outstanding is 915 with a
book value of euro 10.5 million.

On 19 December 2011, ESFG issued euro 130 416 000 Convertible Bonds due 2025, as a result of the Exchange
Offer of the Euro 500 000 000 Fixed Rate Step-Up Notes described above. Each bond bears interest at the rate of
9.75 and entitles the holder to convert such Bond into new and/or existing fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of
ESFG. The initial Conversion Price is Euro 17 per Ordinary share. Unless previously redeemed, or repurchased and
cancelled, the Notes will be redeemed at their principal amount on 19 December 2023.

In the light of TAS 32, the conversion option issued cotresponds to an equity instrument and therefore is recognised
in equity and the Notes correspond to a debt instrument and are recognised as a liability.

The value attributable to the conversion option upon the initial recognition was calculated by deducting, at
inception, the fair value of the Notes from the fair value of the instrument as a whole, the fair value attributable to
the Notes being calculated as the present value of the contractual future cash flows discounted at a rate of interest,
determined at inception, based on comparable Notes providing substantially the saine cash flows, on the same terms,
but without the conversion option. On this basis, the Group recognised in equity the amount of euro 17.0 million
related to the conversion option.

Under the covered bonds programme, which has a maximum amount of euro 10 000 million, BES Group issued
covered bonds for a total amount of euro 4 040 million.

The covered bonds are guaranteed by a cover assets pool, comprised of mortgage credit assets and limited classes of
other assets, that the issuer of mortgage covered bonds shall maintain segregated and over which the holders of the
relevant covered bonds have a statutory special creditor privilege. These conditions are set up in Decree-Law no.
5942006, Regulations 5/2006, 6/2006, 7/2006 and 8/2006 of the Bank of Portugal and Instruction 13/2006 of the
Bank of Portugal.
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The main characteristics of these issues are as follows:

Nominal value

Book value (In

Issoe date

Malurily dale Inderest payment Interestrale

Ra

fing

Descripion {In theosands of thousands of
eurg) eoro) Moody's DBRS
BES Covered Bands 3.375% 1000000 830681 17.11.2009 17.022015 Anual 3375% Baad AL
DES Covered Bonds DUEJUL 17 1000 009 - 07.07.2010 09.07.2017 Anual Eurbor &6 Month + 0.60% Baal AL
BES Covered Bonds 21/07/2017 1000 000 - 21.07.2010 21.07.2017 Anual Eunbor & Month + 0.60% Baal AL
BES Covered Bonds DUE4.6% 43000 41441 15122010 26,0.2017 Anual Fied rale 4.6% Baa3 Al
BES Covered Bands HIPOT 2018 1 000 000 - 25.01.2011 25012018 Anual Eanbor 6 Monlh + 0.60% Bpa3 AL
4 (40 000 901 122

As at 31

euro 5 552.6 million (31 December 2012; euro 5 605.1 million) (see Note 20).

December 2013, the morigage loans that collateralise these covered bonds amounted to

The changes occurred in debt securities issued during the year ended 31 December 2013 are analysed as follows:

31.12.2012 Issues Repayments Netrepurchase Other » 31.12.2013
movements
(in thousands ol euro)
Furo Medinm Term Notes 10087 137 1433 796 (2412267) (351017) (11274) 8745 475
Certificates of deposit 620235 120 711 b) {396 027) - (2380) 342 539
Covered bonds 864 100 - - 49927 (12 505) 901 122
Debt bonds issued 2 470 593 433 862 (1482200) (14 861) { 50 666) 1356727
Other 1910 805 4627 [93 (5259297) - {9356) 1269 345
15 952 870 6615562 (9 549 792) (316 851) (86 581) 12 615208

0ther movenienis inelude acerved inlerest, fair value adjusiments and foreign exchange differences
M Centificates of depesil are presenied at Lthe net value, censidering their shart term maturily

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.8, debt issued repurchased by the Group is
derecognised from the balance sheet and the difference between the carrying amount of the liability and its
acquisition cost is recognised in the income statement. Following the repurchases performed in 31 December 2013
and in 31 December 2012, the Group has recognised a gain (already including the gains relating the exchange offer
for the Fixed Rate Step-Up Notes described above) of euro 2.2 million and of euro 74.1 million, respectively (see

Note 12).

The analysis of debt securities issued by the period to maturity is as follows:

Up to 3 months
1to 12 months

| to S years

More than 5 years
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31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

1403 799 2604374
2684613 1 533 996
5144 220 7331 056
3382 576 4 478 444
12 615208 15952 870
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(Amounts expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

NOTE 40- INVESTMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the liabilities arising from investinent contracts are analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)
Fixed rate investment contracts

2754110 1407 617
Investment contracts in which the financial risk is borne by the policyholder 1719811 2436343
4473921 3 844 020

In accordance with IFRS 4, the insurance contracts issued by the Group for which there is only a transfer of financial
risk, with no discretionary participating features, are classified as investment contracis.

The movement in the fiabilities arising out from the investment contracts with fixed rate is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of curo)
Balance as at 1 January

1407677 63973

Change in the scope of consolidation (a) - 376 975
Net deposits received I 480 556 1 071 426
Benefits paid (224 361} ( 156 647)
Technical interest charped 00 238 51950
Balance as at 31 December 2754110 1407677

(a) Related with the full consolidation of BES Vida from | May 2012.

The movement in the liabilities arising out from the investment contracts in which the financial risk is borne by the
policyholder is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

{in thousands of enro}
Balance as at 1 January

2436343 84 791

Change in the scope of consolidation (a) - 1 868 167
Net deposits received 255 819 521017
Benefits paid (1 116 456) (178370)
Changes in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 2890 157227
Technical result 141 215 {16489
Balance as at 31 December 1719811 2436 343

{a) Related with the full consolidation of BES Vida from [ May 2012,
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NOTE 41 - YROVISIONS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balance of provisions presents the following movements:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at I January 255601 212 796
Change in the scope of consolidation - 12 987
Charge of the year/ write back 695 651 57 251
Charge off (16 071) (17 965)
Exchange differences and other {18 161) (9 468)

Balance as at 31 December 917 020 255601

Provisions for an amount of euro 917 020 thousand as at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012: euro 255 601
thousand) are intended to cover litigations and other contingencies related to the Group’s activities, the more
relevant being as follows:

Under the Group financial intermediation activity, Group customers subscribed, through Group network,
debt instruments issued by Espirito Santo International, S.A. (*ESI’) and its subsidiaries Espirito Santo
Property, S.A., Espirito Santo Industrial, S.A. e Espirito Santo Irmfos, S.A., in the amount of euro 4 745
million, of which euro 3 259 million were held, as at 31 December 2013, by private and retail customers
and euro 1 486 million were held, on the same date, by institutional customers. This situation is further
explained in Note 47.

In 2013 ESI Group has prepared a recrganization plan and a deleverage program in order to be able to
rebalance its financial position and proceed with the reimbursement of its liabilities. The measures included
in the referred reorganization plan and deleverage program were integrated in a business plan and the cash
flow projections for the 10-year period up to 2023 which were subject (o analysis made under the review,
led by the Bank of Portugal, which was concluded in the first quarter of 2014, of the loan impairment losses
accounted for by the Group.

Considering the uncertainties associated with the ability to fully implement the internal recrganization plan
and the deleverage program, the Board of Directors of ESFG approved an unconditional and irrevocable
guarantee mechanism in favour of its subsidiaties (see Note 47) with the objective of covering the risk
associated with the fact that ESI issued commercial paper and bonds to customers through the respective
networks. Based on this decision, the Board of Directors approved the set up of a provision amounting to
euro 700 million in the consolidated financial statements of ESFG as at 31 December 2013, recognised
under Provisions.

ESFG’s Board of Directors believes, considering the information included in ESI business plan and cash
flow projections for the 10-year period up to 2023, that the reimbursement of the debt instruments issued by
ESI will be possible through implementation of the deleverage program, the support of ESI shareholders, its
capacity to obtain or renew credit lines in the financial markets and, additionally, through the support from
ESFG.

Contingencies in conneclion with the exchange, during 2000, of Banco Roavista Interatléntico shares for
Bradesco shares. The Group has provisions for an amount of approximately euro 55.3 million (31
December 2012: euro 60.3 million) to cover these contingencies.
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¢ Contingencies in connection with legal processes established following the bankruptcy of clients which
might imply losses for the Group. Provisions for an amount of euro 45.8 million as at 31 December 2013
(31 December 2012: euro 67.7 million) were established to cover these losses.

s Contingencies for ongoing tax processes. To cover these contingencies, the Group maintains provisions of
approximately euro 22.1 million (31 December 2012: euro 36.1 million). The contingencies for ongoing tax
processes includes euro 17.9 million related with the insurance business, of which euro 16.5 million relate
to exercises already inspected by the Portuguese tax authorities and for which a judicial claim has been
presented, being the total amount claimed of euro 19.4 millien.

e The remaining balance of euro 93.8 million (31 December 2012: euro 91.5 million), is maintained to cover
potential losses in connection with the normal activities of the Group, such as frauds, robbery and on-going
judicial cases.

NOTE 42- INCOME TAXLES

The Group determined its current income tax for the year ended 31 December 2013 on the basis of a nominal tax
tate of 25%, plus a Municipal Surcharge of 1.5%, related to the activities undertaken in Portugal (Portugal activity
and foreign branches). An additional tax up to 5% is due, related to a State Surcharge applicable to taxable income
above euro 10 million. This 5% State surcharge is applicable for the years ended 2012 and 2013.

For the year 2013, deferred tax was broadly calculated based on an aggregate rate of 29.5%, resulting from the sum
of the corporate tax rate (23%) approved by Law No. 2/2014, of 16 January, Municipal Surcharge rate (1.5%) and an
average expected rate of State Surcharge (5%).

The deferred tax on tax losses was specifically calculated based on income lax rate (23%) approved by Law No.
2/2014, of 16 January, which amended TRC Code. This tax rate was enacted, or substantially enacted, at the balance
sheet date.

The Portuguese Tax Authorities are entitled to review the annual tax return of the Group subsidiaries domiciled in
Portugal for a period of four years. Hence, it is possible that some additional taxes may be assessed, mainly as a
result of differences in interpretation of the tax law. However, the Board of Directors of the Group subsidiarics
domiciled in Portugal are confident that there will be no material differences arising from tax assessinents within the
context of the financial statements.
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The deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 can be
analysed as follows:

Assels Linbililies Nel
31.12.2013 31122012 al.12.2013 31.12.2012 31.12.2013 IL12.2012

(in thous ands of euro)

Available-for-sale financial assels 69 956 803469 (63 222) ( 102 845) 6734 {2247¢)
Loans and advances (o customers 474 445 412572 - . 474 445 412 572
Properly and equipment 233 21 { 8 889) (8900) {8 636) {3630)
Intangible assets 13354 9474 {4 520) - 8834 947
Invesiments in subsidiaries and assaciates - - (47823) { 163 986) {47823) { 163 936)
Provisions 58650 55302 ({1638) {3 518) 57052 49 786
Technical reserves - - {1931) (1351 {1931) (1851)
Pensions 263 063 257901 ( 493) (35507) 252 568 222394
Long term service benefils 8283 7726 - - 8283 7126
Drebt securilies issued - . { 462) {1010} { 462) {1010}
Olher 5427 18957 - (1199 5427 14758
Taxlosses brought forward 203 440 87165 . 295 203 440 87 460
Deferrediax asset / (liability) 1096 391 929 737 {128 980) (323 520) 967911 606 217
Delerred taxassets/liabilities ofiset {32 008) { 168 784) 32008 168 784

Deferved tax assetf (abillty), net ' 1064383 760953 (96 972) {154 736) 967 911 606217

Metted by Group enlily

The Group does not recognise the deferred tax liabilities on temporary differences of subsidiaries and associates for
which it controls the reversion period and that are realised through the distribution of tax-exempt dividends.

Additionally, the Group does not recognise deferred tax assets on tax losses brought forward by certain subsidiaries,
because it is not expectable that they will be recovered in a foreseeable future. A detail of the tax losses brought
forward for which no deferred tax assets were recognised, is presented as follows:

Deadline 31.12.2013 311222012

to deduction Tax losses brought forward

{(in thousands of euro)

2012 - 2850
2013 3063 3941
2014 22793 27 499
2015 25554 34123
2016 2493 2492
2017 5517 5474
2018 4744 -
Undetermined 205 615 234 682
269 779 311 061
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The changes in net deferred taxes were recognised as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of curo)

Balance at the begining of the period (assets / (liabilities)) 606 217 648 781
Change in the scope of consolidation - 1981
Recognised in the income statement 321625 41157
Recognised in fair value reserve (22621) (68240)
Recognised in equity - other comprehensive income 1303 9601
Recognised in other reserves (7152) (24 881)
Amount paid under the Special Regime for Debt Payments 65375 -
Exchange differences and other 3164 (2182)

Balance at the end of the period (assets / (liabilities)) 267 911 606217

The current and deferred taxes recognised in the income statement and reserves, during 2013 and 2012 is analysed in
the following table. The amounts presented do not consider the effect of non-controlling interest.

31,12.2013 31122012
. R .

l_lccngmscdm the Recognisedin ecognisedin the Recoguised in

income s tatement income sfatement

: reserves . reserves

{income) fexpense (income) /expensc

(in thousands of euro)
Financial instruments ( 50 5009 21355 ( 16679) 68 240
Loans and advances to custoniers ( 62719) - ( 69 646) -
Property and equipment 26 - ( 153) -
Intangible assets 640 - 551 -
Investments in subsidiaries and associales ( 116572) 409 81381 { 3247)
Provisions ( 6345} - ( 20402) -
Technical reserves 80 - 623 -
Pensions 3668 (1712) 4005 { 6354)
Long tem service benefits ( 557) - 459 -
Debt securities issued ( 548) - 1214 -
Exchange differences and other 9142 - { 2950) ( 28D
Taxlosses brought forward ( 97 90) 8418 { 19560) 25 162
Deferred taxes ( 321 625) 23470 ( 41157) 83 520
Current taxes 157432 {66 589) 152159 44 973
(164 193) (38 119) 111 002 128 493

The current tax accounted for in reserves during 2013 includes, a tax charge of euro 66 589 thousand (31 December
2012: euro 60 830 thousand) to the fair value reserve in relation to unrealised gains recognised. As at 31 December
2012 included also a tax credit of euro 5 553 thousand related with the pension benefits tax regime in accordance
with Article 183 of Law no. 64-B/2011, of 30 December and a tax credit of euro 7 773 thousand from negative

equity changes (primarily related to pension benefits).
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The reconciliation of the income tax rate can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
% Amount % Amaount

(in thousands of euro)

Profit belore minorvity interest and taxes ) (1398 839) 482 706
Contribution to the banking sector 27289 27910
Profit before non-controlling interest and taxes  for tax
reconciliation purposes (I 371 550) 510 616
Statutory taxrate 250% 31.5%
Incone taxcalculated based on the statutory taxrate (342 838) 160 844
Taxexempt dividends 0.4% {5991) -4.0% {19327
Tax-exempt profits (off shore) 1.7% (24 429) 9.9% (47949
Net incone in consolidated investment funds 24% 33003 - -
Taxexenptmnon-deductible realised gams/lasses 1.3%4 ( 18039) 13.3% 64191
Non-taxable share of (profitylosses in associales 0.1% { 905) -0.3% {1498)
Unrecognised deferred taxassets related to

taxlosses generaled in the year =15.9% 222156 5.0% 24 124
Change in estimates 3.4% (47 642) -12.4% {59 684)
Non taxable gains on acquisition / sale of subsidiaries - - 9.4% {45 503)
Non deductible costs 1.5% (21011) 5.1% 24 643
Rates and taxbase changes resulting fromIRC 23% 31908 - -
Oiher 0.7% 9 585 23% 11161

12.1% (164 193} 21.2% 111 002

 iicludes the amount of euro (30 946) thousand (31 December 2012: euro (8 684) thousand) related to discontinued operations

The Portuguese Law No. 55-A/2010 of 31 December established a banking levy, which is not deductible for tax
purposes, and whose regime was extended by Law no. 64-B/2011, of 30 December. During the period ended 31
December 2013, the Group recognised a cost of euro 27.3 million (31 December 2012: euro 27.9 million, which was
included in Other operating income and expenses — Direct and indirect taxes (see Note 12),

NOTE 43- SUBORDINATED DEBT
The balance subordinated debt is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Bonds 1329 16l 1101 032
Loans 9 896 10 107
Perpetual bonds 64 131 65343

1403 188 1176 482
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The main features of the subordinated debt are presented as follows:

21.12.2013
Issoer Designation Currency Tsue dale Amouni issued Carrsing Inleresirale Mamrity
amou it
(in 1housands of coro)
BES Finance Subordinated perpelual bonds EUR 2002 30843 3603 3.06% 2014 a)
BES Finance Subordinated perpelual bonds EUR 2004 95 767 2021 4.50% 2015 a)
TES Finance Bonds EUR 2008 20000 165 8.73% 2018
BEST Bonds BRL 2007 211 16891 CO1100%+1.3% 2014
BEST Bonds BRL 2008 B4I6 7918 CDI100%+1.3% 2015
BEST Bonds BRL 2008 673 RBOS IPCA 100%+8.3% 2015
BESI Bonds DAL 2008 1010 544 CD1 100%+1.3% 2015
BEST Bonds EUR 2008 £0000 8263 Eunbor 3M + 0.95% 2015
GEST Bonds EUR 2003 10000 1Al Indexed lo CMS 2033
TES Bonds EUR M4 25000 22068 Eurbor8M £ 1.25% 2014
nES Bonds EUR 2008 41 530 3818 Euribor 3M + 1% 2018
BES Bonds EUR 08 638430 83 055 Euribor 3M + 8.5% 2019
BES Bonds EUR 2008 30000 50682  Eunbor3M + 1.05% 20138
BES Bonds EUR 2011 FAYS] 8182 Fined Rate 10% 2021
BES Bonds EUR 2013 750 000 751 564 Fixed Rale 7.125% 2022
BES Vida Bonds EUR 2002 45 000 24295 Eurbor3M + 2 20% 2022
BES Vida Subotdinated perpeluatbonds EUR 2002 45000 20317  Eunbor 3M + 2.50% 2014 ay
BESV Subardinaked Loans EUR 2003 9669 9896 234% - b}
ESFG Bonds EUR 2009 400 000 INTT 6.06% 2019
2260686 1403 188
a)yCall opticn dale
b) Undetermined
The changes occurred in subordinated debt during the year ended 31 December 2013 are analysed as follows:
Net Chher movements
31.12.2012 Issues Repayments Repurchases (@) 31.12.2013
(in thousands of euro)

Bonds 1101032 750 400 {1945) {511 808) (8518) 1329 1681
Loans 10 107 - - - [@AL)] 9896
Perpetual Bonds 65343 . . (1318 106 64 131

1176 482 750 400 (1945) {513 126) (8623) 1403188

N Other mevements include acerved inlerest, Mir valve adjistments and foreign exchange differences
®ssues include the antounis cafresponding Lo debi replacemenls previowsly repurchased by the Group

In accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.8, debt issued repurchased by the Group is
derecognised from the balance sheet and the difference between the carrying amount of the liability and its
acquisition cost is recognised in the income statement. Following the repurchases performed in 2013 and 2012, the
Group has recognised a gain of eurc 4.6 million and of euro 39.6 million, respectively (see Note 12}.
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NOTE 44 - OTHER LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balance other liabilities is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thous ands of curo)

Creditors
Public sector 119409 145 296
Collateral deposit on negative exposures on derivative contracts 215617 173 955
Sundry debtors
Stock-option plan (sce Note 14) 2 185
Creditors from transactions with securities 60433 89357
Suppliers 67 195 56 457
Creditors from factoring operations 3044 3509
Other sundry creditors 280821 234 868
Creditors from the medical business 761 548
Creditors from the insurance business 37099 §982
Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 26410 25260
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 17759 17876
828 550 756 293
Accrucd expenses
Long term service benefits (see Note 14) 30376 28 691
Other acerued expenses 214276 160 044
244 652 188 735
Deferredincome 35451 25492
Other sundry liabilities
Stock exchange fransactions pending settlement 129 189 93 431
Foreign exchange transactions pending settlement 6933 19939
Other transactions pending settlement 101 058 184 492
237180 297922
1345833 1268 442

As at 31 December 2013, the deferred income includes the amount of euro 21 989 thousand relating to the value of
the remaining in force contracts acquired of BES Vida, after reinsurance transaction of life insurance risk portfolio
held in the first half of 2013 (see notes 17 and 32). This amount will be amortised to income over the remaining life
of the respective contracts.

The stock exchange transactions pending settlement refer to transactions with securities on behalf of third parties,
recorded on trade date and pending settlement, in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.6.

F-127



ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounits expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

NOTE 45-  SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS, FAIR VALUE
RESERVES AND OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Share capital and share premium
As at 31 December 2013, the autherised share capital of Espirito Santo Financial Group, S.A., was represented by 2
billion shares without nominal value, from which 207 075 338 shares (31 December 2012: 207 075 338) held by

different shareholders were subscribed and fully paid as described below:

% Share capital

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Esplirito Santo Irmfios, Sociedade Gestora de Participagdes Sociais, S.A. 49.26% 10.03%
Espliito Santo Intemational S.A, 0.15% 33.38%
Other 50.59% 56.59%

100.00% 100.00%

On 26 April 2012, ESFG issued 102 040 816 ordinary shares at an issue price of euro 4.9 each, tofalling euro 500
million. From this amount, euro 398 million euro was allocated to the share premium, The costs incurred and
directly attributable to issuing the new shares, in the amount of euro 6.4 million, wete also recognised under share
premium,

Treasury shares

Treasury shares as at 31 December 2013, in the amount of euro 3.5 million (31 December 2012: euro 36 miltion),
cotrespond to 665 652 ESFG shares (31 December 2012: 6 811 569) with an acquisition cost of euro 5.2 per share
(31 December 2012; euro 5.28 per share).

Preference shares

In June 2007, ESFG International Limited (“issuer”), a fully owned subsidiary of ESFG, issued euro 400 million
series A non-cumulative guaranteed step-up preferred securities. These securities, with a face value of euro 50
thousand per security, are listed on the Luxembourg stock exchange. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group acquired euro 16 450 thousand preference shares for an acquisition price of euro 6 197 thousand, having
generated a gain net of taxes, recognised in Other reserves and retained earnings, in the amount of euro 10 253
thousand. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group acquired euro 325 750 thousand preference shares in
scope of the exchange offer over ordinary shares referred to above. The Group recorded a capital gain, net of taxes
in the amount of euro 81 803 thousand recognised in Other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 December 2013, there were euro 52 950 thousand outstanding preference shares (31 December 2012; euro
57 800 thousand) for a total nominal amount of euro 52 950 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 57 800 thousand).

These preferred securities pay non-cumulative preferred dividends, when, as and if declared by the Board of
Directors of ESFG International Limited, annually in arrears on 6 June in each year commencing on 6 June 2008 up
to and including 6 June 2017 af an annual rate of 5.753% p.a. of the respective nominal value. Thereafter, the
preferred dividends will be payable, when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors of ESFG International
Limited, quarterly in arrears on ¢ March, ¢ June, 6 September and 6 December each year, commencing on 6
September 2017 at a rate of 2.130% above the 3 months Euribor.
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The preferred securities are perpetual securities and have no fixed redemption date. However, these securities may
be redeemed, at the option of ESFG International Limited, in whole but not in part, on 6 June 2017 or on any
preferred distribution payment date falling thereafter. Such redemption is subject to the authorization of ESFG and
the Supervisor Authority.,

ESFG unconditionally guarantees, on a subordinated basis, the payment of distributions on the preferred securities
when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors of the issuer, and payments on liquidation of the issuer or on
redemption. By virtue of the scope of the guarantee the rights of the holders of these preference securities against
ESFG are equivalent to those which such helders would have had if they had instead held preference shares issued
directly by ESFG whose terins are identical to the terms of the preferred securities and the guarantee taken together.

Considering the features of these preferred securities, they were considered, following TIAS 32, as equity instruinents
of the Group. On that basis, the total proceeds from the issue, net of expenses incurred, totalling approximately euro
394.5 million, was taken to equity on the date of issue. The cutstanding amount as at 31 December 2013, net of
expenses, is euro 51 367 thousand (31 December 2012: euro 55 978 thousand). In accordance with the accounting
policy described in Note 2.9, preferred dividends will be recorded as a deduction fo equity when declared.

Other equify instrinnents

As described in Note 39, during the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired euro 135.6 million of the
euro 500 000 000 Fixed Rate Step-Up Notes due 2025 with 10 000 warrants, in scope of the exchange offer over
bonds exchangeable into ordinary shares of Banco Espirito Santo, S.A. As a result of this transaction, as at 31
December 2013 there were 915 outstanding warrants ity the amount of euro 10 849 thousand (31 December 2012:
3 587 warrants in the amount of euro 42 509 thousand) which are recognised in equity net of expenses by an amount
of euro 10 539 thousand.

In addition, as described in Note 39, during 2011 ESFG issued euro 130 416 000 Convertible Bonds, Following this
issue, the Group recognised in equity the amount of euro 16 950 thousand related to the conversion option which
corresponds to an equity instrument in light of IAS 32.

Capital reserves non distributable

The capital reserves non distributable in the amount of euro 700 970 thousand relates to a special non-distributable

reserve account resulting from the cancelation, in 2011, of the nominal value of the shares and the subsequent
reduction of the accounting value of the authorised and issued share capital from euro 10 per share to euro 1,

Legal reserve

Under the Luxembourg law, a minimum of 5% of the profit for the year must be transferred to the legal reserve until
this reserve equals 10% of the issued share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents the amount of the unrealised gains and losses arising from securities classified as

available for sale, net of impairment losses recognised in the income statement in the year/previous years. The
amount of this reserve is shown net of deferred taxes and non-controlling interest.
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During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the changes in these balances, net of non-controlling interest,
were as follows:

Falr e recerse Orher compreheniive lncoue, ochier rrazrves and retained farninge
Actaarial Total wikier
R Cagleal Ouher resovses
AnfldMelor.  Deferredtar  Total [nir galny and Frchisge o cerere  veservesson nd retained Teterses and Totsl
nle [{111. {31 valerererse  (lower)nd differeneer & - relabnid
serfeaatle earnings .
ol faxes eurmingd
(In thoariodn of eurs)

Balince 41 31 31 December 2011 (1046 2009 {18582 (207122) 18 562 EHET ) 00 8T aT449 582121 416499
Transfer Lo recenves - - - - - - - 111332 121352 2133
Coits with capitel ivcreae of subsidiasits - - - - - - - (315 {3315 (115
Rrpuchast asd erchange of o slhes aquiry
Dustnen eaty - - - - - - 10713 s 107
Ti Geny o, Jubridar sharex - . - - - - 1271 (P11} (39
Dividends on preference shazes - - - - - - - (3545) [&F4)] (5985)
Dividinds o0 perpetusl bonds - - - - - - - (59 (&1 (1]
Achumial gzing Eom defned benehit oblgati
retof tes - - - (45579 . - - - (19579 {45575
Changexin fax vakue 13942 (#H7) 1¥139) - - - - - - L1534
Exchange dffcrences - - - - {11456 - - - (143 (L9
Other squiy provenrals of nxeocinted compenies . B . . . (260 {26s0) (2650
Tranazctions with nen-centroling iaferest - - - - - - A58 45828 45628
Orhers - - - - - - (0 %0 )

Bslioce 13 a1 31 Decermber 1012 41308 (15 539) mm (282757) 7105 3r3sd 10970 203045 690 588 N6 455
Translerto resenves - - - - - - - e EIERRE] I8
Repurchuse and echange of own ot equity
[o— . - R - - nen LITTH) 31482
Trans sctions on yobsidaric s prefecencs shares - - - - - - - hE EE{]] 3481
Dividends on prefetince thares - - - - - - (5160 (5169) (5ién
Dividerds o prrptusd bonds - - [ &0 ) )
ActoariaF gains frea defried benefi obzafion,
nrtof(uies - - - (11 - - - - (210 [EIFIL)]
Chariges in i walue (38803) (151 (28919 - - - . . . (28979)
Ewchange $fferences - - - - (12625) . (18629 [8112:5]
Guher equty Mo vemends of as1aciated companies - - - - - - - 0 il Lt
Tranaactions with nea-controlng inlereat - - - - - - b1 2307 2007
Onhats - - - - - N 1ol Lo

Balance 13 1 31 Drcember 1013 106 {589} {3208) {07047y (81 >8] A6 To39T0 85 7TH 235 518 82310

The fair value reserve is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands ofenro)

Anworttised cost of available-for-sale financial assets 9221388 11 090 158
Accumulated impaimment losses recognised (318 045) (254 141)
Anortised cost of available-for-sale financial assets, net of impaiment 8903343 10836017
Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 8929778 11041235
Net unrealised gaing (fosses) recognised in the fair value reserve 26435 205218
Fair value reserves related Lo securities reclassified as held-to-maturily investments (Note 27) { 11781) { 16655)
Income taxes (6 585) (49284)
Fair value reserve of associates 3207 2381
Net fair value reserve 11276 141 660
Non-contiolling interest (14484) (115 889)
Fair wiue reserve attributable to equity holders of the Company (3208) 251771
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The movement in the fair value reserve, net of deferred taxes, impairment fosses and non-controlling interest, is
analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January 25771 (165 624)

Changes in fair value 60 194 360204

Disposals during the year ‘ ( 131292) ( 167 091)

Impairment recognised during the year 32190 28123

Deferred taxes recognised in reserves during the year 9904 (45 166)

Transactions with non controlling interest 25 15325
Balance as at 31 December (3208) 2571

NOTE46- NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, non-controlling interest can be analysed as follows:

31122013 31.12.2012

Income Income
Balance sheet statement Balance sheet statement

(in thousands of euro)

BES Group 4 554752 { 379 120} 50006 540 (5178)
Preference shares issued by BES Finance 159 342 - 193 289 -
Other equity instraments issued by BES Group 29162 - 29295 -
Bespar 605 201 { 545) 605 806 571328
BES Wnétic 53590 1488 53 503 4198
ES Safide - - - { 948)
Pastor Vida - - - 1431
Other 25194 7562 33858 1240
5427301 (370 615) 5922291 58071

Preference shares isswed by BES Finance

Preference shares issued by BES Finance correspond to 450 thousand non-voting preference shares, which were
issued and listed in the Luxembourg stock exchange in July 2003. In March 2004, 150 thousand preference shares
were additionally issued forming a single series with the existing preference shares. The face value of these shares is
euro 1 000 and are fully booked under non-controlling interest. The total issue (euro 600 000 thousand) is wholly,
but not partially, redeemable at its face value at the option of the issuer, as at 2 July 2014, subject to prior approvals
of BES and the Bank of Portugal. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group acquired 18 624 preference
shares, having recorded a gain, net of taxes and non controlling interest, in the amount of euro 1 271 thousand
recognised in Other reserves and retained earnings. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired
33 947 preference shares, having recorded a gain, net of taxes and non controlling interest, in the amount of euro 1
0068 thousand recognised in Other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 December 2013, there were 33 947 outstanding preference shares in the amount of euro 33 947 thousand
(31 December 2012: 193 289 and euro 193 289 thousand, respectively).

These preference shares pay an annual non-cumulative preferred dividend, if and when declared by the Board of
Directors of BES Finance, corresponding to an annual rate of 5.58% p.a. on the nominal value, This dividend is paid
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on 2 July of each year, beginning 2 July 2004 and ending 2 July 2014. If BES Finance does not redeem these
preference shares on 2 July 2014, the applicable rate will be 3 months Euribor plus 2.65% p.a., with payments on 2
January, 2 April, 2 July and 2 October of each year, if declared by the Board of Directors of BES Finance.

These shares are subordinated to any BES liability, and are “pari passu” in relation to any preference shares that may
come to be issued by the Bank. BES unconditionally guarantees dividends if previously declared by the Board of
Directors of BES Finance and principal repayments related to either of the above mentioned issues.

Considering the features of these preference shares, they were considered, in accordance with TAS 32, as equity
instruments of BES Group being classified as non-controlling interest at ESFG level. On that basis, and in
accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.9, the dividends related with these preference shares are
recorded as a deduction to equity when declared.

Other equity instruments issned by BES Group

The BES Group issued in 2011, perpetual subordinated bonds with non-cumulative discretionary interest in the total
amount of euro 320 million.

These bonds pay a non-cumulative interest, only if and when declared by the Board of Directors, at an annual rate of
8.5%. This discretionary interest is payable semi-annually. These securities are redeemable at the option of BES
Group in full, but not in part, after 15 September 2015, subject to the prior approval of Bank of Portugal.

Considering the features of these perpetual subordinated bonds, they qualify as equity instruments of BES Group in
accordance with TAS 32 being classified as non-controlling interest at ESFG level. On that basis and in accordance
with the accounting policy described in Note 2.9, the distributions related with these bonds will be recorded as a
deduction to equity when declared.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group paid interest in the amount of euro 2 191 thousand (31
December 2012: euro 1 864 thousand) resulting in a reduction in equity amounting to euro 599 thousand net on tax
and non-controlling interest (31 December 2012: euro 519 thousand). As a result of an exchange offer for BES
shares, occurred in 2012, Other equity instrumments issued by BES Group reduced by an amount of euro 286 717
thousand.
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The movement in non-controlling interest in the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 can be analysed as
follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Non-controlling inferes{ as at 1 January 5922291 4973 023
Changes in the scope of consolidation 34020 (27 606)
Transactions with non-controlling interest (53214) (72954)
Increase in share capital of subsidiaries 158 702 758 336
Issuance/(repurchase) of perpetual preference shares (29519 (15417)
Dividends paid on perpetual bonds (1591) (1345)
Actuarial gains/(losses) fiom defined benefit obligation, net oftaxes (71 540) {125307)
Dividends paid (4 490) (6502)
Dividends paid on preference shares (5048) (4388)
Treasury shares of subsidiaries 7702 -
Capital increase costs - (8730)
Changes in fair value reserve (94 224) 448 182
Other comprehensive income fromassociates 1211 (9194
Exchange differences and other ( 66 384) (43 878)
{Loss) / profit for the year (370 615) 58 071

Non-controlling interest as at 31 December 5427301 5922291

NOTE47- OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 off-balance sheet items, excluding the derivative financial instruments, can be
analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thous ands of euro)

Confingent liabilities

Guarantees and stand by letiers of credit 8031 816 8427956
Assets pledged as collateral 20 425200 21632555
Open documentary credits 4 234 660 3780554
Other 278 586 531 850

32970 262 34372915

Commitments

Revocable commitments 7107 506 5462 823
Irrevocable commitinents 1 800 185 3461701
8907691 8924524

Guarantees and standby letters of credit are banking operations that do not imply any out-flow by the Group.
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As at 31 December 2013, the balance assets pledged as collateral include:

o Securities pledged as collateral to the Bank of Portugal in the scope of a liquidity facility collateralised by
securities for an amount of euro 18.8 billion (31 December 2012: euro 19.6 billion);

s  Securities pledged as collateral to the Portuguese Securities and Exchange Commission (CMVM) in the
scope of the Investors Indemnity System (Sistema de Indemnizagéo aos Investidores) for an amount of euro
17.2 million (31 December 2012: euro 20.8 million);

¢ Securities pledged as collateral to the Deposits Guarantee Fund {Fundo de Garantia de Depdsitos) for an
amount of euro 82.6 million (31 December 2012: euro §2.6 million);

¢ Securities pledged as collateral to the European Tnvestment Bank for an amount of euro 1 340.0 million
(31 December 2012; euro 1 822.5 miilion).

The above mentioned securities pledged as collateral can be executed in case the Group does not fulfil its
obligations under the terms of the contracts.

Documentary credits are irrevocable commitments, by the Group, in the name of its clients, to pay or order to pay a
certain amount to a supplier of goods or services, within a determined term, against the exhibition of the expedition
documentation of the goods or service provided. The condition of irrevocable consists of the fact that the terms
initially agreed can only be changed or cancelled with the agreement of all parties.

Revocable and irrevecable commitments represent contraciual agreements to extend credit to Group’s customers
(eg. vnused credit lines). These agreements are, generally, contracted for fixed periods of time or with other
expiration requisites, and usually require the payment of a commission. Substantially, all credit commitments
require that clients maintain certain conditions verified at the time when the credit was granted,

Despite the characteristics of these contingent liabilities and commitments, these operations require a previous
rigorous risk assessment of the client and its business, like any other commercial operation. When necessary, the
Group require that these operations are collateralised. As it is expected that the majority of these operations will
iature without any use of funds, these amounts do not represent necessarily future out-flows.

Additionally, the off-balance sheet items refated to banking services provided are as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thonsands of ewra)

Securities and other items held for

safekeeping on behalfof customers 62 223 560 63285779
Asscts for collection on behalf of clients 242 383 294295
Securitised loans under management (servicing) 2486012 2712022
Discretionary portfolio management 7209297 9649908

72161252 75 942 004
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In the scope of the activity regarding the management of customers funds and considering the risk profile of each
customer, the Group offers a variety of investment solutions which include the direct subscription of debt
instruments issued by several entities, namely entities included in ESFG consolidation scope and other related
parties from the non-financial sector of Espirito Santo Group. In this context, the Group makes available to
customers information on the risks associated with the subscription of such instruments as it is required by the
applicable regulations. These debt instruments which are held under custody are accounted as an off-balance sheet
itein under Securities and other items for the safekeeping on behalf of clients.

Under this activity, Group customers subsctibed debt instruments issued by Esplrito Santo International, S.A.
(“EST’) and its subsidiaries Espirito Santo Property, S.A., Espirito Santo Industrial, S.A. e Espirito Santo Irm&os,
S.A., in the amount of euro 4 745 million, of which euro 3 259 million were held, as at 31 December 2013, by
private and retail customers and euro 1 486 million were held, on the same date, by institutional customers (sec Note
41).

Additionally Group retail and private customers subscribed debt instruments issued by Rio Forte Investments, S.A.,
Espirito Santo Satide, S.G.P.S., S.A., ESPART - Espirito Santo ParticipagGes Financeiras, S.G.P.S,, S.A,, Quinta da
Foz and Buroamerican Finarce, S.A., in the amount of euro 479 million, euro 38 million, curo 24 million, euro 13
million and euro 9 million, respectively, with reference to 31 December 2013.

NOTE 48 - ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amount of the assets under management of the Group is analysed as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

(in thousands of euro)

Securities investment funds 4117 166 5190 265
Real estate investment funds 1079 813 1075678
Pension funds 1906 7117 1783359
Bancassurance 159 965 89662
Portfolio management 1694 103 2 875827
Others 2383878 1378 639

11346 642 12 393 430

The amounts recognised in these accounts are measured at fair value determined at the balance sheet date.
In accordance with the legislation in force, the fund management companies and the depositary bank are jointly

liable before the participants of the funds for the non fulfilment of the obligations assumed under the terms of the
Law and the management regulations of the funds.
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NOTE 49 -

Following the definition of relaied party established by IAS 24, related parties to ESFG include associates, pension

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

funds, Board members and entities controlled or significantly influenced by any of these individuals.

The entities considered o be related parties to ESFG, as defined by IAS 24, are as follows:

Company

2B Capita] Lusembourg General Partners SARL

2B Capital Laxrmbourg S.CA SICAR

2BCapital, SA

ACRO, Seciedade Gestora de Palivipagses Sociain, S A.
Adepa Global Services

Advance Cielone Syslems, SA

Agénciz de Viagens Tagus, SA_

Agéncia Receptivo Prais da Forle, Lida

Agribahia, ¥A

Apgriways, SA

AMeia do Meco - Socied ade par @ Desenvolvimenle Turislico, SA
Ahms Fmence SA

Angra Moura-Socizdade de Admiistraglo de Bens S A
Amundimmpeci, Lda

Anibida - Fende Especial de Investimento Toobifirio
Ascendi Goop, SGPS, SA

AscendiFiahsl Imeror Estadas do PinhalInteror, SA
Allanlic Meals - Industria e Coméreio Agro Abmenlar, SA
Alr- Actividades Turislicas € Represealagdes, Lda

Auviss - Autoviade Loa Viiiedos, SA

Avemo Incorporatad

Bseza Empreendimentos Imobiliirios Lida_

Benco Dellz Tre Veneric SPA

BB PAR Incorporagao Imohi¥iiea Lida

Beach Healh Invesioents, Lid

BEMS, SGPS, 8A

BES, Companhiin de Seguros , SA

BIO-GENESIS

Cainga Frpreendimentos Imobifidrios Lide.

Calzadas y Caminos del Sar, SL

Caravela Halanced Fuad

Caravela Defensive Fund

Cattapen a Empreendimenlos Imobiilinos Lida

Caga da Sandede, Adminstragio de Bens Moveis ¢ Imbves, S AL
Cases da Cidede - ResidEncias S&njor, SA

Cercada Alein - Socredade Imobiidria, SA

Cidedeplaiina - Conslnzglo SA

Cimenta - Fopreendimentos Imobifilrios, SA

Clatendon Properies, Tne.

Clnica Parque dos Poetas, SA

Chria - Hospital Privedo de Aveiro, SA

CLN Magodka Finance 2038

Chub de Campo Villar Ollala, SA

Chuibe de Campo da Comporia - Actividades Desportivas ¢ Lazer,Lda
Clube Resilencisl da Boavisla, SA

Clip Vip - Markeling de Aconlecimen(os, SA

Coimbra Jandim Hotel - Sociedade de Gestdo Hoteleim, SA.
Comparhis Agricols Botueatu, SA

Companhia Brasfeim de Agropecuinia Cobrape

Comporia Dunes Héteis & GolYfe - Promogla ¢ Desenvolvimento de Aclividades Hoteleiras ¢ T
Comporla Links Golfz -Promo¢ie ¢ PExplorago de Actividades Turislicas, SA
Comporta Links Holdis - Fromogdo e Explorzgio de Aclividades Hoteleras, SA
Conslrucciones Saméar, 5L

Construlera do Termega (Madeia) SA

Constulora do Tamega Madeira SGPS SA

Coporgesl

Coteworks - Proj Circofto 8is1Flecl., SA
DassaInvesiments B.A.

Diliva, Sociedade de Investimentos lmobdiros, 5.4
Doméilica, Eectrbnica ¢ Informitica, SA

E S -Fsphito Santo, Mediagio Iroobilifira, S.A.

BS. Assel Admmistralion, Ltd.

RS Tnlemalional Overseas, Ltd-

B 8 Resonrces Overseas, Lid

RSTS, Fmance LId

Fastekeo - Consulona e Comunicagdo, SA

Pdenred Porugal, SA.

Empatk Aparcanixnlos y Senvicios SA

Fakrolt SA

T3 Amendamento - Fundo de Investimento [moliharis Fechado para Amendamente Habitacional

rislicas, SA
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ES Private Fquity, 11d

ES Satde - Residéncia com Sepvigos Senfor, S A

ES Visgens e Torismo, [da

Escae Consuloru, Adminisiragdo e Empreendsmenio, Lida
Escopar+ Sociedede Geslora de Parficipages Sociais, SA

ESDI AdminisitagZo e Paniciprgdes Lida

Esegur - Emprsa de Seguranga, SA

Esger- Brpress de Servigos ¢ Conankoria, SA

ESH Parcipageo e Adminisimgao de Bens Préprios Lida
Esiam - Espirito Santo [nlematione] Assel Managemenl, Lid

Esim- Esp7ilo Santo Imabilidrio, SA

Esparl - Espaito Santo Patlicipagses Pinanceiras, SGPS, SA

ESPB Ol Desenvelvimenio Imobfiaria L1da,

ESPDN02 Desenvelvimenlo lrobiiaria l1da,

ESPB 4 Desenvelvimenlo Imobitiatio Lida,

ESPB Administragde e Pariicipagdes [1da

Esplito Ssnlo - Unidzdes de Sailde ¢ de Apoio A Terceira Hade, SA_
Esphite Santo Cachoeira Desenvolvimento Imabifiinio Lida

Espirito Ssate Campnas Desenvolvimenlo Tombilidrio 11da

Esphilo Santo Contmol SA

Esphito Santo Jo Onenle

Espirite Santo Eoro Bond

Espirito Santo (anujé Desenvolvimenlo [mobidrio Lida

Espiilo Santo Heahth Care Invesiments SA

Espirilo Santo Hotéis, SGPS, SA

Espirite Santo TRERTA 1

Espirito Santo ndaiatuba Desenvolvimenlo ImobiBino Lida
Espiio Santo Industhial { BVT ), SA

Fsphilo Santo Industrial (Portogal ) - S('S, SA

Fsp¥ito Santo Indusirial, SA

Fspirito Sanlo Internalionat (BVD), SA

Fspirite Sanlo International SA

Espiriio Sanlo Irmbos - Sociedade Geslora de Perticipagdes Sociais, SA
Espirite Sanlo laltha Desenvolvimento Imebiidrio Lida

Espiito Sanlo Plano Dinamrico Fande de Investimenlo Afberto Flexivel
Espirito Sanlo Primavera Desenvolvimento Imobilifrio Ltde

Espirita Sanlo Property {Brasih) /A

Fsphito Santo Propenty Espafa, SL.

Espirita Sanlo Property TloHmg (BVI) SA

Espirito Sento Propenty Ilokding. SA

Espinto Sanlo Property SA

Espirite Sanlo Resources {Portogal), SA

Espinito Sanlo Resovrces SA

Espirito Sanlo Resonrces, 11d

Espirte Santo Sadde SGPS, S.A.

Espirito Santo SaddeResidencia com Servigos Senier, S.A. SGPS, SA.
Espirito Ssnto Satde-Senigos, A.CE

Espirite Santo Services, SA

Espirito Santo Tounsm{ Eorope ), SA

Espirile Santo Tearism, Lid

Espirite Santo Venlure Ltd

Esplrito Santo Viagens - Consollora ¢ Servigos, SA

Espirile Santo Vizgens - Sockedade Gestora de Panicipagies Socials, SA
Estoril [ng

Euroamerican Finance Corporalion, Ine.

Eurvsmencsn Finance SA

Furoatlantic, Inc.

Europe Assitance - Compeohia Portuguesa de Sepnros de Assisléncia, SA
Fafer - Emprezndimenlos Turislos ¢ de Gonslniglo, SA

FIIF -Fundo de Inveslimenle Incbibiro Fechedo Corpua Christi
Fimes 11- Fondo de Investienlo [oobibisrio Fechedo

Fimes Oricnte - Fondo de Investimento [oobilidno Fechado

T Solulia - Consuberia ¢ Gestio de Criditos, SA

Fravei- Seciedade Gestora de Pantitipagdes Sociais, SA

Fundes FEIIF-Fundes Especialde Inveslimento [mobliido Fechado
Fundo Bem ComumFCR

Fundo de Capateldc Risco Espirte Santo Venlures [novaglo e Intemaconakzagio

FunpepiBES-undo de OesiZo de Palnimonio ImobiEéro Fungepi BES
Fungere -Fendo de Gestio de Patrimbaio Tmobbino
CGanadera Corina Campos y Haciendas, /A
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Company

Cestres - Gesl2o Eslratégiea Espinto Sanlo, SA

Globel Active - Gestlio Pad. See, SGPS, SA.

Gopgles Manne, LId

Group Crede Agnicoke

Gronpe CFCA SAS

Grupo Proyectos y Servicios Samion, SA

Guarsiuva mpreendimento Imobilidrios Lida.

HCI -Heahh Corz International lae.

HDE - Senvigos de Turismo e Ieobiline, SA

Tlerdade da Compona - Actividades Agro Sivicolas e Turlslicas, SA
Hendade da Componia - Activilades Holeleiras, Tudslieas e Culturais, Lda.
Herdade da Comporta - Fundo Especial de [avestimento Imohilidrio Fechado
1L - Cenlran de Cogersgdo, SA

HME Gesl?o Hospitalsr

Hospitalda Arrdbafa - Gaia, SA

HeospitaldaLaz - Cenlro Clnko da Amadora, SA
Hospitaldalaz, SA

HosphalResidéncial do Mer, SA

1fospor- {lospilais Postugueses, SA

Holeis Tiveli, SA

Holelagos, SA

LA.C_ UK, Limmted

Iber Foods - Produtos Almenlares ¢ Tn%gicos, SA

TjorLeasimg Algérie SPA

Imecrescente-Fundo de Investimenlo Imobiife Fechzda
Imopca, SA

Imoprime FIIF- Funda de fovesimento Imobilidrio Fechado

Instituto de Radologia De Kddko de Olivera - Cenlro de Radinlo pia Médica, S A,

Inler-Allintico, SFA

Loearanl - Companhia Portuguesa de Aluguerde Vialuras, SA
Lote Dok - Enpreend mentos Tonsticos SA

Lusasno Proect Finance No | FTC

Luzboa Pois, 54

Luzbea Qualro, SA

Inzhoa Trés, SA

Luzhoa Um, SA

Luzboa, BA

Margnmar - M irmora ¢ Granitos, SA

Marinolea - Sociedade de PromogZo e Construgia de Hotels, SA
Mareelal-Mimores ¢ Metenais de Conslrugie, SA

MCO2 - Seciedade Gesloras de Fundos de Tavesiimento Mobilifrio
Medieranean Sirategical [aveslments SA

Metal- Lobos Sermatharia e Carpinlaria, 1da

MMCi - Mubznddia, SA

Mobile World - Cominicagdes, SA

WMozaRanco S A

Mozambique Agricuhiural Corp SA

Muhiger - Sociedade de Gestia ¢ laveslimealo Imobilidrie, SA
Mulipessosl Recursos | lumanes SGPS

Muhiwave Photonies, SA

Mundo Vip - Operadores Turdslicos, SA

Nanuom, SA.

Nel Viagens - Agéncia de Yiagens e Furisma, SA

Novagesl Assels Menagement, Lid

Nutngreen, S.A.

Opca Angola, SA

Opca Mogambique, Lda

Opcalelecom - Infraestuturas de Comupicaglo, SA

Opway - Engenharia, SA

Opvay - SCGPS, SA

Opway Fngenharia Brasd SA

Opwsy Imobdidria, SA

Opway Mésico SA deCV

Opway Mogambique - Pngenharia, Lda

Opway NI-Novas Tecnolgias, SA

Opway-Somague, Gupo Construterdo Data Cealer PT, ACE
Omey Reabilitagho Urbana - Fundo de Tnvestimento Trobibid o Fechado
Culsystems, SA_

Pakexpo - Imz gem Empresanial, SA

Paraguay Agricuhural Corporation SA
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Pilio das Andorinhas - Inveslimenlos lmobilitrios Lda
Pavido Brasil - Pré-Fabricaglo, Tecnologia e Senvigos, Lda.
Faviceatro - Pré-Fabncago, SA

Pavihs - Pré-FabricagZo, SA

Paviacue - Maleriai Pré-Fabricados, SA

PavitelL, SARL

Personds - Socklade de Perfuragdes ¢ Sondagens, SA
Placan - Esludes e Projectos de Construgo, Lda
Pojuca,SA

Pontave - Constraghes, SA

Prau do Forlz Operzdora de Tursmo, Lida
Promorail - Tecnokogias de Cammnhos de Ferro, SA
Progporl, SA

Quinrey Technalogics Comp.

Quinla da Baroneza Fmpreendimenlos e Parl kipagdes, lrda
Quinla da Foz - Enpreendimenlos brobilitrns SA
Redigreen - Recichgeme Gealfo Ambiental, SA

Recigroup - Indusitias de Recicligem, SGPS, SA

Recipav - Engenbaria ¢ Pavimenlos, Unipeasosl, Lda

Recip -Empresa Nacional de Recicl Je Pneus, Lda
Ribei Jo Marchante, Administrz g0 de Beng Moveis e Imdves, S A
Rio Forle Invesimenta SA

Rioforte (Portugal)l, SA

Toforte vestmenl HoXing Brasil $/A

Rioforte Investment HoXing Mozambique, SGPS, SA

RML - Resxéacia Medicalzada de Tourea, SGPS, SA

Rodi Snks & Tdeas, SA

Salgar Invesimenls SL

Sanla Ménica » Empreendimentos Turislcos, SA
Saramagos S/A Fmpreendimentos e Patlieipacdes

Saxe Bank

SCA Mandei Pariners

Series - Servigos Imobikdrios Esprilo Sanlo, SA

Simira Fmpreendimentos Imobilifrios, 1ida

Sirmdone Empreendimenles Imobiiirmas Lida

Siages, SA Desenvolvimente de Projecios de Tnecgin
Sockedad Agrcola Golondrina, /A

Socredade Consinutoma Colombiana, SA

Seciedade de Adminksiragdo de Bens - Casa de Bons Ares, SA.
Sociedade Geslora do dlospRalde Loures, SA

Sociélé Congolaise de Construction et Travaux Publiques, SARL
Soliérias - Operzdores Tors1x09, Lda

Sopol - Concessdes, SGPS, SA

Sotal - Sociedade de Geslio Holeleira, SA.

Sousecamp, SGPS, SA

Space - Sociedad Penimsuler de Aviacion, Comireio ¢ Excursiones, SA
SuBzlor -Tmobikda do Sul, SA

Surgicare - Unilades de Saide, SA

Synergy lodualry and Technolopy, S A.

TA DMC Beasit - Yiagens e Tunsmo, SA

Termas de Braganga Parlicipagdes, Lida

The Allaniic Company { Portngal}- Turismo ¢ Urbanizagho, SA
Timeantobe Comdreir e Servigos de Confecqdes, Lida
Tivok Ecoresidences Praia do Fore Elda

Tivoh Gare do Orienle - Sockdade de Oesldo Hotekeira, S.A.
TLCE 2 - Sologdes Integradas de Telecormnicagdes, SA
TOP A DMC Viajes, SA

Top Atlinlica - Vizgens ¢ Turismo Mogambnjue Lda

Top Allinlico - Visgens e Tunsmo, SA

Top Allinlico DMC, SA

Top Pariner - Viagens & Solgdes Empresaniats, SA
Transconlmental - Empreendimentos Hoteleiros, SA
Torifonle, Empreendimentos Holekiros, SA

Turislrader - Socred ade de Desenvolvmenlo Turislie, SA
Uniere - Carfo Inlemscional de Crddito, SA

Ushoaia - Gestfa e Tradmg Intemacional Lamited
VilaLus#zno - Unidedes de Saide, SA

Viveros dallerfade da Comporta - Predugio de Plantas Omamentars, Eda
Watson Boown 1HSM, [1d

Winpar Lda
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the total amount of the assets and liabilities of the Group with associates ot
related companies, is as follows:

3.12.2013 a1.12.2012
Asxels Linbilltes Guaraalees Tacome Expeasts Atiels Llabllifies Gueranices Income Expeases

(Tn thonsands of enro}

ESISA. 1119975 965 - 64025 49 1055030 51476 - 47 355 3
ASCENDI GROUP SGFS 373 803 13398 20934 25 669 10 299 462 T 233 127 H
EERLTD 221002 1712 - 199835 138 371 5837 2461 - 43303 27
ASCENDIPINHAL INTERIOR 141 765 4 &80 10842 4426 - 98358 1051 153714 307 -
LOCARENT 103 529 1841 - 1185 9873 129818 317124 - 2692 1L 127
£5 SAUDE 641397 25077 4003 402 - 63 680 13 140 24269 464 2
SAXODANK 41727 L1104 - 1834 - 20084 117 - - -
NANIUM 30925 iR 106 201 - 35327 4M 18343 s 4
CONSTRUCCIONES SARRION 15393 - 3ils 131 ' 16527 - 8745 13 -
OPWAY 13 646 137 44 655 157 - 63 35089 48023 62 225
ESEQUR 6933 12 2213 2478 612 7322 20 2105 1333 122
SOUSACAMP 5157 - - - 35 3764 - - 120 -
DIRECTIORS 3508 1388 - 33 1 4549 1600 - 10 -
EMPARK 3375 - 1123 1586 - 491719 - 4684 3 N 26
FSTOURISM 2570 Fz] . 1 - (35 562 - m -
EUROT ASSISTANCE 1423 2349 25 7 15243 1458 1749 15 a5 14 862
RES SFOUROS ™ 1T 5360 . 4187 12 1148 18 505 - 4051 16
MARINOTEIS m 50 n & - 83 41 n 44 4
TOP ATLANTICO 153 2 - 3 282 240 37 . 1 1138
AENOR DURO - - - - - 271 887 3461 11 00D 8985 -
FS IRMADS - 72% - 50 3 104 570 3 . 4 708
ESPIL - 7% - 1538 l 43 515 44 - 4 528
PALEXPO - - 6 . 7266 124 26 537 -
SCUTVIAS - - ' - - 7147 - 6545 2631 o83
ESR (P) - Lg - - &1 . 75 - - 433
Oihers 143 855 111283 2398 2725 7140 137 574 51283 28289 BT 560
2304781 192 525 116 261 139914 35130 1720857 JELR 1L 95815 163 564 17938

Balances and transactions with the above referred entities relate mainly to loans and advances and deposits in the
scope of the banking activity of the Group.

The costs with salaries and other benefits attributed to ESFG key management personnel, as well as the transactions
performed with ESFG key management personnel are presented in Note 13,

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the total amount of the assets of the Group with associates or related companies,
by residual term is as follows:

More than 5
3- 6 months 12 months 1-5 years years Total

(in thousands of euro)

2013 1406 551 444 266 76093 387 871 2314781
2012 1430353 500171 342390 447 943 2720857

The interest rate applied to loans and advances to associates and related parties range from 2.64% to 6.43% in 2013
and from 2.2% to 7.19% in 2012. The collateral the Group received on some loans and advances to related parties
consists mainly of unquoted securities.

In 2012 the Group acquired:

(i) to the Group pension funds, 49 779 and 37 115 thousand units of the Fungere Fund and Fungepi Fund, by
the amount of eure 158.1 million and euro 87.2 million, respectively;

(ii) to ESPART, 50% of the company Greenwoods, 100% of Quinta D. Manuel T and 100% of the company
Viérzea da Lagoa by the amount of euro 50.7 million;

(ii)) to OPWAY, 100% of the company Quinta da Areia and several properties by the amount of euro 43.1
million euros; and

(iv) to Rio Forte Tnvestments, SA, 64 206 units of the Fimes Oriente Fund by the amount of euro 103.3 million.

In Novewnber 2012 following the acquisition by Rio Forte Investments, S.A. {Rio Forte} of an additional 19.5%
stake in ES Safde, ESFG and Rio Forte signed a shareholders’ agreement under which Rio Forte assumes control
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over ES Saude governing bodies and Rio Forte acquired from ESFG a call option, currently exercisable up to May
2013, over 5.5% of ES Saude sharecapital plus 1 share, giving Rio Forte the current ability to exercise control over
the majority of the voting rights of ES Satde (See Notes 1, 33 and 55).

In 2013 the Group did not acquire any relevant shareholdings/ assets from related parties.

NOTE 50 - SECURITISATION TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the oulstanding securitisation transactions performed by the Group were as follows:

Designation nitial date Original amount Currentamount  Assefsecurifised

(in thousands of euro}

Lusitano Morigages No.1 pk December 2002 1 000 600 329803  Morigage loans (subsidised regime)
Lusitane Margages No 2 ple November 2003 1000 000 319098 Mortgage loans (subsidised and general regime)
Lusitano Mortgages No3 ple November 2004 1200 00 480967 Morgage loans (general egine)
TLusitano Mortgages No.4 ple Septenber 2005 1200000 556130  Morlgage loans (geneml reginie)
Lusitano Morigages No.5 ple Septerber 2006 1400 000 T 355 Mortgage foans (general regine)
Lusitano SMENo.1 ple October 2006 862 607 176657  Loans to simll and medium entities
Lusitano Mortgages No 6 ple July 2007 1 100 000 FRARY LY Morigage leans (general regime)
Lusitane Project Finance No.1, FIC December 2007 1479 100 118810 “ Project Finance Loans

Lusitano Morigages No.7 ple Septetnber 2008 1 900000 1719 046 Morlgage loans {general regime)
Lusiano Leverage Fimance No_ 1 BV February 2010 516534 @ 52395 Leverage Finance Loans

Lusilano Finance No, 3 November 2011 657 981 282678  ConsunerLoans

I BES Enpresas 1 November 2011 485 000 272068 Loans 1o small and medium enlilies

@ [y March 2011, the credit posifolio associated to this securitisation was partially sold, with (he remaining (domeslic credit) been Lo "Lusitano Project Finance No.1 FTC".

@ This searitisation includes the amount of euro 382 062 thousand of morigage loans from BES and an amount of euro 134 472 thousand of mortgage loans {rom BESI and
ES Vénétie

As permitted by IFRS 1, the Group has applied the derecognition requiremnents of 1AS 39 for the transactions
entered into after 1 January 2004. Therefore, the assets derecognised until that date, in accordance with the previous
accounting policies of the Group, were not restated in the balance sheet.

The assets sold in the securitisation transactions Lusitano Mortgages No.3, Lusitano Mortgages No. 4 and Lusitano
Mortgages No. 5, performed afer 1 Janvary 2004, were derecognised considering that the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Tn accordance with SIC 12, the Group fully consolidates Lusitano SME No. 1 ple, Lusitano Mortgages No. 6, plc,
Lusitano Project Finance No. 1 FTC, and Lusitano Mortgages No. 7 ple, as it retains the majority of the risks and
rewards associated with the activity of these SPE. Therefore, the respective assets and liabilities are included in the
consolidated balance sheet of the Group. The other secutitization vehicles are not included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group as it has not retained the majority of the risks and rewards of ownership.

Tn 2011 there were two securitisation transactions: loans to households (Lusitano Finance No. 3) with loan
originated by BES and other of corporate loans (IM BES Empresas 1) with loans originated by BES Spanish branch.
During 2010 it was set-up two securitization operations of corporate loans (Lusitano Leverage F inance No. 1} which
includes loans from BES Londen Branch, BESI and ES Vénétie and other of corporate foans and commercial paper
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(Lusitano SME No. 2), and the latter been repaid in March 2012. These loans were not derecognised considering
that the group has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had also two synthetic securitisation operations underway. In these operations
the Group contracted a credit default swap (CDS), with the objective of eliminating the credit risk of a portfolio of
loans. ‘The loans related to this portfolio continue to be recognized in the Group balance sheet in the loans and
advances to cusiomers caption.

The main characteristics of these transactions, as at 31 December 2013, can be analysed as follows:

Infereni kel Iakial Ractage Aerur] Ruringa
Destgation Notexfomed  Lnued ampunt c';':"::;::" [ MMttt 2
farnled) farnileg Tk Mosdys  SAF  DERS o Meady's s&P DERS
i thoarcads ol ewrs)

Lusiieno Morgrgen Nod ple Qun A 515000 27es 7 December X33 Asa A AdA . A Bl A -

unB 130 3250 - Decepker W35 AL Ant a4 . A Bt A -

CanC 25000 15000 300 Dcembes 2033 A Az a - A Be) A -

CassD 250 n5 - Devesber 2035 BED Bas? BB . BBA+ B BB -

CustE 1000 3000 - Decenber 23§ BB Bl ER . [ cul B -

ClarF L]0 10863 - December 2005 - - - - - - - -

Luitans Merdgage NoZple Cash 00 21861 3% Decraber B3 AL Au AAL . A B A .

Qay 100 3000 12500 Decewber2dfd A A A . A Ba A -

ClassC 200 2100 SO0 Drcember2is A Yy A A B R -

Cars D 15000 500 1000 Dreenber204 283 Eesd BB BAB+ Caal B -

Cunk 5000 8000 © Decemberdois BBS- Bal T - B B -

CanF 5000 500 - Decembaf - - - . . N - .

Lusitans Mortgugea NoJ ple Cussd L LB 00 w3 351 December 2047 AR An AlA . A Bul A .

thuB e 1570 . December 29 AA Asd AL . A B2 RE8 -

Casc 1160 nmn - December Xd7 A a2 A . BB cut B2 -

D 1540 [T - Dacerber 20 88 Pan? BEB - EB- Cand B -

CassE 1050 B3y . December 247 - . . . - N - .

[ustecs Mortguzes Nod ple Cun A ) e 688 Docmmber 241 EVEY An AAA . BRE Esl A -

CursB 20 1353 - Desonber X8 AL a2 AL - BEE- B E5R

unc 19300 1% 139 Decemher 248 ar al ™ . BB Cul B -

Chs D HE) n4w A015  Decestar 2048 paa+ But BBE+ - occ Cad B R

sk 1930 1w 1M Decesbor X4 - - - B . . R

Lnsnsa Mortgager Na ) pic Coisa 132300 s 1M 511 Dicembar % Al An AZA - BRE- 22 A -

ClassB w60 1031 - Decmtnm® aa A AL . BB Caal BAE- R

QusC 2240 U8 - Decamber N5 A Al A - B Cad B -

CussD 20000 1304 550 Decebar 5 EBA+ Be22 BRB - ore Ca B .

CiasE e 11500 130 Decenber21% . N . R R B - R

Lusitana SNE Ko [ ple Cansd 15053 10509 1BM3 Decenberdi Asn - A - A - A .

ClasB wnsn 3256 - Decembarh2t AAL R AAL . EYEY . Aan -

Cunsc w0 nen - Deceaber2dt BB . =8 - o - B -

CassD 208 nul DU Deceburim . - - . N . . .

Qask i m 1 Dicembirant - _ N ! B . . i

Lusitens Modgages No S5 ple Ot [E 8219 S48 Mech 2080 Al An s A Bal Ar .

unp "% 5510 A Aarch 2080 aa Aa aa . ERE B BER -

o ) 11300 3150 March 2080 A %) A 28 B BB .

CunD e 11600 e March 2050 BED Bus} BBB . B [ B -

ayE 00 3190 3198 March 2060 ) - [ . occ - o6

cunr N0 200 200 March 2060 B R . . . B . .

Lusitera Project Fisance No FIC ey nmm nn Murch 2221 - - . . . . . .
Lasteta Yongigen No? phe Chisa 10500 12630 12356330 Octsber 2081 . - AML Axa - . A AAH

ClssB 2450 2150 B30 Dclobe 2086 - - B8R . - - BB .

Chss C 15230 18500 103500 October 2064 - - . . . ) .

CaskD 3Two o 57000 October 284 - - - R B . .

Loshace Levernge finsnceNo 1BY  Class d 332000 - . oy 2020 - - AsA . - . . .

Clss X N asn 206n Temney 203 N B . . . . . .

Clnsg 5o 20650 10219 [ [ — - - . R R - . .

Loditusa Finsnce X*1 Casa L0 M W Noveoba¥® R - - N . - - .

CanB 010 27120 VIO November}® - . p . . . A ;

¢ U e 00N Novicber N - . - B - . . .

IABES Erprenas | Cassa wm 1 - NevebmH) - ass - - - a3 - -

e 0 190 %e  November28d - an R . . Can , R
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NOTES1- TRANSFER OF ASSETS

As part of the restructuring process of the Portuguese real estate sector, several initiatives have been launched in
order fo create financial, operational and management conditions to revitalize the sector. Accordingly, the
Government, in close liaison with the business and the financial sector (the banks), including the BES Group,
encouraged the creation of companies and specialized funds that, through merger, consolidation and integrated
management, would obtain the required synergies fo recover the sector. Pursuing the goals established, were created
companies (parent companies), where BES Group has minority interests (in partnership with other banks that also
have a minority interest), and which in turn now hold alinost all of the capital of certain subsidiaries (subsidiaries of
those parent companies) in order to acquire certain real estate bank loans.

During 2013 and 2012, BES transferred financial assets (mainly corporate loans) to the subsidiaries of the parent
companies. These entities are responsible for managing the assets received as collateral, which after the transfer of
foans are received in exchange for the loans, and have the goal to implement a plan to increase its value. Almost all
of the financial asseis transferred in these operations were derecognised from the balance sheet of the Group, since a
substantial portion of the risks and rewards associated with these, as well as the respective control, were transferred
to those third parties.

These acquiring entities (the subsidiaries of the parent companies) have a specific management structure, fully
autonoinous from the banks, selected on the date of their incorporation and have the following main responsibilities:

+ define the entity’s purpose;

¢ administer and manage on an exclusive and independent way the assets acquired, determine objectives and
investment policy and the manner to conduct the entity’s management and affairs.

The acquiring entities are predominantly financed through the issuance of senior equity instruments fully
underwritten by the parent company. The amount of capital represented by senior securities equals the fair value of
the underlying asset, determined through a negotiation process based on valuations made by both parties. These
securities are remunerated at an interest rate that reflects the risk of the company holding the assets. Additionally,
the funding can be supplemented through banks underwriting of junior capital instruments equal to the difference
between the book value of the loans transferred and the fair value based on the senior securities valuation. These
junior instruments, when signed by BES Group will be entitled to a contingent positive amount if the assets
transferred value, when sold, exceeds the amount of senior securities plus its remuneration. Normally, the amount of
the junior security is limnited to a maximum of 25% of the total amount resulting from the senior and junior securities
issued.

Given that these junior securities reflect a different assessment of the assets transferred fair value, based on
valuvation performed by independent bodies and a negotiation process between the patties, they are fully provided for
in the Group's balance sheet.

Therefore, following transfer of assets occurred in 2012 the Group subscribed:

® equity instruments, representing the parent companies’ share capital on which the cash flows that will enable
its recovery come from a wide range of assets transferred by the various banks. These securities are recorded
under financial assets available for sale and are measured at market value with valuation regularly reported
by those parent companies whose accounts are audited at the end of each year;

¢ junior instruments issued by the acquiring companies (the subsidiaries of the parent companies), which are
fully provided for thus reflecting the best impairment estimation of the financial assets transferred,

The instruments subscribed by BES Group clearly resulted in a mincrity position in the capital of the parent
companies and of its subsidiaries.
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In this context, having no control but being exposed to some risk and rewards of ownership in refation to the
transferred assets through the securities subscribed as referred to above, the Group, in accordance with IAS 39.21,
conducted an analysis in order to compare the exposure to the variability of risks and rewards of the transferred
assets before and after the operation and concluded that it has not retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership. Additionally, and considering that also no control has been retained, it proceeded in accordance with IAS
39.20c (i) to the derecognition of the assets transferred and the recognition of the assets received in return, as shown
in the following table:

Amouls slipnsferdale

Anmwunt of the assets transfemed Securilies subsenbed
Nel assels Transler Resull of the Shares Junior Taral [rmaimient Net amount
{rans femed amounl transler {senior securitics) securilies ™
(in thousands of euro)
Tn 2082
Fundo Recuperagdo Turismo, FCR 282121 282121 - 256892 oS 2178 {34 908) 256892
FLIT SICAV 252866 254 347 1e31 235318 23247 258 565 3247) 235318
Discovery Poriupal Real Estale Fund o5 196 91208 (293%) 961733 - 95733 - 95733
Fundo Valfis Construciion Sector 6272 66272 - 81 00 21932 102624 {2£992) S1002
Fundo Recuperagan, FCR 145 564 149 883 4319 148 737 36182 184069 {23 000) 151 969
In20k3
TFunde Vallis Conslnsction Seclor 18 552 18 552 - 1606 2874 4 480 {2874) 1608
FLIT SICAVY 8% 769 a0 135 {&34) 85380 - a5360 - 85360
Discovery Podugal Real Estate Fund £ 800 45387 {6422) 351955 - 51955 - 51955
Fundo Recuperagio Tursnos, FCR 11056 11 056 - - - - - -
Fundo Recuperagao, FCR 52981 51963 (2 26 - T25 - 726
Fundo Reeslruiuragdo Enpresarial 67836 67836 - 99 403 99403 - 99400
1126 034 1121970 {4064) 1057782 119201 1176 983 (1056019} 1070 964

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's total exposure in operations related to transfer of loans/assets amounted to
euro 1 135.6 billion (euro 984.7 million, net of impairment).

As showed in the table above, the junior securities underwritten specifically as part of the transfer of assets are fully
provided for. Although the junior securities are fully provided for, the Group also maintains an indirect exposure o
the assets transferred through its minority interest in the parent companies capital and therefore, in all pool of assets
that resulted from the various assets transfers performed by the banks (shareholders of the parent companies).

There was however an operation with the company FLITPTREL VIII in which, as the acquiring company
substantially holds assets transferred by BES Group and considering the holding of junior securities, the variability
test resulted in a substantial exposure to ali risks and rewards. In this circumstance, the operation, amounting to euro
60 million, remained recognized in the Group’s balance sheet under Loans and advances to customers.

F-142



ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Conltinued)

(Amonnts expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

NOTE 52 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities, for the Group, is analysed as follows:

Balance as at 31 December 2413

Cash and deposits &1 centralbanks
Deposifs wilh banks
Finaneizlassets held forirading
Seeuriles
Bonds issued by government and public entities
Bands issued by other efitles
Shares
Other variable income securiiies
Derivalives
Exchange raie confracis
Inferest rate contracts
Credit defavlt contracis
Others
Orher fmancial assets at fairvalve through profd orlass
Bonds fssued by government and public entities
Bonds 1ssued by other etities
Shares and other variable income securilies
Availibl-for-saks financizl assels
Bonds issued by govemment and public entitles
Bonds issued by other etities
Shares
Other variable incame securliles
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to cuslomers
Held-to-malurty mvesimenls
Bonds Issied by government and public entities
Bopdy issued by ather elities
Derivalives forrsk management purposes
Exchange rate contracts
Interest rale eontracts
Credit default coniracts
Dihers

Finaacial assels

Deposis fiom eentral banks
Financaal labilties held for rading
Derivalives
Exchange rate confracis
Interest rafe contracis
Credit defanli contracis
Orhers
Other financial Babiiires held for trading
Deposils frombanks
Due to cusioners
Debl securdies issued
Dernivatives for riskmanagement purposes
Exchange rale coniracis
Jaterest rate conirocts
Credit default confrocis
Others
lavesiment contracls
Suberdinated debt

Financial liahilities

Fair Valoe
Valvation models  Valoatior models
Amortised Cost  Quoged Market tasedon based oa non- Book Value Fair Value
A olservate abservable
Prices
markel markel
information information
(in thousands of euro)
18286M - . - 1828674 1828674
1 18934 - . - 1 148934 11485%
- 1073726 1412051 2688 2483465 2488465
- 955951 . - 955931 955951
- 85283 17413 2583 10527 10527¢
- 308 69 - 093 30953
- 1596 - 105 17201 1701
- - 69950 - 69 50 69990
- 1231045 1231045 1231045
- - 34840 . M0 %0
- 58696 - 53606 58656
- 2349139 742292 47237 3564118 3564 118
- | 234847 - . 1234 847 1234847
- 493999 701 821 331647 1229 467 129467
- 620293 40421 43902 1099804 19 804
6517 | 5142754 241573 131474 3923778 B9
- 2560469 1139328 - 40977 10027197
- 932457 1193518 N2747 223872 223872
6347 @ &85 42579 588701 L1®H2 1173712
. 707943 60258 643336 L4110 557 1411 557
4 827 790 . - . 4827790 4827790
4568384 386823 - 49270667 46547 627
1672068 - - - 1672068 1611217
97778 - - . 437178 437364
12341200 - . - 1234290 1196853
- . 363391 - 363391 363391
- - 1726 - 1 726 1726
- - 37132 - 37132 317112
- 25188 - 2518% 25188
- - 19345 - 19345 1945
58 167857 S 565617 5540212 18201%% 74 093 885 71332595
977224 . - - 9T 9711224
. 7252 1329506 - 1336763 1336768
- 50333 - 30313 50333
- - 1067333 - 1097335 1097335
- 18387 - 13387 18347
- 156229 - 156229 15619
- T62 7222 . 14484 14484
4802385 - 24108 - 50334 4971 149
78647 633 - 0446172 - 38093207 32093 807
9368 88 - 3246310 - 1261528 15064832
- - 130710 - 13710 1307I0
- 1501 . 1501 1501
- - 667 - TS 667 TI667
- - 1064% . 10949 109249
- - 3859 - 38593 38593
2804498 1669423 - 4473921 3382054
1402915 273 1400 188 1443582
56805575 7162 16 046 503 - 72859 M0 74195 146

O & et ol soquisition cost net of impairaent lomes. These assels refer Lo equity nsirmment s isusd by noa-qroted ealities in Telation to which 1o recent (ranmetions were iealified or is nol

posible Lo etimate celiably il3 [ir vate,
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Fair Value
Valpation models  Valvation models
Amortised Cosl Quoted Markel basedon based oa nem. Book Value Fair Value
. ohservatie observabfe
Prices
market markel
nformalion information

{in thonsends ol enro)
Balance as al 31 December 2012

Cash and deposils al ¢eniralbanks 1444 831 . - - F441831 143831
Deposits with banks 1126853 - . - 1126853 1126353
Finaneial assels held for trading . 1400879 2490966 . 3N RS 3931848
Securilies
Bonds issued by governmeni and public entitles - 1349307 46075 - 1395383 1395583
Bonds Issued by other etities - 98636 16537] - 265057 5057
Shares - 4D 505 11776 - 52281 52281
Other varlable income securities - 2181 - - 2181 2151
Derivalives
Evchauge rate confracts - - 76736 - 76 736 76736
Interesirate contracts - - 1997925 - 1997925 15997925
Credit defouli contracts - - H3 - 41913 44913
Orhers . - 147119 - 147149 147119
(nhecfnancial assels at fairvshic through profit orloss - 1324283 L9761 281 507 2603 463 2603463
Bonds issued hy government and public entities - 516859 - - 516839 516859
Bands issued by other etilizs - 240934 G5 065 47321 956370 956370
Shares and other variable Incorwe seenrities . 366440 3608 24186 I b30234 1130234
Available-for-salke financial asseds BHH o 5367 883 4705 052 59693 11041235 11 041235
Bonds issued By goverment and public entilles . 14 M6 1293451 . 4497997 4497997
Bonds Isswed by other elities . 084 3208240 19297 4225951 422591
Shares 8605 0 183765 74593 50% 688 1380154 138015
Other variable Incoma securities - 376659 128766 411 708 913 9711
Loans and advances io banks 4548247 - - - 4348147 43548247
Loans and adyances 1o cuslomers 50 180516 - 512362 - 50652 878 47670 608
Held-to-maturly myvestmenls 1119047 - - . 1119047 1069283
Bonds issued by government and public entifies 404 393 - - - 404353 423 863
Bords issued by ather etitles 1654 - . - T4 654 £45421
Perivalives forssk manzgement purposes - - 516520 - 516320 516510
Exchange rate coniracis - - 5356 - 5336 3336
Interest rale contracts - - 460 692 - 460 652 460 692
Credii defoult tontracts - - 10216 - 10216 10216
Others - - 40 246 - 40256 40 256
Financial assets 58 428 099 8183047 9222573 1241200 771074519 74002385
Deposils roméeenlral banks 101325 - - - 10941325 10941 325
Fmancial kebifities held [or iading - T 21348 - 2124225 2012425
Derivaloves - - - - - -
Erckange rate contracts - - 810§ - 0 50k 80101
Interest rate coniracis - - 1855768 - 855768 1835768
Credii defoult contracis - . In4A - 47 31478
thars - - 156082 - 156082 156082
Ouher Mmancizl Babililies held for Lrzding . i - . 05 k3
Depostts from banks 4453 103 - 61277 - 3065980 4875828
Duelo customers 26828452 - 3796982 - 5625474 35625474
Debl securities issucd 13293288 - 2659582 - 15952870 16426 268
Derivatives for sk management purposes - - 123 159 - 125199 125 199
Erchange rofe caniracis - - 21 - 23} 232
Interest rale confracls . - 65437 - 63437 65437
Credit defaxlt eoniracis - - 183430 - 18340 18340
Ohers - - 41190 - 41 199 41190
Inveslmenl contrels 172930 - 2114630 - IO 445862
Subord mated deb1 1176249 - 263 - 1176482 1150558
Finzncid linkilifies 29422417 196 164321362 - 74855515 75345139

() 4 sset a1 sequisition cost nel of inpaiment loses These axsels refir Lo equily insdruménls issued by non-quoled enlities in relation {0 which no revent Lransctions were denlified or s nol
possitie lo estimate relbly its fair vale,

The Group determines the fair value of its financial assets and liabilities in accordance with the following hierarchy:
Quoted market prices (level 1) — this category includes financial assets with available quoted market prices in

official markets and with dealer prices quotations provided by entities that usually provide transaction prices for
these assets/liabilities traded in active markets.
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Valuation models based on observable market information (level 2) — consists on the use of internal valuation
techniques, namely discounted cash flow models and option pricing models which imply the use of estimates and
require judgments that vary in accordance with the complexity of the financial instrument. Notwithstanding, the
Group uses observable market data such as interest rate curves, credit spreads, volatility and market indexes.
Tneludes also instruments with dealer price quotations but which are not traded in active markets.

Valuation models based on non-ohservable marlket information (level 3) — consists on the use of internal
valuation techniques, mainly discounted cash flow models, or quotations provided by third parties but which itnply
the use of non-observable market inforination.

The movements of the financial assets valued based on non-observable market information, during 2013 and 2012,
can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2013
Financial assels held for Otler financial assets at fair Available-for-sale
{rading value through profit or loss financial assets Total
(in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January - 281 507 959 693 1 241 200
Acquisitions 25 660 36008 350 250 421 918
Disposals - (54 797 (36 082) (110 875)
Transfer (22772) 205 748 i17021 299997
Changes in value (200) 4271 {36 108) (32037

Balance as at 31 December 2688 472 737 1344 774 I 820199

Al1.2012

Pinancial assets held for

Other linancial assels at fair

Available-for-sale

trading value through profit or loss financial assets Total
{in thousands of euro)

Balance as at 1 January - 14332 253 507 267 839
Acquisitions - 275 819 713 523 989 342
Disposals - {2722 (17 GO4) (20 326)
Transfer - - 6503 6593
Changes in value - 5922 kYips {2248)

Dalance as at 31 December - 281 507 959 693 1241200

The main assumptions and inputs used in the valuation models are presented as follows:

Interest rates curves

The short term rates presented reflect benchmark interest rates for the money market, being that for the long term the
presented values represent the swap interest rate for the respective years:
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31.12.2013 31.12.2012

FUR USD GBP EUR UsD GBP
)
Cvernight 0.1100 0.1100 0.4100 0.0700 0.1000 0.4700
1 month 0.1941 0.1600 0.4160 0.1759 0.2300 0.4600
3 months 0.2870 0.3300 0.5200 0.1370 0.4150 04800
6 nonths 0.1390 0.4100 0.7350 0.3200 0.4400 0.6200
G months 0.3981 0.4500 0.8100 0.3178 0.5900 0.7900
1year 0.4130 0.3050 0.6412 0.3200 0.3260 0.5411
3years 0.7715 0.8500 1.4342 0.4700 0.4765 07783
5years 1.2580 1.7490 21337 0.7650 0.8260 1.0169
T years 1.6820 24270 2.5770 1.1250 12435 1.3563
10 years 2.1550 3.0230 2.9876 1.5700 1.7500 1.8560
15 years 2.5809 3.5230 33160 2.0184 22800 2.4135
20 years 2.71139 3.7200 34170 21715 2.5020 2.7230
25 years 2.7399 3.8020 3.4380 22203 2.6240 2.8800
30 years 2.7309 3.8520 3.4360 22413 2.6880 29535

Credit spreais

The credit spreads used by the Group on the valuation of the credit derivatives are disclosed on a daily basis by
Markit representing observations constituted for around 85 renowned international financial entities. The evolution
of the main indexes, understood as being representative of the credit spreads behaviour in the market throughout the
year, is presented as follows:

Index Series 1 year J years 5 years 7 years 10 years

{basis points)

Year 2013

CDX USD Main 21 7.67 20.88 62.44 88.95 107.99
iTraxx Eur Main 20 - 35.17 70.15 96.97 118.17
iTraxx<Rur Senior Financial 20 - - 87.06 - 135.18
Year 2012

CDX USD Main 19 33.02 58.73 95.39 118.68 136.14
iTraxx Bur Main 18 - 76.38 11743 141,58 154.60
iTraxx Bur Senior Financial 18 - - 142.44 - 174.98

Interest rates volutility

The values presented below, refer to the implied volatilities (at the money) used for the valuation of the interest rate
options:
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31.12,2013 31.12.2012
EUR UsD GBP EUR USD GBT
(%)

1 year 112,77 T5.90 49.18 197.18 66.60 54,10
3 years 65.30 7270 5578 84.70 7290 64.90
Syears 53.30 50.62 4599 67.50 63.22 60.80
7 years 45.20 38.21 38.55 52.90 51.03 49.60
10 years 36.80 31.55 31.80 39.70 42,33 37.20
15 years 30.68 35.58 26.58 3143 35.80 27.80

Exchange rates and velatility

Presented below are the exchange rates (European Centrat bank} at the balance sheet date and the implied volatilities
(at the money) for the main currencies used on the derivatives valuation:

Volatility (%)

Exchange
Rates 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 1 month 3months G months 9 months 12 months

EUR/USD 13791 1.3194 7.65 7.75 7.88 8.15 8.32
EUR/GBP 0.8337 0.8161 6.55 6.73 7.00 7.13 733

EUR/CHF 1.2276 1.2072 3.25 3.83 4.23 4,58 4.89
EURMNOK 8.3630 7.3483 8.05 8.03 7.95 8.00 7.98
EUR/PLN 4.1543 4.0740 5.00 5.84 6.56 7.08 7.53
EUR/RUB 45.3246 40.3295 7.37 1.89 8.43 890 9.41

USD/BRLE) 23621 2.0491 12,95 13.38 13.60 13.80 14.00
USD/TRY " 2,1467 17850 14.50 13.80 13.60 13.60 13.60

@ Caleulation based in EUR/USD and EUR/BRL exchange rales
® Calculation based in EURAUSD and EUR/TRY exchange rates
Concerning the exchange rates, the Group uses in the valuation models the spot rate observed in the market at the

time of the valuation.
Equity indexes

In the table below, is presented the evolution of the main market equity indexes and the respective volatilities used
for the valuation of equity derivatives:

Quote Historical volatility Implied
31.12.2013 31.12.2012 % chanpe 1 month 3 months volafility
DJ Euro $toxx 50 3109 2636 17.95 14.90 13.72 13.44
PSI20 6559 5655 15.08 1291 13.65 -
IBEX 35 9917 8 168 2142 15.39 15.34 -
FTSE 100 6749 5 898 14.43 10.11 9.83 10.69
DAX 9552 7612 2548 13.23 124 13.56
S&P 500 1848 1426 29.60 8.74 10.31 11.21
BOVESPA 51507 60 952 (15.50) 19.34 2022 -
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The valuation adjustments which the Group has considered in the valuations of its derivatives and borrowings,
were (i} credit value adjustments (CV A}, reflecting the counterparties credit risk embedded in the fair value of
derivatives, (it} debit value adjustments (DVA), reflecting the Group’s own credit risk embedded in the fair value
of derivatives and own credit adjustments (QCA), refiecting the Group’s own credit risk embedded in the fair value
of non-quoted borrowings.

CVA per counterparty is calculated on the exposure per net counterparty exposure, to which is applied the
probability of default (PD) of the counterparty and the loss given defavlt.

OCA is calculated using market observable CDS spreads, namely BES CDS spreads,

The methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at
amortised cost in the balance sheet are analysed as follows:

Fair Value
¥aluation models  Valualion models
Amortised Cost Quoted Markel based on based.on non- Fair value
Pri ohservalle olsenalle
riees markel markel
informalion informalion
Lewel I Level 2 Eewel )
{in thousands of eura)

Balance as al 31 December 2013
Cash and deposits at central banks 1828674 1 828674 - - 1828674
Deposits with banks 1145934 1148924 - - 1148904
Available-for-sale financial assels shares 6547 - - 6547 557
Loans and advances to banks 48271790 - 4827790 - 4827790
Loans and advanees o customers 43683 844 - 45 960 805 - 45 950 805
Held-lo-malurily investmenls 1672068 610871 991 8719 1468 1634218

Bonds isswed by government and public enfities 437778 434900 2464 - 437364

Bonds issucd by ather elitics 1234 290 205971 989415 1468 1 156 354
Financinl assets 58 167 857 3618470 51730474 8015 55406 968
Deposits fromcentralbanks 9772244 9772244 - - 9772244
Deposts fiombanks 4800385 - 4747040 - 4747040
Due to customers 28647635 - 28 647635 - 28647635
Debl securities issued 9368 898 6239708 5294 682 234132 1885
Tnvesiment ceniracis 2804 498 . 1712631 - 1712631
Subordinated debt 1402915 1200 M6 242363 - 1443 306
Financial liabilities 56805 575 17262 898 40 644 351 234132 53 141 381

Cash and deposits at central banks, Deposifs with banks and Loans and advances to banks

Considering the short terin nature of these financial instruments, carrying value is a reasonable estimate of its fair
value.

Loans and advances (o cristomers

The fair value of loans and advances to customers is estimated based on the discount of the expected future cash
flows of capital and interest, assuming that the installments are paid on the dates that have been contractually
defined. The expected future cash flows of loans with similar credit risk characteristics are estimated collectively.
The discount rates used by the Group are current interest rates used in loans with similar characteristics.
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Held-to-muaturity invesimenis

The fair values of these financial instruments are based on quoted market prices, when available. For unquoted
securities the fair value is estimated by discounting the expected future cash-flows.

Deposits from central banks and Deposits from banks

Considering the short term nature of these financial instruments, carrying value is a reasonable estimate of its fair
value.

Due te customers

The fair value of these financial instruments is estimated based on the discount of the expected fiture cash flows of
capital and interest, assuming that the instalments are paid on the dafes that have been contractually defined. The
discount rates used by the Group are the current interest rates used in instruments with similar characteristics.
Considering that the applicable interest rates to these instruments are floating interest rates and that the period to
maturity is subsiantially less than one year, the difference between fair value and book value is not significant,

Debt securities issued and Subordinated debt

The fair value of these instruments is based on market prices, when available. When not available, the Group
estimates its fair value by discounting the expected future cash-flows.

NOTE 53 - RISK MANAGEMENT

A qualitative outlook of the risk management at the Group is presented below:

Credil visk

Credit risk represents the potential financial loss acising from the failure of a borrower or counterparty to honour its
contractual obligation. Credit risk is essentially present in traditional banking products — loans, guarantees granted
and contingent liabilities — and in trading products — swaps, forwards and options (counterparty risk). Regarding
credit default swaps, the net exposure between selling and buying positions in relation to each reference entity, is
also considered as credit risk to the Group. The credit default swaps are accounted for at fair value in accordance
with the accounting policy described in Nofe 2.4,

Credit portfolio management is an ongoing process that requires the interaction between the various teams
responsible for the risk management during the consecutive stages of the credit process. This approach is
complemented by the continuous intraduction of improvements in the methodologies, in the risk assessment and
control tools, as well as in procedures and decision processes,

The risk profile of ESFG Group’s credit portfolios is analysed on a regular basis by the risk committees at the
subsidiary level. In these meetings the Committees monitor and analyses the risk profile of the Group entities under
four major perspectives: evolution of credit exposures, monitoring of credit losses, capital allocation and
consumption and control of risk adjusted return.
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ESFG Group credit risk exposure is analysed as follows:

Deposits with banks

Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets

Loans and advances to customers
Held-to-maturity investments

Derivatives for risk management purposes

Other assets

Guarantees granted and stand by letters of credit
Open documentary credits

Imevocable commitments

Credit risk linked to the reference entities of credit derivatives

31.12.2013

31.12.2012

(in thousands of eunio)

3577359 3433052
2455801 3927384
2464314 1473229
6338 509 8723948
49270 667 50692 878
1672068 1119047
363 391 516 520
729 168 605 374
8031 816 8427 956
4234 660 3780554
1800 185 3461 701
176 305 489 884
81114243 86 651 527

The analysis of the risk exposure by sector of activity, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012, can be analysed as follows:

Agrcuiure

Minng

Food, beversge and (ohaceo

Tees

Shoea

Wood and eork

Prioimg and pobEshing

Refming and od

Chermice and rubber

Noomeiake mnerald

Metafic products

Produclion of mechiery,
equipmenl sl ekcin: Jevives

Troduclinn of transport material

Other Lansforring ndustries

Eeclrivity, gas aod nater

Conslnuction

Wholesele and relsdl

Towbom

Transporis amd communicativns

Thancisteclivities

Realestale activiies

Services provided lo companics

Pubbe senices

Non-profit orgensatons

Morlgage bans

Consumer loany

Other

TOTAL

31122003
loanaendadvancestocnstomers :::‘::l;":’:r: i Avaiablfor-sak fnanchl assets Heldto-matarity ivestmonts Fiaaneial
el fortrad g vabze through .
a?-:;:l Erpaiment profiorkss B?_:::‘ Expaiment bases mﬁ:::l Fpaiment bosses Eaued
{(mn thousands ol eurc)
AT 965 (2951 B5% - q017 - 36054
156761 (5077 Rl 8115 13392 (7D - A1045
1002636 (45457 2656 473% nm sy 15% 090
M 5E (19918 o5 - BT 357 1530
T5046 (6609 205 - 499 (49 - 1543
139633 (23580 n 0617 5528 (13 781
39642 (16 487) 1981 - 158N {10008) 0427
1007 17 M nm 93043 (1212) 5461
64599 (16950 9715 X062 2371 (13 45 95965
N7IM (30755 33 - 12730 {7585) 21146
%60 765 (71576) T3 m 3696 (m 195496
269 (10535 1261 257 12645 (3580 010
131638 (6238 5] 36011 I 206 (108) NIAH
387087 (30205) 6 14244 49824 {16515 41263
1362943 (188 1442 ZEN 305684 (3178 - 51294
4385193 (471 685) 28 560 133846 ZM RS0 {3387 IMS 2219782
3380556 (3N 7I6) 8313 nn 65H8 (22¢49) IS 507631
14404 (121 Rm 5705 17412 24200 (5 - 125140
2174418 (W26 184 265 8371 259 B9L {5681) 15841 - 121
4602509 (220219) 51843 1492083 2575073 [Q1FRCH)] L0580 (3809 253008
567215 (676 %W 16N 125 419 121156 (4170 134 - X548
S{oR034 (462161) pro{ 0 paty 15571 {37T80) 61772 1342690
1591188 (25434) 0429 124847 1092793 (L9m) 977177 - 196 168
34597283 (IR 6T Aoz 56 658 391811 {47601y 7740 (4611 463211
108147 (185851) - - 4902 - - - &
2547855 (203 835) - - 2657 - 233263
I (10178) 9N o) 740 155 4555
52716 14T @116 075) 2488 465 3564118 9247821 (318 043} 146385 482 (13421) §031916
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3122012
T.oans and advences to custorers. : Cuber fnancal Availabk-for-sak fnancial asrely ¥ieH to muhrity investrrnts Finaneal
Fm;n;nlaggts us;u la::‘:lﬁ;' tees
held for 1radm; value U E -
:;::l Fpaiment losses # profitor bi af::‘:;‘ IrpeTmem bssea :::l Impatment bsses issued
{m Lhousands ofeuro}

Agriculine 138485 (2715 14202 - 105 (& - - 36677
Mining 3918 (1%5) M nx2 12962 (519 - . 33655
Food, beverage and totacea 1028 563 {50542y 25727 2685 10560 ()] - - 103 M5
Texties NG (33316 851 - 10425 (3%8) - - 14833
Shoes 61359 sy L3 . 499 (459) - - 208
Wood and cark L7 M5 {(3121) i 2085 4366 (123 - - T465
Printing and pubkshing 101889 (E5601) 6683 - 11968 (L %8) - - #20
Relmmng end el 6976 (45 4817 35 24939 (12312) - - 5415
Chemiicals and rubber 616899 [§L301)] Poyity L1471 22000 (112%) . - 102 730
HNon-relahe minersls payihl {28435 431 - nim (7958) - . X132
MetaBe prodoely I 62 [Edb) 14592 L] 249 - . - F56 525
Produetoa olmachmery,

equipment and electric devives 284 716 (L1eEn 30 3B 31249 (57 156 - 120022
Production of Lranspad melerial 633 (9679 630 HOS5 B9 (3418 - . Mes2
Ouher Irans forming Industrica 333355 (27340 1611 2853 54790 (12 - - B9
Ekclxiy, gas and mater 1475 462 (10M) 155 360 4712 0301 - 4243 - 527890
Construction 53376359 (381890) 416606 57643 TR {1650 - - 2453033
Wholesale 2nd refad 3RS0 (3015} 10810 L35 35267 {15800 1537 - 577 500
Touriam 1433763 (91 5%6) 15324 65301 396M4 (&) - - 12189%
Transperty and communicativns 2183930 [Elary] 21250 18 593 30T95 (9388 2085 - 1032239
Financial sclivit 46581491 (123507 1052978 1622028 Jenex (Mmay 578 120 (2073 258316
Realealale activities 679 5% (4610 313N 0000 20041 (180 129 - 455 514
Services provided (o companiey 4952436 (315580 H5200 S14 1158903 {1199 213 - 1500 033
Puble zervices M1 {22955} 1408962 516859 4438 007 {183 404 392 . 27188
Hon-profil organivations 34n w7 (268 521} 133288 P2 | 369 68 (4609 10597 (18319 402493
Morlgage bans 1133822 ¢ 169 114) - - - - - - 9
Conyumer bans 2TR244 (157344 09 - - - - - |
Ouher 1252 (1114) 1806 193 1781 [&-u] - - nin
‘TOTAL 53427 504 (2731 626) J 981843 2603463 15295376 {254 141) 1158158 (3%01n B 427956
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As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the analysis of the loan portfolio by rating is as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Rafing/Scoring models [“'“"g‘)“"““ Credi§ amount %) Credif amount (%)
(in million of curo) {in million of euro})
[aaa;a-] 8 0.02% 8 0.01%
[bbb+;<bbb-] 2119 402% 2313 433%
Large companies [bb+bb-] 4 349 8.63% 4997 9.35%
[b+b-] 7074 1342% 8080 15.12%
cect 1981 376% 1277 23%%
89 488 0.93% 535 1.00%
1011 403 0.76% 532 1.00%
12-13 553 1.05% 632 1.18%
14-15 467 0.89% 438 082%
Mediumenterprises 1617 502 0.95% 567 1.06%
18-19 380 0.72% 342 0.64%
2021 468 0.39% 347 0.65%
22-23 231 044% 94 0.55%
24-25 1527 290% 1659 3.11%
A 62 0.12% 71 0.13%
B 334 0.63% 305 057%
c 556 1.05% 620 1.16%
Small enterprises D 268 051% 301 058%
E 137 026% 251 047
F 556 1.05% 557 1.04%
0l 1220 231% 1196 224%
0z 4398 £34% 4341 8.12%
03 1427 27% 1492 27%%
o 680 1.25% 710 1.33%
Mortgageloons 05 506 0.96% 503 0.94%
06 49 094% 488 0.91%
7 617 1.17% 679 1.27%
03 712 1.35% 953 1.78%
01 ki 0.14% 86 0.16%
02 57 0.11% 66 0.12%
03 118 027% 130 0.24%
o4 238 045% 312 0.58%
Privale individuals 05 118 022% 136 0.25%
06 170 0.32% 198 03%%
o7 149 028% 144 0.21%
03 132 0.25% 109 0.20%
1] 183 0.35% 260 049%
10 2 - 4 001%
No inlemal raling f scoring loans 18757 35.55% 17485 327%
TOTAL ESFG 52717 100.00% 53 428 100.00%

O [ntemal scale established by the Group. The lower {he number/ lelier the betier is the rating
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Market Risk
Market risk is the possible loss resulting from an adverse change in the value of a financial instrument due to
fluctuaticns in interest rates, foreign exchange rates or share prices, commodities prices, volatility and credit spread.

The market risk management is integrated with the balance sheet management through the Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO) at the Group entities level. These committees are responsible for defining policies for the
structuring and composition of the balance sheet, and for the conirol of exposures to interest rate, foreign exchange
and liquidity risk.

The main measure of market risk is the assessment of potential losses under adverse market conditions, for which
the Value at Risk (VaR) valuation criteria is used. Group's VaR model uses the Monte Carlo simulation, based on a
confidence level of 99% and an investment period of 10 days. Volatilities and corcelations are historicat, based on an
observation period of one year. As a complement to VaR, stress testing has been developed, allowing to evaluate the
impact of potential losses higher than the ones considered by VaR.

31122013 31.12.2012

TDrecember Annual average Maxinium Minlmum December Annnal average Masimum Minimum

(in milllon of euro)

Exchange risk il 166 9192 10957 7371 3309 nan 13723 33%
Interest rate risk 5532 7108 9342 5566 379 18426 28532 8793
Shares & Commodily 11186 12640 21 444 10538 15026 14439 27 15026
Volatility 3055 5817 4089 2857 T2 T 717 7112
Credit Spread 16775 2394 380 16941 13887 40212 71 556 13887
Diversification effec (10501 (1o (1477) (8725) (10105 {17 000) (203147 (10105)

36813 47678 64949 34548 38112 74541 111 764 38112

Group has a VaR of euro 36 813 million (31 December 2012: euro 38 112 million), for its trading positions.

Interest rate risk

Following the recommendations of Basel 1T (Pilar 2) and Instructions n.19/2005, of the Bank of Portugal, ESFG
Group calculates its exposure to interest rate risk based on the methodology of the Bank of International Settlement
(BIS), which requires the classification of non-trading balances and off-balance positions by repricing intervals.

31122013 A

Thege Now Gpied ™ s1a12 Moredm§  Hegible . Tpted Y a3t . Morethan§

nounts rearkie  meachs meaks  meds YT P rsadhy e L i

fix thearssdnof rurs) {in dhewrandy el rurs)

Cash end depesitt I MO TN BN se 330 usn 76r% A GNIHE aMm w13 wos 535
Loans and advances Lo curteoers 58 SN BIOIM 26N GOSHML 24543 35U . meN Gl 2TBNe S 1794N
Securides ORI AWSHF AXSM 1081817 SNI LoRT  2é5%0  IPOSISS  IBMER BENAHM 14MM2 18NN 20108 (MO
et 49332241 $IEM  ISMESI  TRAISN  5AuUM DOIIL 1147151 3ESIOST  BSSIIE  JO16LS8
Drposts from basks s 100 S RN W enm NG® Onm e LouEmMI M s 149508
Dust Io customers 1230 o MBI MO EHISH  RMIN2 B I . msle 1896 Jossan ST w5
Debt recuriies fivoed and toborEnated deb L) 86403 o 2em3s 1IME WM OB INND 169187 . STSER WTE?  INIm e 33
Preference shares 8 - . . . . 1347 on R . - . . WoH
Teut M79515 SE0188  TIIGTT 1§13 S1a6m AITEISEL 488379 S4TA6TI 12608606 44MIE2
AP AstersTinhBhes 104 TENIP 3201882 @7T03130 (A08T)  1368)  LOBESIE MRMNG  TOIUS (M5 @8N (TH439
Off Bulance shert QL) QTIND W W (RN ELIn  (3M0) M6 6295 @i
Straciural GAP @ 5815 (MXeI) 903N 1R (PMTNT (WD Lossan sl NI ARl 238606 (599
AccvmrlusAGAR GRBn LR 2300 Q8INS ano gMle  gssng  EE0n KL 108552
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
{Amounts expressed in thousands of enro, excep! when Indicated)

The sensitivity of ESFG Group to interest rate risk, measured in accordance with Instruction no. 1972005 of the
Bank of Portugal, which requires the calculation of the impact of a parallel shift of 200 basis points in the interest

rate curve, can be analysed as follows:

31,12.2013 31.12.2012

(in million of euro)

Accumulated impact in equity:
Increase of 200 basis points (96) (65)
Decrease of 200 basis points %6 05

In addition, the model used to monitor the sensitivity of BES Group (o interest rate risk is based on the duration
meodel, and consider parallel and non parallel scenarios.

31.12,2013 31.12.2012
. Parallel Parallel Increase of 50  Decrease ol 50 . Parallel Parallel Increase of 50  Decrense of 50
increase of 100 decrease of bpafter 1 year  bpaler 1 year increase of 100 decrense of bpafier 1 year  bpafler I year
bp 1000p ¥ ¥ . 100bp y ¥
(in nulfion of ¢ures)
A1) December (22) 22 n 1 (83 3] (34 “
Average forthe year { 80) 80 {29 2 {2 22 (n 1
Maximum forihe year ( Noy 110 {33 8 ( 125) 125 60 {
Mininum for (he year (71} ¥ (2n 21 11 (13 22 (22)

The following table presents the average balances, interest and interest rates in relation to the Group’s major assets
and liabilities categories, for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

31.12,2013 31.12.2012
Average halance Interesiof the Average inleresi Average balance Interest of the Average Interest
of the year year rate of {he year year rale

(in thousands of euro}

Monelary assels 9833442 269980 2.15% 3949524 196 71 220%
Loans and advances to customers 103634 293 2445378 236% 1771572 2683469 2.56%
Securilies 28725539 704748 245% 29042776 866614 298%
Finantial assets 142193274 3420106 2.41% 142 761 872 3746 857 2.62%

Monetary labilitics 30970 140 342599 1L11% 35504430 422 556 119%
Due to casimmers 74431667 1020792 1374 69 007319 1039585 1.51%
Other financial liabilities 29510815 064 220 327% 34951702 1019495 29%
Other 3092195 - - 1281 892 - -

Financlal liatilities 138 004317 2327611 1.69% 140745 343 2 481 636 1.76%

Netinterest Income 1092 495 0.72% 1265221 0.86%
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Foreign Exchange risk
In relation to foreign exchange risk, the breakdown of assets and liabilities, by currency, as at 31 December 2013
and 2012, is analysed as follows;

usp
Gne
BRL
DKK
JPY
CHF
SEK
NOK
CAD
ZAR
AUD

United States Dollars
Gireat Britain Pounds
Brazlian real
Danish krone
Japanese yene
Swiss frang
Swedish kronz
Norwegian krone
Canadian Dotlar
Rand

Ausiralan Pellar

ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amounis expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

AOA
CZK
MXN

Kwanz

Other

Czech koruna

Peso Mexican

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Spot Forward e]?':::“ Netexposure Spot Forward el?rl:::u Nel exposure
{in thous ands of eurs)

384 142 ( 467 092) 69 054 (13 896) {758 046) 742185 99 049 33783
504 707 (491 941) 855 13621 473 834 (472979) { 970) ( 65)
149020 (148 191) ( 218} 611 187301 (183 686) {4738) ( 623)
3191 (3273) - (87) 21947 (21579) 368
(13 404) 18623 {16833} (11 664) 27519 6 506 {4D166) (5841)
173 052 {54 951) (20873) 07228 21 444 (1357) (10475) 69612
(13 232) 13203 ( 29) 7403 (7778 {57 ( 428)
{43 087) 43156 69 { 49 539) 49807 69 237
(1048) 11728 10680 22866 (23290) (7227} {7651
(14 340) 14287 - ( 53) {5569) 4475 497 ( 59T
(2022) 2760 738 (8510) 10 124 17 1631
{156 583) (136 583) { 53208) (53 203)
105 - 105 5 - 5
42900 (43873) ( 978) 61789 (75772) 9338 (2645
{63 833) 35932 26084 (1817) (26 351) 121 789 26297 121 735
949 568 (L 062 642} 33019 (62 055) {14 265) 149 045 71 638 206 418

Nate: asset/ (lability)

Exposure fo peripheral Eurozone countries public debt

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the exposure to public debt from peripheral Eurozone countries which are
monitored by the Group is analysed as follows:

Portugal
Spain
Greece
Ireland
Italy

{1 Wetl amounts

31.12.2013
Loans and Financial assets T Available-for- .
Derivative Held-to-maturit
advances to held fortrading . ] sale finaneial eijm:; ::3;: ¥ Total
customers and at fair value mstaiments assefs
(in thousands of curo)
913 897 1310228 18 652 2 190 606 145 167 4578 550
92786 60312 { 47 525101 - 678 152
- 725 - 29 451 - 30176
- - - - 2724 274
- 10402 - 160 409 - 170811
1006 683 1381 667 18 605 2905 567 147 891 5460413
: receivable/(payable)
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ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 — (Continued)
(Amonnts expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicafed)

31.12.2012
Loans and Financial asscls - Available-for-
Derivative -fo- i
advances to held for trading . e (1) sale financial He.ld fo-maturily Total
customers at fairvalue instruments assets myestments
(in thousands ofeuro)

Poriugal 935771 593 850 31143 2519 596 220041 4300401
Spain 111 121 568 ( 76) 608 278 - 719 891
Greece - 3439 - - - 3439
Ireland - - - - 27483 27483
Ttaly - 7926 - 211399 - 29325
1046892 605783 31067 3149273 247 524 5080539

(1) Net amounts; receivable/(payable}

All the exposures presented above, except loans and advances to customers, are recorded in the Group’s balance
sheet at fair value, which is based on market quotations or, in relation to derivatives, based on valuation techniques
with observable market data. Loans and advances to customers are recorded at amortized cost net of impairment
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 - (Continued)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

A detailed exposure regarding securities recorded in available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets held for
trading and held-to-maturity investments can be analysed as follows:

Awilable-for-sale financial assets
Portugal
Matutity up to 1 year
Maturity exceeding 1 year

Spain
Maturity up to 1 year
Maturity exceeding 1 ycar

Greece
Maturity exceeding 1 year

Ttaly
Matarity up to | year
Maturity exceeding 1 year

Financial assets held for trading
Portugal
Spain

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Portugal
Spain
Greece
Italy

Held-to-maturity investments
Portugal
Ireland

{(in thousands ofeuro)

31.12.2013
Nominal Market {&ccrued Book value  Impairment Fair value
Amount value interest reserve

2294 141 2134526 56 080 2190606 - (2416)
252 551 251119 56 251175 - 225
2041 5% 1883 407 56024 1939431 - { 2641)
498 655 515385 9716 525101 - { 676)
250 500 249711 2 249713 - 171
248 155 265 674 9714 275388 - { 847)
53003 28 552 899 29 451 - 938

53 003 28 552 899 29 451 - 938
160 000 159991 418 160 409 - T09
150 Q00 149 490 211 149701 - 332

10 000 10 501 207 10708 - 377
3005799 2838454 67113 2905567 - (1 445)
100 127 94 591 1959 96 550 - -
45114 50674 2338 53012 - -
145 241 145 265 4297 149 562 - -
1244 006 1207129 6549 1213678 - -
7290 7291 9 7300 - -
1219 705 20 725 - -

10 400 10 402 - 10 402 - -
1262915 1225527 6578 1232105 - -
157 440 156 731 2131 145 167 - -
3000 3245 97 2724 - -

160 440 159976 2228 147 891 - -
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Awvailable-for-sale financial assets
Portugal
Maturity up to 1 year
Maturity exceeding 1 year

Spain
Maturity up to 1 year
Maturity exceeding 1 year

Greece
Maturily exceeding 1 year

Ttaly
Maturily exceeding 1 year

Financial assets held for trading
Portugal
Spain
Italy

{in thousands of eura)

Financial assets at fair value throngh profit or loss

Portugal
Spain
Greece
Ttaly

Held-to-maturity investments
Portugal
Ircland

31.12.2012
Nominal Market Accrued . Fair value
. Book value  Impairment
Amount value interest reserve
2720736 2471421 48175 251959 - 191 382
195 431 194 133 249 194 382 - 485
2525305 2277288 47 926 2325214 - 190 897
618 792 600 096 8182 608 278 - 2208
389350 383 681 325 384 006 - 796
220 442 216 415 7857 224272 - 1412
53003 28 552 899 29 451 - 938
53003 28 552 899 29451 - 938
20100 20975 424 21399 - 478
20100 20975 424 21399 - 478
3412631 3121044 57680 3178724 - 195 006
158 946 141 676 3807 145 483 - -
304 302 - 302 - -
1656 1 667 34 1701 - -
160 206 143 645 3841 147 4806 - -
524 625 440 395 7972 448 367 - -
260 259 7 266 - -
129 655 3439 - 3439 - -
5969 6224 1 6225 - -
660 509 450 317 7980 458 297 - -
239 640 216703 3338 220041 - -
27 000 26 542 041 27 483 - -
266 640 243 245 4279 247 524 - -
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Liguidity visk

Liquidity risk derives from the potential inability to fund assets while satisfying the maturity dates of commitments
and from potential difficulties in liquidating portfolio positions without incurring excessive losses.

Liquidity risk can be divided into two types:

«  Asset liguidity (market liquidity risk) — The inability to sell a particular asset due to lack of liquidity in the
market, which results in increasing the bid / offer spread or applying a haircut to market value;

+  Funding (funding liquidity risk) — The inability to, within the desired timeframe and currency, fund assets
in the market and / or refinance debt that comes due, This inability can be reflected by a significant increase
of financing cost or of collateral requirements in order to obtain funds. Difficulties of (re) financing can
lead to asset sales, even incurring in significant losses. The risk of (re) financing should be minimized
through adequate diversification of funding sources and maturities.

During 2013, the market sentiment continued to improve, with the reduction in the aversion risk levels and in the
sovereign debt yields of the peripheral countries supported in expansionist policies from central banks, although
there have been some political instability events during the year. In Portugal, the economic indicators have
improved, with the beginning of an economic recovery cycle. In Deceinber the Republic accessed the markets for a
switch operation of Treasury Bills and in January with a new five years issue of euro 3 250 million.

During the year, a significant number of banks have reimbursed the LTRO {(Long Term Refinacing Operation)
granted in December 2011, in the amount of approximately euro 446 000 million. The Group has repaid in advance
euro 1 000 millton under this facility.

In order to take advantage of the favourable conditions, the Group accessed the international capital markets in the
beginning of the year with a senior debt issuance, not guaranteed, with a 5 years maturity, in the amount of euro 500
million, anticipating part of the reimbursements occurring during the year (euro 1.6 billion). In November the Group
issued subordinated debt in the amount of euro 750 million. These issues, combined with a good performance in the
client’s deposits and the reduction of the loan's portfolio, allowed the Group to face the reimbursements of 2013,
rebuy debt and reduce the ECB financing. Taking advantage of the improvement in the economic sentiment, in
January 2014, the Group issued a 5 years debt in the amount of euro 750 million, with a 4% coupon, which
corresponds to a 285 b.p. spread over the 5 years mid-swap rate. This level of placement was equal to the 5 years
issue conducted in 2009.

At year end, assets ¢ligible as collateral for rediscount operations were euro 20.9 billion, of which euro 18.6 billion
were eligible at the European Central Bank.

In order to evaluate the global exposition to liquidity risk, reports have been prepared which permit not only the
identification of negative imismatches, but also lead to the coverage of these situations.

F-159



ESPIRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A,
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The following tables present details of the mismatch in the residual terms for each of the main categories of assets

and liabilities:

ASSETS

Cash and deposifs wilh banks

Loans end advances 1o banks and cenlral banks

Loans and advances 1o cuslomess

Securitiest

Other assels, net

OfM-katance sheel Hems {Commitments and Danvalives)

Folat

LIABILITIES

Deposits frembanks, centeal banks and other leans
Drae lo cuslomers

Dbt securities issued

Olher shori-lerm Jiabililes

QfEbalance sheal items {Commitments and Derivalives)

Talal

GAP (Assets - Llab1lifes)
Accumulated GAP

Buffer> 12 monlhs

* This caplion includes securities held by Lthe Group which ¢an be rediscounted with the ECB fer hquidily purposes

ASSETS

Cash and depasits with banks

Loans and advances to banks and centralbanks

Loans and advances to cuslomers

Securities*

{Hher assels, nel

Off-balknee sheel tems (Commitments and Dervalives)

Toltal

LIABILITIES

Deposils from banks, central banks and otherloans
Due to ¢ustomers

Debl securilies issued

Other shon-term liabililes

Off-Balance sheel items (Cormmilmen(s and Derivalives)

Tolal

GAP (Assets - Liakilities)
Accumnloled GAP

Bulfer > 12 monihs

31.12.2013
is From6
7
Rigible Tpto? days From 7 days Frem 1 {03 From3 o6 months fo 1 More {han 1
amoennis (o | month monihs monthy YeAT
year
(In millign ¢l euro)
371 Ly - - - - -
1211 6617 209 10 162 47 453
41619 621 2075 1341 1681 2198 36200
21 455 231 382 1924 1110 1930 i5877
13882 705 . ] 4 123 982
2361 78 220 823 38 536 320
8660 1886 4760 3343 4834 53412
14921 1684 637 216 196 91 10322
39062 2559 376 7% 53 934 33 665
14 048 29 70 1551 2013 608 9776
1350 1310 i 26 2 11 el
10365 116 306 959 486 552 7946
5698 1642 4248 3231 3¢9 61947
1962 1244 512 112 L1815
2962 4206 4718 4830 6645
2127
31122012
s Feom 6
Higible From 7 days From1 {03 Prom 3 (a6 More 1han 1
Uplo7 days monihs do1
amounts tal month mouaihs months year year
{In million of eoro)
420 420 - - - - -
63381 5383 235 243 204 gl 35
46770 Lo44 1313 2161 1847 212 37163
21727 340 921 1983 79 1209 16390
1851 1829 - 5 1 - 16
5574 33 139 268 455 513 4386
9529 3108 4 660 3301 4635 58 490
16181 2097 537 7 479 718 11573
35632 857 960 Z244 7 171 30653
17289 184 561 2021 1069 488 12966
1635 1607 - 12 4 - 12
10192 320 201 417 624 520 3101
5074 2259 5411 2923 1957 63 308
4458 849 { 751) 18 2678
4 455 5304 455} 4931 T 609
700

* This caption includes securities held by the Group which can be rediscounted with the ECB for liquidily purposes

The table reflects the amounts of assets, labilities and off-balance sheet items with defined or determinate cash-
flows classified by the period to maturity. In the event that no maturity is defined (such as for deposits, overdrafls,
current accounts and commitments with third parties), the Group used a behaviour model based on historical
information, which reflects the expected maturity of the cash flows. For deposits with stated maturities, the Group
also used a behaviour inodel to estimate expected maturity.
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The one year cumulative gap went from euro 7 609 million in December 2012 to euro 6 645 million as of December
2013.

Additionally, and in accordance with Instruction 13/2009 of the Bank of Portugal, the liquidity gap is defined by the
indicator [(Net Assets - Volatile Liabilities) / (Assets - Net assets) * 100] on each residual cumulative maturity scale.
Net assets include cash and net securities and volatile liabilities include debt issued, conunitiments, derivatives and
other liabilities. This indicator allows a characterization of the wholesale risk of institutions.

As at 31 December 2013, the one year liquidity gap was -0.6, which compares to -3.1 from the same period last
year.

It may be noted that the above liquidity gap figures, caleulated in accordance with the determinations of Instruction
13/2009 of the Bank of Portugal, do not include the Group’s insurance companies, whose activity is regulated by the
Portuguese Insurance Institute.

Tn order to anticipate possible negative impacts to liquidity, ESFG considers different stress scenarios (imoderate and
severe) in terms of liquidity, different time frames and different types of impact (systemic, Group specific or
combined). For example, in the systemic scenario, closure of the wholesale markets is simulated, while in the
scenario specific to the Group, a run off of customer deposits from retail and non-retail is simulated, with different
levels of severity.

From 1 January 2014 is in force the CRD/CRR, under the Basel IIT framework. In what concerns Liquidity Risk, the
highlights are the mandatory requirements regarding the Liquidity Coverage Ratioc (LCR) and the Net Stable
Funding Ratio (NSFR). As at 31 December 2013, the Group had met the ratio the limit set for 2015 in what concerns
LCRA. In January the Bank of International Settlements published a document in connection with the NSFR
calculation review. The Group continues to follow every legislative change in order to comply with its regulatory
obligations.

Operational risk

Operational risk represents the risk of losses resulting from failures in internal procedures, people behaviours,
information systems and external events.

To manage operational risk, it was developed and implemented a system that sfandardises, systematises and
regulates the frequency of actions with an objective of identification, monitoring, controlling and mitigation of risk.
The system is supported at organizational level by a unit within the Global Risk Department of BES, exclusively
dedicated to this task, and by representatives designated by each of the relevant departments and subsidiaries.

Insurance risk

Insurance risk — inherent risk related to the selling of insurance contracts, underwriting policy, pricing, reserving,
claims management and reinsurance arrangements.

Pricing is based on actuarial methodologies, revised on a regular basis in order to ensure a rigorous policy
underwriting and risk acceptance.

Risks underwritten that require selective acceptance are analysed centrally. Evidence of the underwriting conditions
and identification of the decision maker are required.

The technical reserves, specifically the claims reserves, are analysed on a monthly basis. The adequacy of the

insurance liabilities is reviewed on a regular basis., Regarding the evaluation of reserves, new models are being
developed internally by the Group’s Insurance companies based on stochastic methodologies.
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(Amounis expressed in thousands of euro, except when indicated)

The table below reflects the claims reserves development, excluding pensioners arising out fromn workers

compensation claims:

Infiial eslimate of clins Babilities

Cunubiive payments
One year hater
Twa years laler
Three yearbaler
Fouryears ater
Five yearhler
Sinyears laler
Seven years [algr
Bght years ber
Nme years later
‘Ten years kter

Re=siimaled chims [nbifies
One yearkner
Twa years later
Three yearlater
Fouryears hater
Five yearbiler
Sixyears laler
Seven years blgr
Eight years tiler
Nme years later
Ten years later

CQumulative suphs/{deGeit)

2003

305512

106 724
149681
185 9456
213367
235135
250333
262243
269 575
27490
279 695

327363
4207
332408
331078
343335
agan
5316
41335
A28 545
312296

(16380

2004

324733

91174
M1 526
176 790
201 716
220093
233 849
243 757
230 265
255904

338836
234918
333196
3193
336647
323 690
327201
313 502
305 675

23058

2005

363 800

105 504
157627
191 998
212330
230853
24762
253229
261492

354407
356 147
s
A52070
3316
a3
319336
312892

3o s08

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
375015 384397 397996 395038 380242 360 863
L00 095 9871 25712 93241 100 636 90 181
145308 135925 129339 130042 129721 122 006
171 305 160955 131 131 130003 132241

192 108 177757 166 742 167 347
206 371 189 5463 180263
26254 231297
225131
366-H9 366 560 371201 352600 351804 317106
348138 9376 331652 27754 3228 274997
332.431 316083 neHT 204322 20947
kLR F) 31642 290304 272843
kN by 02 272225
295600 215312
2844072

90942 19045 1nsm 122292 100 771 35 866

{n thousands ol euro)

2012 2013
15377 305238
91 466

290 364

s5013

Longevity risk covers the uncertainty in the ultimate loss due to policyholders living longer than expected and can
arise for example, In annuity portfolios within the life Insurance and workmen’s compensation portfolios within

non-life insurance.

Longevity risk is managed through pricing, underwriting policy and by regularly reviewing the mortality tables used
for pricing and establishing reserves. Where longevity is found to be improving faster than assumed in the mortality
tables additional reserves are established and mortality tables are updated.

Any adjustments resulting from changes in reserves estimates are reflected in current results of operations. However,
because the establishment of claims reserves is an inherently uncertain process, there can be no assurance that
ultimate losses will not exceed existing claims reserves, and this risk is covered by the additional solvency capital.
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Regarding life line of business, the main actuarial assumptions defined in each contract, are as follows:

Mortality Table Technical rate
TRetirements savings plans and capilalizalion products
Up to December 1997 GKM 80 4%
From January 1998 to February 1999 GKM 80 3.25%
From July 1999 1o February 2003 GKM 80 ' 2.25% and 3%
Frem Mars 2003 (o December GKM 80 2.75%
Afler January 2004 GKM 80 Set percalendar year (*}
Insurance in case of life
Rents
Up to June 2002 TV 4%
From July 2002 to Decenber 2003 ™V 3%
FromJanuary 2004 to August 2006 CKF 95 3%
Afler January 2004 GKM - 3 years 2%
Other insurance
Insirance in case of death
Up to December 2004 GKM 80 4%
After January 2005 GKIvi 80 0% to 2%
Insurance mixed
Up to September 1998 GKM 80 4%
After Gelober 1998 GKM 80 %

(*) In 2013 the technical mte was 3% (2012: 2%)

For liability adequacy test purposes of the life business the mortality assumptions are based on best estimates
derived from portfolio experience investigations. Future cash flows are evaluated and discounted at government
bonds rate.

The main mortality assumptions are as follows:

Mortality Table
Annuities GRM 95
Savings and other contracts 30% GKM 80

For liability adequacy test purposes, the calculation of the present value of Workmen’s Compensation mathematical
reserves was performed with the mortality table TV 73/77 (2012: TV 73/77) and risk free rate.
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(Amonnts expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

The maximum risk exposure per event after reinsurance and after deductibles per segment and produet line is

summarised below:

Line of business

Type of reinsnrance

Net retention

Maximum treaty liability

Persenal Accident (Credit Protection)
Personal Accident

Workers Compensation

Motor - Third Party Legal Liability
Motor - Own Damage

Bonds - Bonds

Boads - Fidelity

Engineering

Fire /M Risk/Lop (Simple Risks)

Fire /M Risk/Lop(Condominium)

Fire /M. Risk/Lop(Comm&hidust Risks)
Fire /M Risk/Lop - Cat Cover

Fire /M Risk/Lop - XOL Cover

Fire /M Risk/Lop - XOL Aggregate Cover
Property Stop Loss

General Third Party Liability
Environmental Liability

Director'S Liability Art 396

Marine Hull

Marine Hull- Fleets

Marine Cargo

Marine Cargo & Hull - Xol Cover
Health — Dread Tliness

Heailh — Medical Expenses
Assistence

Lifc - Mortgage

Life - Group

Life - Individual Credit
Life - Morngage 2.0
Life - Natural Disasters
Life - Working Cover
Life - Credit Protection
Life - Assistence

Capital Management and Solvency Rafio

Quota Share
Excess OfLoss
Excess OfLoss
Excess OfLoss
Bxcess OfLoss

Quota Share

Cuota Share

Proportional

Proportional

Proportional

Proportional
Excess Of Loss
Excess OfLoss
Excess OfLoss
Excess Of Loss
Excess OfLoss

Quota Share

Quota Share

Proportional

Proportional

Proportional
Excess Of Loss

Quota Share
Excess OfLoss

Quota Share

Proportional
Proportional
Proportional
Proportional
BExcess OfLoss
BExcess OfLoss
Quota Share
Quota Share

(in thousands of euro)

300
500
1000
1000
20%
20%
1250
1600
1000
1000
15000
2000
250 AAL 1000
105% of NEP
150
20%%
20%
250
325
200
400
20%
25

757100
757100
757100
100
1000
100

100%
14700
39 500
49 000
14 0600

400
200
13750
20000
35 000
40000
165 060

8000

1750

7500

4850

250
250

5000

6500

4 600

3500

80%
325
100%

1600
1600
1600
1000

10 000 per disaster

1 500 perevent
100%
100%

The main goals of capital management are (i) to allow adequate growth of activities through the generation of
enough capital to support the increase of assets, (ii) fulfilment of the minimum capital adequacy requirements as
defined by the supervisory authorities and (jii) to ensure the fulfilment of the Group’s strategic goals with respect to

capital adequacy.

The strategy for capital adequacy management is deterimined by the Executive Committee and is integrated into the

strategic goals of the Group.

The capital metrics are incorporated in the main management control instruments and monitoring is undertaken

frequently, thus permitting a quick response to fulfil the defined geals.
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The Group is subject to prudential supervision by the Bank of Portugal which, in accordance with the Capital
Adequacy Directive of the EU, establishes the prudential rules to be observed by the institutions under its
supervision. These rules determine a minimum ratio of Own funds to Capital requiremnents of risks assumed, which
institations are required to fulfill.

Within the implementation of the Basel 11 capital accord and in accordance with Decree-Law 103/2007 and Decree-
Law 104/2007, the Group was authorized to employ, as from 31 March 2009, the Internal Rating Based Foundation
Approach — IRBF for credit risk and the Standardized Approach — TSA for operational risk.

The capital elements of ESFG are divided into: Core Tier I, Tier I, Tier IT and Deductions, as follows:

e Core Tier I: This category includes share capital, share premiums, eligible reserves, the certified net profit to be
retained for the year and non-controlling interests. The fair value reserves are excluded except for deduction of
negative fair value reserves associated with shares or other equity instruments; additionally, deductible from
Core Tier I are the balance sheet amounts referring to goodwill, intangible assets, actuarial losses (above the
prudential corredor) arising from responsibilities for post-employment benefits to employees and, where
applicable, the net loss for the period. Excess Large exposures above a base amount set by the Bank of Portugal
are also deducted.

e TierI: In addition to the amounts considered as Core Tier I, this category includes preference shares and hybrid
capital instruments. Alternatively, half of: (i) investments of above 10% of the capital of financial and
insurance institutions; (2) investments of below 10% of the capital of financial and insurance institutions above
a given limit; and the difference between the expected loss calculated on exposures subject to IRBF treatment
and the corresponding loss provisions, are deducted from Tier L.

o Tier II: Essentially incorporates the eligible subordinated debt and 45% of the positive fair value reserve
associated with equity securities. The other half of the amounts deducted 50% from Tier I are deducted from
Tier II.

¢ Deductions: The base amount of excess Large exposures are deducted here as well as prudential amortization of
assets received in the recovery of non-performing loans.

The prudential rules deterinine, additionally, that the Tier II cannot exceed Tier T and that a component of Tier II
(kniown as Lower Tier 1) cannot exceed 50% of overall Tier II.

In December 2008, the Bank of Portugal issued Notice 11/2008 which established a transition period of four years,
from December 2009 to December 2012, for the recognition of the actuarial gains/losses deterinined in 2008. This
transifion period ended in Deceinber 2012.

In May 2011 and in the context of the negotiation of the Financial Assistance Programme to Portugal — with the
European Commission, the European Central Bank and the International Monetary Fund — the Bank of Portugal
issued Naotice 3/2011, establishing new minimum levels of solvency to be observed by financial groups subject to its
supervision. It deterinined that Portuguese credit institutions reach a Core Tier I ratio of no less than 9% by 31
December 2011 and 10% by 31 December 2012,

At the same time, the European Banking Authority (EBA), using somewhat different criteria for Own funds and
Capital requirements determined that European banks must reach a Core Tier I ratio of 9% by 30 June 2012,
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As at 2013 and 2012, the main movements occurred in Basic Own Funds (Tier 1) are as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

{in million of curo)

Balance at beginning of the year 6594 5732

Capilal increase (n 489
Increase/{decrease)} in non-controlling interest { 235) 596
Retained profit/(loss) for the year ( 864 315
Changes on acluarial Josses (95 ( 526)
Goodwill 116 ( 296)
Recognition of the impact oFadopting IFRS {7 ( 12)
Variation of preference shares recognised as Tier [ ( 39 (37
Exchange of hybrid instramets - -
Unrecognised losses on financial instruments (20 186
Invesiments in banking and insurance entities (7 ( 119
Risks deducted frombasic own funds ‘ 67 299
Other effects 49 { 33)
Balance at end of the year 5484 6594
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The capital adequacy of ESFG Group as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 is presented as follows:

31.12.2013 31.12.2012

{in million of curo)
A - Capital Requirements

Share Capital, Issue Premiumand Treasury Stock 1768 1753
Net Income, Legal and Statutory Reserves, and Refained Eamings { 596) 265
Non-controlling interest 5013 5326
Intangible Assels, actuarial losses, goodwill and other { 598) { 696}
Risks deducted from basic own funds - ( 67
Al - Basic own funds excluding preference shares (Core Tier Iy (A1) 5587 6581
Preference Shates 244 282
Deductions of invesiments in Financial institutions, insurance companies aud others { 347) { 269
A2 - Basic own funds (Tier ) (A2) 5 484 6 594
Posilive Fair Value Reserves and Others (45%) 162 48
Eligible Subordinated Debt 1380 1158
Deductions of investments in Financial institutions, insurance companies and others { 347 ( 269)
Complementary own lunds (Tier If) 1195 937
Deductions { 84) (7D
Hegilie own funds (A3) - 6595 7 460

B Risk Assct Equivalents (Basel I - Standard)

Calculated according Notice 05/2007 (Credit Porifolio) 55 891 59634
Calculated according Notice 82007 (Trading Portfolio) 1209 1 548
Caleulated according Notice 9/2007 (Operational Risk) 3503 3881
Total Risk Assef Bquivalent (B2) 60 603 65063

C Prudential Ratios Basel II

Ratio Core Tier 1 {Al/DB2) 9.2% 10.1%
Ratio Tier 1 (A2/B2) 9.0% 10.1%
Solwency Ratio (A3 /B2) 10.9% 11.5%

As at 31 December 2013 the Core Tier 1 ratio was 9.2% (31 December 2012: 10.1%).

In order to comply with the minimum defined by the Bank of Portugal under Basel 11 rules, applicable as of 31
December 2013, ESFG is currently putting in place a plan which will allow achieving a Core Tier I ratio of at least
10%. This plan in being discussed with the Bank of Portugal and is in an advance stage, being expected to start its
execution during the first semester of 2014,

Under BIS IIT (CRD TV/CRR) which will be in force as from 1 January 2014, the Common Equity Tier I ratio,

employing the transitional provisions, is 8.5%, or 8.8% considering the waiver of Article 84 (§) and the eligibility of
the minority interests in BESPAR. This resul is above the Bank of Portugal’s requirement {ininilmum of 7.0%).

F-167



ESPiRITO SANTO FINANCIAL GROUP S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 AND 2012 - (Continued)
(Amaounits expressed in thousands of enro, except when indicated)

Plans Financing and capitalization (2011 - 2013)

Following the signing of the Memorandum of Economic and Financial Policies, the Portuguese Government and the
European Commission {EC), European Ceniral Bank (ECB) and International Monetary Fund (IMF), Portuguese
banks, and financial holding companies that consolidate Portuguese banking subsidiaries, have had to develop,
quarterly, financing and capital plans for the period from 2011 to 2015, in order to demonstrate the achievement of
the following objectives:

¢ The loan to deposit ratio should, preferably, be reduced to a maximum value of 120% as from December
2014;

The stable funding ratio should be 100% as from Deceinber 2014;

The Core Tier I ratio must be at least 9% as of 31 December 2011 and 10% as of 31 Decenber 2012, as
established in Notice 3/2011 of Bank of Portugal.

Additionally, the dependence of their branches and subsidiaries abroad on domestic Portuguese funding should be
minimized; the institutions must reduce their dependence on funding from the ECB; and they should develop
policies to support sectors of the Portuguese economy, namely small and medium enterprises. The financing and
capital plans should consider moderate access to short-term markets and a gradual opening of medium and long term
martkets from the fourth quarter of 2013.

In order to prepare the plans, projections of relevant domestic macroeconomic variables, of GDP growth in the
geographic areas of greatest relevance to the activities of the banks and further projections of interest rates and other
parameters necessary for drawing up the plans were provided by the Bank of Portugal after consultation with the
EC/ECB/IMF. Together with the plan for the period in reference, a siress test exercise is required, where the banks
should, in an exireme scenario, present a Core Tier [ ratio higher than 6% during the period (2011-2015).
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NOTE 54 - CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

Securitization lransactions

Tollowing the downgrade by Moody’s of the Portuguese Republic in February 2012, this agency set the maximum
rating attributable to bonds issued in securitized operations as Baal. Consequently, the operation of securitization of
small and medium enterprises pul together by BES in December 2010 — Lusitano SME No.2 — lost its eligibility as
collateral for rediscounting at ECB and as a result BES chose to exercise its call option on 23 March 2012.

Coniract Support Annex (CS4)

BES has a set of contracts negotiated with counterparties with whom it deals in derivative in the OTC market. CSA
takes the form of a collateral agreement established between two parties nepotiating derivatives with each other on
this market, with the main objective to provide protection against credit risk, establishing for that purpose a set of
rules regarding collateral. Derivatives (ransactions are regulated by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association (ISDA) and have minimum margin requirements that may change according to the rating of the parties.

NOTES55- TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST AND CHANGES IN THE
SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

Transactions with non-controlling interest

As explained in Note 1, during the year ended 31 Deceinber 2012, the Group entered into several transactions with
non-controlling interest, the most significant being the transactions with non-controlling of BES, namely the net
acquisition of an additional interest of 0.86% through the acquisition in the market of 29 510 581 shares.

These transactions were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.2 as
transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders. Therefore, the difference between the net
consideration paid and the non-controlling interest acquired, in the amount of euro 45 628 thousand as detailed
below, was recognised in equity.

The balance of the components of other comprehensive income, namely the fair value reserve and foreign exchange
differences were reallocated in order to reflect the new percentage held.

The impact of these transactions with the non-controlling interest occurred in 2012 is as follows:

30122012
(in thousands of euro)

Net consideration paid 17 525

Consideration paid by non-controiling interest (1191)
Net consideration paid attributable to ESFG 16 334
Non-controling interest acquired 58 498
42 164

Reallocation of compenents of other comprehensive income

Fair value reserve 6247
Exchange diferences 34
Gain recognised in equity resulfing from (ransactions with BES non-controlling interest 48 445

Other iransactions with non-controlling interest (2817)
Gain recognised in equity resulting from transactions with non-controlling interest 45 628

—_——
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The transaction with non-controlling occurred in 2013 did not have a significant impact in the Group’s consclidated
financial statements.

Loss of conirol over subsidiaries occurred in 2012
Pastor Vida

As referred in Note 32, in the first semester of 2012, Banco Popular acquired a controlling interest on Banco Pastor,
the [egal merger between these two entities having taken place on 5 July 2012,

The change in control of Banco Pastor had a significant impact in the implementation of Group’s strategy regarding

Pastor Vida and therefore in the second quarter of 2012, the Group took the decision, as permitted within the
shareholders agreement established between Tranquilidade and Banco Pastor, to exercise its option to put Pastor
Vida shares back to Banco Pastor. The sale was completed during the second semester of 2012. Therefore, the
related goodwill and value in force, amounting to euro 23.1 million and euro 57.9 million, respectively, were
derecognised.

The impact of the loss of control over Pastor Vida in ESFG consolidated financial statements as at 31 December
2012 can be analysed as follows:

31.12.2012

(in thousands of curo)

Net consideration received 40072
Pastor Vida net equity at the date ofthe loss of controi (1) 13711 (D
Pastor Vida net equity at the date of the loss of control attributable to BSFG 51,856
Pastor Vida goodwill 23110
Deferred and contingent consideration recognised ] (46 100)
Pastor Vida 28 866

Gain on the loss of cantral of Pastor Vida recognised in the income statement 11206

{1} includes value in force amounting to 57.9 million
ES Snide

As referred in Note 32, in November 2012 (i) Rio Forte Investments, S.A. (Rio Forte) acquired an additional 19.5%
stake in ES Saide, becoming to have a 44.5% sharcholding in this company; (i) ESFG and Rio Forte signed a
shareholders’ agreement under which Rio Forte assumes control over ES Saiide governing bodies; and (jii} Rio
Forte acquired from ESFG a call option, currently exercisable up to May 2013, over 5.5% of ES Saide sharccapital
plus 1 share, giving Rio Forte the current ability to exercise control over the majority of the voting rights of ES
Satde.

As a result of the loss of control over ES Saiide in 2012, this entity is no longer fully consolidated by ESFG and is
included in its consolidated financial statements following the equity method (see Note 33).
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In accordance with paragraph 34 of IAS 27 and with the accounting policy described in Note 2.2, the non-
controlling interest retained by ESFG in ES Saude following the loss of control, was remeasured to fair value and
the resulting gain was recognised in the income statement as follows:

_31.12.2012

(in thousaads of curo)

Retained interest in ES Sande 43%
Estimated fair value of ES Satide at the time control was lost 268795
Attributable to ESFG 115313
Book value of ES Satide at the time control was lost
ES Saude net equity at the date ofthe loss of control 128 160
Attributable to ESFG 54 981
Gain on the Ioss of control of ES Saitde recognised in the income statement (1) 60 332
Alttributable to ESFG 45 007
Attributable to non-controlling interest 15325
60 332

{1) arising from the remeasurement of the retained non-controlling inlerest

The fair value of ES Saiide at the time the control was lost, was estimated based on the transaction price between
Rio Forte and third parties occurred in November 2012, as it was considered as a recent comparable transaction.
Notwithstanding, this fair value was back tested, ESFG having prepared a valuation report based on a Discounted
Cash Flow methodology using the financial budget approved by management, an Weighted Average Cost of Capital
(WACC) between 9.0% and 9.3% and a terminal growih rate of 2%.

Following paragraph 37 of IAS 27, the fair value of the non-controlling interest retained by ESFG in ES Satde, was
assumed as the cost on initial recognition of the investment in this associate for the purposes of the initial application
of the equity method in accordance with TAS 28.

Business combinations occurred in 2012
Aequisition of BES Vida

Until 30 April 2012, BES held a 50% interest in BES Vida, Companhia de Seguros, S.A. (BES Vida), a life
insurance company, which distributes its products in Portugal and Spain, through BES branch neiwork. Crédit
Agricole owned the remaining 50 % and controlled its activities.

As referred in Note 1, in May 2012, BES acquired, from Credit Agricole, the remaining 50% of the share capital of
BES Vida with the objective of leveraging the marketing of BES Vida’s insurance products.

Following this acquisition, BES became to hold the entire share capital of BES Vida and has the management
control over its activities, Therefore, BES Vida, which qualified as an associate and was included in the consolidated
financial statements of BES following the equity method, has become a subsidiary and is being fully consolidated
since May 2011,

The total investment amounted to euro 225 million euro, paid in cash.
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This transaction was accounted for in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 42 of IFRS 3 related with
business combination achieved in stages, which requires any previously held equify interest in the acquire, to be
remeasuted to fair value at the acquisition date and the resuiting gain or loss to be recognised in the income

statement. The amounts recognised in the fair value reserve up to the date in which control in acquired, are required
to be recycled to the income statement.
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As at 1 May 2012, the balance sheet of BES Vida included in the BES Group consolidated financial stateisents can
be analysed as follows:

(in thousand of
curo)
Assets
Cash and deposits with banks 198 648
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2759 100
Available-for-sale financial assets 1917328
Held-to-maturity investments 159551
Property and equipment 93 864
Intangible assets 76 641
Technical reserves of reinsurance ceded 2512
Income taxasscts 112
Other assets 178 712
5386 468
Liabilities
Technical reserves 1880 631
Investment contracts 3053344
Other financial [iabilitics 194 434
Tncome tax liabilitics 2342
Other liabilities 40291
5171 042
Equity
Share Capital 50 000
Other reserves and retained eamings 165 426
215 426
5386 468

The fair value of recognised identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed include, under Tutangible assets, the
amount of euro 107 768 thousand related to the present value of the business in force acquired related to life
insurance confracts (Value in Force) (euro 76 515 thousand net of taxes). This asset will be amortised over the
remaining lifetime of the contracts.

It should be mentioned, however, that following the reinsurance treaty signed in 2013 by BES Vida, described in
Note 32, the net amount of euro 137 476 thousand in relation to the value in force acquired was derecognised,
having the remaining amount, been recognised under Other liabilities.
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The goodwill recognised as a result of this acquisition amounts to curo 234 574 thousand, as follows:

(in thousand of

% euro)

Goodwill as the excess of:
Consideration transferred 225000
Acquisition date fair value of'the 50% interest previously hekd in BES Vida 225000

450 000
Over:
Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired (1) 100 215426
Goodwill determined on a provisional basis 234 574

{1} meusured on a provisional basis
The goodwill is attributable mainly to the potential growth of the market where BES Vida operates.

The impact in the 2012 income statement of measuring at fair value the previously held equity interest in BES Vida,

representing 50% of its share capital, following the requirements of paragraph 42 of IFRS 3, can be analysed as
folows:

(in thousand of

euro)

50% interest previously held in BES Vida

Fair value 225 000

Book value 66 931
Loss on remeasurement of the previously heldin Bes Vida 158 069
Recognition in the income statement of the accumulated fair value reserve

of BES Vida appropiiated on the acquisition of control in Bes Vida ( 70 796)

Loss arising from the acquisition of control in BES Vida 87273

(1) Amount before non conlroling interest. After non controlling interest the fair value recycled to the income statement
amownt to ewra 19.8 miilion.

The profit of BES Vida from the acquisition date to 31 December 2012 included in the profit for the year
attributable to the equity holders of the Company, amounts to euro 32.8 million. If BES Vida had been consolidated
from 1 January 2012, the profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company would have increased
by euro 0.7 million.
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NOTE 56 - RECENTLY ISSUED PRONOUNCEMENTS
56.1 Recently issued pronowncements already adopted by the Group

In the preparation of the consolidated financial stateinents for the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group adopted
the following standards and interpretations that are effective since 1 January 2013:

IAS 19 Revised — Employee Benefils

In 2013, the Group adopted the amendments to “IAS 19 — Employee Benefits” issued in 2011 and effective {with
retrospective application) for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2013. Those amendments were
endorsed by European Commission Regulation 475/2012, 5th June. The amendments to TAS 19, included the
elimination of the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected retums on plan assets.

The Group made a voluntary change in the accounting police related te actuarial gains and losses arising from its
post employment benefits which from 2011 are charged to equity, under other comprehensive income, therefore the
adoption of IAS 19 (revised) had no impact in the Group’s financial statements in what concerns the recognition of
actuarial gains and losses.

However, as a result of IAS 19 (2011), the Group has changed its accounting policy with respect to the basis for
determining the income or expense related to defined benefit. Under IAS 19 (2011), the Group determines the net
interest expense (income) for the period on the net defined benefit liability (asset) by applying the discount rate used
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability
(asset) at the beginning of the annual period. Conseguently, the net interest expense (income) includes interest cost
on the defined benefit obligation net of a theoretical return on the plan assets, both calculated using the discount rate
applied in the determination of the defined benefit obligation (see Note 14).

Previously, the Group determined interest income on plan assets based on their long-term rate of expected return,

IERS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

[FRS 13 establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making disclosures about fair value
measurements, when such measurements are required or permitted by other TFRSs, In particular, it unifies the
definition of fair value as the price at which an orderly transaction to sell an asset or to transfer a liability would take
place between market participants at the measurement date.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Group has applied the new fair value measurement
guidance prospectively. The methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial assets and
liabilities are disclosed in Note 52.

Notwithstanding the above, the change had no significant impact on the measurement of the Group's assets and
liabilities, once the major change in the calculation of the fair value was the inclusion of the credit value adjustinents
(CVA) and debit value adjustments (DV A), which had no significant impact in the valuation of derivatives.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of items of other comprehensive income
As a result of the amendments to IAS 1, the Group has modified the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income in its consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, fo present separately iteins that would be

reclassified to profit or loss in the future from those that would never be. Comparative information has also been re-
presented accordingly.
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The adoption of the amendment to IAS 1 has no impact on the recognised assets, liabilities and comprehensive
income of the Group.

IFRS 7 (Amended) - Financial Instruments: Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assels and Financial Liabifities

The IASB, issued on 16th December 2011, amendments to “IFRS 7 — Financial Instruinents: Disclosure — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”, effective (with retrospective application) for annual periods beginning
on or after st January 2013. Those amendments were endorsed by EU Commission Regulation 1256/2012,.11th
December.

These amendments required an entity to disclose information about what amounts have been offset in the statement
of financial position and the nature and extend of rights to set-off and related arrangements (e.g. collateral
arrangements).

The new disclosures are required for all recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply to recognised financial instruments that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, itrespective of whether they are set off in
accordance with [AS 32.

The adoption of the amendment o TFRS 7 had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to IFRS (2009-2011)

The annual improvements cycle 2009-2011, issued by IASB on 17th May 2012, introduce amendments, with
effective date on, or after, 1st January 2013, to the standards IFRS1, IAS1, 1AS16, IAS32, IAS34 and [FRIC2.

IAS I Presentation of Financial Stafements
This improvement clarifies the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and the minimum
required comparative information. Generally, the minimum required comparative information is the previous period.

TAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment
This improvement clarifies that major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant
and equipinent are not inventory

IAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation and IFRIC 2
The improvement clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are accounted for in
accordance with JAS 12 Tncome Taxes, avoid any interpretation that may mean any either application.

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments align the disclosure requirement for total segment assets with total segment liabilities in interim
financial statements. This clarification also ensures that interim disclosures are aligned with annual disclosures in
relation to the changes of profit and loss account and other comprehensive income.

The adoption of these improveiments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 20 - Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

The Tnternational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), issued on 19th October 2011, “IFRIC 20 -
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine”, effective (with retrospective application) for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January 2013. Those amendments were endorsed by EU Commission Regulation
1255/2012, 11th December.
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Give the nature of the Group’s operation, this interpretation did not have any impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

56.2  The Group decided to opt for nof having an early application of the following standards endorsed by EU
but not yet mandatory effective

The new standards and interpretations that have been issued, but that are not yet effective and that the Group has not
yet applied, are analysed below. The Group will apply these standards when they are effective.

1AS 32 (Amended) - Financial Instrumenis: Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The IASB, issued on 16th December 2011, amendments to “IAS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”, effective (with retrospective application) for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2014. Those amendinents were endorsed by EU Commission Regulation
1256/2012, 11th December.

The TASB amended TAS 32 to add application guidance to address the inconsistent application of the standard in
practice. The application guidance clarifies that the phrase ‘currently has a legal enforceable right of set-off® means
that the right of set-off must nof be contingent on a future event and must be legally enforceable in the nornal
course of business, in the event of default and in the event of insolvency or bankruptey, of the entity and all of the
counferpariies.

The application guidance also specifies the characteristics of gross settlement systems in order to be considered
equivalent to net settlement.

The Group is not expecting a significant impact from the adoption of the amendment to IAS 32.

148 27 (Revised) — Separate Financial Statemenis

The TASB, issued on 12th May 2011, amendments to “IAS 27 — Separate Financial Statements”, effective (with
prospective application) for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2014. Those amendments were
endorsed by EU Commission Regulation 1254/2012, 11th December.

Taking in consideration that IFRS 10 addresses the principles of controls and the requireinents relating to the
preparation of consolidated financial statements, TAS 27 was amended to cover exclusively separate financial
statements.

The amendments aimed, on one hand, to clarify the disclosures required by an entity preparing separate financial
stateinents so that the entity would be required to disclose the principal place of business (and country of
incorporation, if different) of significant investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and, if applicable,
of the parent.

The previous versicn required the disclosure of the country of incorporation or residence of such entities.

On the other hand, it was aligned the effective dates for all consolidated standards (IFRS10, IFRS11, IFRS12,
TFRS13 and amendments to TAS 28).

The Group expects no impact from the adoption of this amendment on its financial statements.
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IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

The TASB, issued on 12th May 2011, “IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statemnents”, effective (with retrospective
application) for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2013. These amendments were endorsed by EU
Comrnission Regulation 1254/2012, 11th December, which allows a delayed on mandatory application for 1st
January 2014.

IFRS 10, withdraw one part of TAS 27 and SIC 12, and introduces a single control model to determine whether an
investee should be consolidated.

The new concept of control involves the assessment of power, exposure to variability in returns and a linkage
between the two. An investment controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variability returns from its
involvement with the investee and is able to affect those returns through its power over the investee (facto control).

The investor considers whether it controls the relevant activities of the investee, taking into consideration the new
concept. The assessment should be done at each reporting period because the relation between power and exposure
variability in returns may change over the time.

Contral is usually assessed over a legal entity, but also can be assessed over only specified assets and liabilities of an
investee (referred to as silo).

The new standard also introduce other changes such as: i) accounting requirements for subsidiaries in consolidation
financial statements are carried forward from IAS 27 to this new standards and ii) enhanced disclosures are requires,
including specific disclosures for consolidated and unconsolidated structured entities.

The Group has not carried out a thorough analysis of the impacts of the application of this standard. Given the
introduction of a new control model the Group may need to change its consolidation conclusion in respect of its
investees.

IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements

The TASB, issued on 12th May 2011, “IFRS 11 Joint arrangements”, effective (with retrospective application) for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2013. These amendments were endorsed by EU Commission
Regulation 1254/2012, 11th December, that allows a delayed on mandatory application for 1st January 2014.

IFRS 11, withdraw IAS 31 and SIC 13, defines “joint control” by incorporating the same control model as defined in
IERS 10 and requires an entity that is part of a “join arrangement™ to determine the nature of the joint arrangement
(“joint operations™ or “joint ventures*) by assessing its rights and obligations.

IFRS 11 removes the option to account for joint ventures using the proportionate consolidation. Instead, joint
arrangements that meet the definition of *joint venture” must be account for using the equity method (IAS 28).

The Group expects no impact form the adoption of this amendment on its financial statements.

1AS 28 (Revised) — Investments in Associafes and Joint Ventures

The IASB, issued on 12th May 2011, “IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, effective (with
retrospective application) for annual periods beginning on or afler 1st January 2013. These amendments were
endorsed by EU Commission Regulation 1254/2012, 11th December, which allows a delay on mandatory
application to 1st January 2014,
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As a consequence of the new 1FRS 11 and TFRS 12, TAS 28 has been renamed as IAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint ventures, and describes the application of the entity method to investments in joint ventures and associates.

The Group expects no impact form the adoption of this amendment on its financial statements.

IFRS 12 — Disclosures of Interest in Other Entities

The TASB, issued on 12th May 2011, “IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities”, effective (with
retrospective application) for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2013. These amendments were
endorsed by EU Commission Regulation 1254/2012, 11th December, that allows a delayed on mandatory
application for 1st January 2014,

The objective of this new standard is to require an entity to disclose information that enables users of its financial
statements to evaluate: () the nature of, and risks associated with, its interests in other entities; and (b) the effects of
those interests on its financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

IFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities, including joint
arrangements, associates, special vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles.

The Group is yet assessing the full impact of the new IFRS 12 in line with the adoption of TFRS 10 and I[FRS 11.

Investment Entities — Amendements fo IFRS 10, IFRS12 and JAS 8 (issued by IASB on 31st October 20112)

The amendments apply to a particular class of business that qualify as investment entities. The TASB uses the term
‘investment entity’ to refer to an entity whose business purpose is to invest funds solely for retumns from capital
appreciation, investment income or both. An investment entity must also evaluate the performance of its investments
on a fair value basis. Such entities could include private equity organisations, venture capital organisations, pension
funds, sovereign wealth funds and other investment funds.

The amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirements in IFRS 10 and require investment entities
to measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss, rather than consolidate them. The amendments
also set out disclosure requirements for investment entities.

The amendments are effective from 1 January 2014 with early adoption permitted. This option allows investment
entities to apply the Investment Entities amendinents at the same time they first apply the rest of IFRS 10,

The Group does not expect any major impact from the adoption of this amendment on its financial statements.

IAS 36 (Revised) — Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assels

The TASB issued on 29th May 2013, this amendment, effective (with retrospective application) for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2014. These amendments were endorsed by EU Commission Regulation
1374/2013, 19th December.

The objective of the amendmenis is to clarify that the scope of the disclosures of information about the recoverable
amount of assets, where that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal, is limited to impaired assets.
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IAS 39 (Revised) — Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The IASB issued on 27th June 2013, this amendment, effective (with retrospective application) for annual periods
beginning on or after st January 2014, These amendments were endorsed by EU Commission Regulation
1375/2013, 19th December.

The objective of the amendments is to provide relief in situations where a derivative, which has been designated as a
hedging instrument, is novated from one counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or
regulations, Such a relief means that hedge accounting can continue irrespective of the novation which, without the
amendment, would not be permitted.

56.3  Recently Issued pronouncements that are nol yet effective for the Group
IAS 19 (Revised) — Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

The TASB issued on 21th November 2013, this amendment, effective (with retrospective application) for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st July 2014,

The Amendment clarifies the guidance on attributing employee or third party contributions linked to service and
require entities to attribute the contributions linked to service in accordance with paragraph 70 of IAS 19 (2011).
Therefore, such contributions are attributed using plan’s contribution formula or on a straight line basis.

The amendment addresses the complexity by introducing a practical expedient that allows an entity to recognise
employee or third party contributions linked to service that are independent of the number of years of service (for
example a fixed percentage of salary), as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the related service is
rendered.

IFRIC 21 Levies

The TASB issued on 20th May 2013, this interprelation, effective (with retrospective application) for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2014.

IFRIC 21 defines a levy as an outflow from an entity imposed by a government in accordance with legislation. It
confirms that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when —and only when — the triggering event specified in the
legislation occurs. IFRIC 21 is not expected to have any effect on the Group’s financial statements.

Improvements to IFRS (2010-2012)

The annual improvements cycle 2010-2012, issued by IASB on 12th December 2013, introduce amendments, with
effective date on, or after, st July 2014, to the standards IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 13, TAS16, TAS24 and
TAS38.

IFRS 2 — definition of vesting condition

The amendment clarify the definition of ‘vesting conditions' in Appendix A of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment by
separate the definition of performance condition and service condition from the definition of vesting condition to
make the description of each condition clear.

IFRS 3 — Accounting for contingen! consideration in a business combination

The objective of this amendment is to clarify cetfain aspects of accounting for conlingent consideration in a business
combination, namely: classification of contingent consideration in a business combination and subsequent
measurement, taking into account if such contingent consideration is a financial instrument or a non-financial asset
or liability.
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IFRS 8 — Aggregation of operation segments and reconcifiation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to
enlity's assels

The amendment clarify the criteria for aggregation of operating segmments and requires entities to disclose those
factors that are used to identify the entity’s reportable segments when operating segments have been aggregated.

To achieve consistency, reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity's assets should be
disclosed, if that amount is regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker,

IFRS 13 — Shori-term receivables and payables

EASB amends the basis of conclusion in order to clarify that, by deleting JAS 39AG79, in applying IFRS 3, IASB
did not intend to change the measureinent requirements for short-term receivables and payables with no interest, that
should be discount if such discount is material, noting that TAS 8.8 already permits entities not apply accounting
polices set out in accordance with IFRSs when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

IAS 16 & IAS 38 — Revaluation method — proportionate restatement accumulated depreciation or amorfizafion
In order to clarify the calculation of the accumulated depreciation or amortization at the date of the revaluation,
IASB amended paragraph 35 of TAS 16 and paragraph 80 of IAS 38 to clarify that:
a) the determination of the accumulated depreciation (or amortization) does not depend on the selection of the
valuation technique; and
b} the accumulated depreciation (or amortization) is calculated as the difference between the gross and the net
carrying amounts.

148 24 — Related Party Transactions — Key management personal services

In order to address the concems about the identification of key management personal (KMP) costs, when KMP
services of the reporting entity are provided by entities (management entity e.g. in mutual funds), FASB clarifies
that, the disclosure of the amounts incurred by the entity for the provision of KMP services that are provided by a
separate management entity shall be disclosed but it is not necessary to present the information required in
paragraph 17.

Improvements to IFRS (2011-2013)

The annual improvements ¢ycle 2011-2013, issued by TASB on 12th December 2013, introduce amendments, with
effective date on, or after, 1st July 2014, to the standards IFRS [, TFRS 3, IFRS 13 and IAS 40.

IFRS 1—meaning of “effective IFRS"”
IASR clarifies that if 2 new IFRS is not yet mandatory but permits early application, that IFRS is permitted, but not
required, to be applied in the entity’s first IFRS financial statements.

IFRS 3 — Scope exceptions for joint veniures

The amendment excludes the formation of all types of joint arrangements as defined in IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
from the scope of IFRS 3. The scope exception only applies to the financial statements of the joint venture or the
joint operation itself.

IFRS 13 — Scope of paragraph 52 — portfolio exception

Paragraph 52 of IFRS 13 includes a scope exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and
financial liabilities on a net basis. This is referred to as the portfolio exception. The objective of this amendment was
to clarify that the portfolio exception applies to all contracts within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, regardless of whether they meet the definitions of
financial assets or financial liabilities as defined in IAS 32 Financial Instrurments: Presentation.

148 40— interrelationship with IFRS 3 when classify property as investment properiy or owner-occupied property
The objective of this amendment was to clarify that judgment is needed to determine whether the acquisition of
investment property is the acquisition of an asset, a group of assets or a business corbination in the scope of IFRS 3
and that this judgment is based on the guidance in IFRS 3.
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IFRS 9 Financial instruments (issued in 2009 and revised in 201()

IFRS 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9
(2010) introduces additions relating to financial liabilities. IFRS 9 (2013) introduces the hedging requirements, The
LASB currently has an active project of additional disclosures requirements liinited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 and new requirements to address the impairment of financial assets.

The TFRS 9 (2009) requirements represent a significant change from the existing requirements in IAS 39 in respect
of financial assets. The standard contains two primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost
and fair value. A financial asset would be measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal oulstanding. All other
financial asscts would be measured at fair value. The standard eliminates the existing IAS 39 categories of held-to-
maturity, available-for-sale and loans and receivables.

For an investment in an equity instrument that is not held for frading, the standard permits an irrevocable election,
on initial recognition, on an individual share-by-share basis, to present all fair value changes from the investment in
OCI. No amount recognised in OCI would ever be reclassified to profit or loss at & later date. However, dividends on
such investments would be recognised in profit or loss, rather than OCI, unless they clearly represent a partial
recovery of the cost of the investment.

Investments in equity instruments in respect of which an entity does not elect to present fair value changes in OCI
would be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The standard requires derivatives embedded in contracts with a host that is a financial asset in the scope of the
standard not to be separated; instead, the hybrid financial instrument is assessed in its entirety for whether it should
be measured at amortised cost or fair value.

IFRS 9 (2010) introduces a new requirement in respect of financial liabilities designated under the fair value option
to generally present fair value changes that are attributable to the liability’s credit risk in OCI rather than in profit or
loss. Apart from this change, IFRS 9 (2010) largely carries forward without substantive amendment the guidance on
classification and measurement of financial liabilities from IAS 39,

IFRS 9 (2013) introduces new requirements for hedge accounting that align hedge accounting more closely with risk
management, The requirements also establish a more principles-based approach to hedge accounting and address
inconsistencies and weaknesses in the hedge accounting modef in IAS 39.

The mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 is not specified but will be determined when the outstanding phases are
finalised.

The Group has started the process of evaluating the potential effect of this standard but is awaiting finalisation of the

limited amendments before the evaluation can be completed. Given the nature of the Group’s operations, this
standard is expected to have a pervasive impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTE 57 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 2 April 2014 ESFG sold its remaining 9.0% stake in Banco BEST to BES.

On 18 March 2014 ESFG announced that it had sold a 10.63% stake in Espirito Santo Salide, as part of the
healthcare company’s TPO, launched on 6 February. The sale, which included the over-allotment option, leaves
ESFG with a 3.38% direct stake in the company.

On 14 February 2014 ESFG announced the sale of its 44.81% stake in BES Vénétie to BES.
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